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To provide competitive edge 1o the Armmed Forces
by equipping them with modern and quality
battlefield ammumtion.

VISION

To be a promment patron of AtmaNirbhar Bharat Abhiyan and
Make in India Initiative in Ammunition sector.

To establish and retain leadership m domestic market as the most
reliable and preferred partner of our defence and homeland secunty
apencies und develop MIL mlo an mlemational class smmunition
manufacturimg company.

O

MISSION

To create and strengthen Brand MIL by providing superor value for
money and meeting the expectations ol stukeholders.

To be a learning organization with global competencies, commutted to
creativity and innovation.




Omn behulf of the Board of Directors of Mumitions India Limmted (MIL), I am happy to present the
report on MIL for the period 17" August 202 110 3 1% March 2022

Based on the decision of the Union Cabinet, MIL was carved out of erstwhile OFB and the
operations of the newly formed company were started from 170ct 2021 At the ime of formation,
MIL had the strength ol 23,620 employees. The Government decided the corporate oflice of MIL at
Pune. When the company started funclioning, we all had lot of apprehensions. The sustainability
the viability and availability of work load were some of the areas which were bemg debated at
various forum. On 1"October 2021, we embarked upon a new journey wherein the Government has
wiven us decent work load fornext live years. Ourorder book was Rs. 23,954 Crore which was lobe
discharged in next five years.

Any transition phase 15 4 very entical and complex process having multiple challenges requirmg
new business strategies, Some ol these challenges were adapling new accounting procedures,
quality management systems, stores procuremeitl procedures, enhanced delegation of financial
powers et¢. | am proud to share that MIL has successfully overcomse these challenges with the
collective efforts and teamwork of MIL family.

The order book a5 on 17 Oct 2021 was skewed and the work load was not evenly distributed among
various factones. The work load for Small Arms ammunmition (AFK, OFV, OF1) and High calibre
ammunition (OFCH. OFBOL.OFDR,CFA) were nit suflicient 1o engage the entire warkforce of
these factories. The immediate challenge before us was 1o organize the work load for these
factonies. The Team al corporate office swung into action from day one to widen the customer base
meludmg the export market. Based on the survey of the mtemational market and its scientific
analysis, MIL could secure export orders worth over Rs 600 crore within first four months; thus,
providing a big reliel o these [wtones. The efloris for mmprovinge the order book position
contimued and these brought neh dividends, Today when we are just one year old, we have export
order book of over Rs 1500 Crore. The jouney is still contimung,
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For production of ammunition, the most mmportant things are the skill set and updated
mirastructure. While we are proud 1o have a dedicated and highly knowledgeable & skilled work
foree, the requisite infrastructure needed revamping. For manufacture of BMC Sat OF Nalanda,
the decision on procurement of deficil plants was hanging for last more thin a decade due lo various
reasons. | am happy to inform that during first four months of its inception, MIL has placed the
purchase orders [or these much-awaited plant sand the same are planned 10 be received by Murch
2024. Based on the product profile of the company m future, the requirement of Single Base
Propellant would increase substantially, Accordingly, the procurement case for the plant, which
was also pending [or last many years, has been linalized and the plant is planned to be available to
OF Bhandara w.e.l. April 2024, Tuking into consideration the market scenano, Team at corporate
office has projected the requirement of various types of ammunition in bath domestic and
mtermational market. Based on this the plan to modernize und augment the capacities of some of
the plants has been chalked oul.

Development of new products 1s gomg to be the key (0 success m today's competitive business
environment. For this, MIL has entered into various MoUs with academia and Indian industry for
exchange of techmcal know-how. During this period, MIL has successfully established the
production of following major smmunition:

PINAKA Extended Range Rocket
PINAKADPICM Rocket
Grenade 40 mm - various versions
Multi-Mode Hand Grenade

Fuze PDM557 for 155 mm

Aerial Bomb 500 Ke elc.

| am also happy to share with you that MIL has started getting the orders for above ammunition
from domestic and overseas customers.

Human resource 15 the assel of the orgamisation and a well-tramed, motivated and inspired work
force is very importanl. Since we operate in a specific technology area “ Ammunition Production”,
the human resource has to be developed i this domain, Accordingly, on the request of MIL, 1T
Mudrus has started a M. Tech course in Ammumition Technology from September 2022 where m
this vear 10 candidates have been sponsored. This course is open (o all employees of the company,
Similarly, NADP has obtained permussion from AICTE to start PGDM course m Defence
Production Management wheremn the company would be sponsoring its candidates for this miche
course.

OFIL Khamaria another flagship mstitute of MIL, 15 also working in this direction and 1s
dialogue with acadermic institutions for similar courses. MIL has encouraged online courses foriis
employees and during they ear over 2000 employees have lake non-line training in various areas.

During six months of last fnancial year (Oet-2022t0 March 2022), despite lot of limilations, the
company has achieved s reasonable value of sales and have registered net profit
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Paost corporatization, the factories have been given full responsibility for quality of products. This
18 2 huge opportumity with us to prove our competence and capability. Quality Mumual has
accordingly been published through which a uniform quality management system has been
established in all MIL factories. | am sure that wath the commitment of our employees, we will be
able to discharge thisresponsibility (o the fullest satisfaction of our esteemed customers.

Consultative mechanism at MIL comporate office level has been constituted for employees’
participation i the areas ol production, Development ol new products, Order Book position,
Productivity, Safety ete. To motivate Team MIL and to recognize the good work done by its
members, new awarid system has also been introduced.

Muny companies aspire to change the world. But very few have all the elements required: Talent,
Resources, and Perseverance. | can say with confidence and conviction that we have all the three in
abundance and have proved it many times earhieralso. Let's build on this foundation together.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and all officers of the Compuny, | would like to convey my
sincere gratitude to the Hon'ble Umon Mmister for Defence Shr. Ragnath Singhjt and Mimster of
State for Defence Shri. Ajay Bhattji for the immense support and guidance received from them. |
am also deeply prateful 10 Dr. Ajay Kumar, Defence Secretary, Govl. of India for his support and
trust in the fimctioning of the Company. | shall be failing in my duties, if | do not place on record the
unstinted support received [rom Shri. Sanjay Jaju, AddL Secretary/ DP, Ministry of Defence which
has enabled MIL to overcome the challenges at various stages of journey, | would also like 1o thank
Shri. Surendra Prasad Yadav, 1S (LS), Mimistry of Defence and other officers of DDP who have
supported MIL through their continuous guidunce.

| would also like to express my thanks und appreciation to my esteemed colleagues on the Board
and 1o all employees of MIL, as also 1o other stuke holders of the Compuany for their valuable

support and co-operation (o the compuny.

{Ravi Kant)
Chairman and Managing Director
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri Ravi Kant
Charrman and Managmg Director (CMD)

Shri Debashish Banerjee
Director/Huminn Resources

Shri Sushania Kumar Rout
Directlor/Operations

Shri Vivek Chandra Verma
Direclor/ Fmance
(we f0L.10.2021 1o 20.052022

Shri Prakash Agarwala
Director/Finunce & CFO

(weef 12.062022)

CHIEF VIGILANCE OFFICER
Shri Mahesh Chandra

SECRETARIALAUDITOR

M/s A K Rastogi & Associates
Ghazabad

CHIEF INTERNALAUDITOR

Shri Ajay Kumar Singh
Khamaria. Jabalpur

Shri Surendra Prasad Yadav
Jomt Secretury (LS)

Govi. Nommee Direclor
(weel 30011.2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Shri E J Paul
(w.e.l. 11.07.2022)

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s P G Bhagwat
Pune

BANKERS
Stute Bank of India
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BRANCH AUDITORS

M/ Khire Khandekar & Kirloskar
Chartered Accountants, Pune

M/s. L K Maheshwari & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Jabalpur

M/s. Sami & Rajhu
Chariered Accountants, Tiruchirapalli

M/s. Nitin Alshi & Associates
Charfered Accountants, Nagpur

M/s. Mishra Badhai& Associates
Chartered Accountants, Sambalpur

M/s. M K Singh & Co.
Chartered Accoumtants, Paina

M/s. S PCM & Associates
Chartered Accountants, Pune

M/s. Thakker & Sanghani
Chartered Acecountanis, Coimbatore

M/s. A P Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountunts, Nagpur

M/.SPAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Chandrapur

Mis.MAKKS & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Hoshangabad

M/s. Badale Mahale & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Julgaon
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Head of Units (as on 14032m3)

10.

12.

Manufacturing Units of MIL

Shri Sanjay Hazari
Creneral Manager
Ammunition Factory, Khadki, Pune

Shri Pankaj Goel
Creneral Manager
Cordite Faclory, Aruvankadu

Dr Abdul Samad Khan
Creneral Manager
High Explosives Factory, Khadki, Pune

Shri N. K. Agarwal
Creneral Manager
High Energy Projectile factory, Thirechirappali

Shri P, K. Dash
Creneral Manager
Ordnance Factory, Badmal

Shri P. K. Meshram
Creneral Manager
Ordnance Factory, Bhandara

Shri Bijoy Kumar
General Manager
Ordnance Factory, Chanda

Shri Sanjecv Gupla
Sr. General Manager
Ordnance Factory, Dehu Road

Shri S I Shendre

General Manager
Ordnance Factory, larsi

Shri Ashok Kumar
General Munager
Ordnance Faclory, Khamana

Shri M. N. Haldar
General Manager
Ordnance Factory, Nalinda

Shri Prakash Chandra Nanda

Non-Manufacturing Units of MIL

Shri D. C. Srivastava
General Manager
NADP, Ambajhan

Shri Gyaneshwar Tvagi
General Manager
OFIL. Khamaria

Smit 1 V. Thakur
OIC
MILCOS, Pune
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Registered Office

Ammumition Factory, Khadki, Pune,
Maharashtra-411 003

CIN No.U29190PN202 1 GOI203505

Corporate Office

2™ Floor, Nyati Unitree, Nagar Road,

Yerwada, Pune-411 006

@ 020-67080400

@ mil-punef@munitionsindiain
https://munitionsmdia.in

Manufacturing Units of MIL

Ammunition Factory, Khadki
Pune — 411 003, Maharashira

Cordite Factory, Aruvankadu
Aruvankadu - 643 202, Tamil Nadu

High Explosives Factory, Khadki
Pune — 411 003, Maharashtra

High Encrgy Projectile Factory

Thiruchirappali — 620 025, Tamilnady

Ordnance Factory, Bhandara
Bhandara 441 906, Mahsrashira

Ordnance Factory, Badmal
Badmal, Bolangir - 767 070, Odisha

Ordnance Factory, Chanda
Chunda — 442 501, Maharashtra

Ordnance Factory, Dehu Road
Pune - 412 101, Maharashtra

Ordnance Factory, Harsi
Itarsi - 461 122, Madhya Pradesh

Ordnance Factory, Khamaria

Jubalpur — 482 005, Madhya Pradesh

Ordnance Factory, Nalanda
Rajgir - 803 121, Bihar

Ordnance Factory, Varangaon
Varungaon -~ 425 308, Maharashira

Noo-Manufacturing Units of MIL

I, National Academy of Defence Production
Ambajhari, Nagpur- 440 021, Maharashtra

&)

Ordnance Factories Institute of Learning
Khamaria, Jabalpur — 482 005, M. P.

i MIL Controllerate of Safety
Khadki, Pune-411 003, Maharashtm




Shri Ravi Kant, 1.LO.FS

Chairman and Managing Director (CMD)

Shn Ravi Kant 1s 3 Mechanical Engneer with post graduaste gualification in Production
Engmeenng. He has expenence in Delence Production industry for over 35 yrs. He jomed Indian
Ordnance Factories through UPSC Engmeéermg services examinalion as Assistant Works Manager
in the year 1987 and has nisen. Durmg this journey since then, he worked in different capacities mthe
production and plannmg of Ammunition (both explosives & hardware) & Armament for over 2
decades. He has served as Secretary/Ordnance Factory Board for 5 yrs. He has been actively
mvolved in Transfer of Technology of vinous weapon svstems and ammumtion to OFB. He has
visiled Defence manufacturing factories in Russia, Israel, Belgium, Haly, Brazil, Frunce, US, UK ele
for Transfer ol Technology.

He has worked us Jomt Secretary in Ministry of Defence in New Delhi. During this period he
wis responsible for Ex Servicemen Welfure and capital acquisition of Naval systems, Electronic
Warfire System for Tri Services. During this peniod, he was actively associated in formulition of
Strategic Partnership model.

He worked as General Munager of Ordnance Factory Khamara, Jabalpur from Aug 2019 1
Sept 2021, This factory is the largest factory m India engaged m production of vanous types of
ammieition for Army, Navy and Air Force.

Shri Ravi Kant, took over as first CMD of newly created Defence Pablic Sector Enterprise
Munitions India Limited (MIL) Pune on 1st Oct 2021,
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Shri Debashish Banerjee, is a Mechanical Engimeer with Post
Gradunte gualification in Mainteniance Manapement (M. Tech) and Social
Science (M.Phil). He has done course on Management of Technologist from
IIM. Bangalore and Post Graduate Diploma in Public Adoimstration from
Indian Institute of Public Administration, New Delln. He has expenience in
Deflence Production Indusiry for more than 33 vears. He jomed the Indian
Ordnance Faclonies Services through UPSC (Engineering Services)
Exammation, as Assislant Works Manager in the year 1989 at Ordnance
Factory Dum Dum situated at West Bengal. Dunng lis journey of over 3
decades, he has worked m Ammunition & Explosive Group, Weapon Grouap,
Armoured Vehicle Group of Factories. During this journey he worked at
different levels at various production units almost in every ares 1.e Production,
Shri. Debashish Banerjee Plunming, Quality Control, Engineenng, Mamtenance, Administration,
Direetet’Human Resources Provision & Information Technology.

Shn Banenjee worked as General Manager of Engine Factory Avadi from September, 2020 to
September 2021. This Faetory 15 engaged in production of engine for Tank 172, Tank T-90 and BMP 11
Vehicle. Durmy this penod the Factory achieved 100% mdigenization olits inputl components.

Shn Banenee. took over as the first Director/HR of newly created Defence Public Sector Enterprise,
Mumitions India Lymited, Pune on st October, 2021

Shri S K Rout is B. S¢ Engmeering (Mechanical ) with post graduate
i MBA rom IGNOU. He has experience in Delence Production Industry
for over 33 yrs. He jomed Indian Ordnance Factomies through UUPSC
Engmeennyg services examination as Assistant Works Manager m the year
1989 a1 Rifle Factory Ishapore, situated af West Bengal. He worked various
production units at different levels m the area of production. planning,
mamnienance of plunts, safety & quality for almost 2 decades.

He has also served at National Academy of Defence Production,
Ambajhan (a smgle Institute for traiming of 1OFS & Allied Estt officers) as
Additional Ponncipal Director for 3 & % vy and orgnmized vanious
Manasement Development Programme (MDP) for service officers & senior
Shri. Sushanta Kumar Rout . .. ficers He has visited Defence munufacturme metonies i Russia &
Ditector/Operatiohs France for Transfer of Technology.

He worked as General Manager of Ordnance Factory Vanmgaon from December 2020 to Sept. 2021.
This factory is engaged in manuficluring of small arms ammunition viz 3.56mm & 7.62mm ball powder
ammunition for our Defence forces.
~ Shri S K Ropt. took over as first Director/Operations of newly ereated Defence Public Sector
Enterprise, Mumitions Indis Limited (MIL) Puneon [stOct 2021,
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Shri Vivek C. Verma, an IOFS Officer of 1991 Batch, He isa B. Tech
m Mechameal Engmeermg from [ET Lucknow and M. Tech in Design
Engineering from IIT, Delhi. His posting was at Viehicle Factory Jabalpur
from 1993 1o 2005, He was project ollicer for establishing manufacture of
new generation vehiclesat VEL

He was on deputation m Mimstry of Defence (Directorute of
Manning & Co ordination), New Delln from 2005 1o 2009, He contributed
immensely towards mdigenous manufuciure of equipment for Land
Systems and Military Technical Cooperation with other counines.

Thereafier he was posted to Ordnance Factory Kanpur m 2009, He
played a pivotal role m development and manulacture of Orndnunce for
Dhanush and 130/ 155mm Upgun,

Shri. Vivek Chandra Verma
IhrectoriFindnge

{w.e  EQLNO202T to 20:05.2022)

Subsequently he took over the responsibility of Secretary, Ordnance Factory Board in 2017, In this
post he was nodal for all the corporate level policy formulutions. The tenure also witnessed runsition of
Ordnance Factories froma government department 10 @ corporate entity.

He has widely travelled across the globe contributing towards militury cooperation with various
countries. Al the organization level, he 15 proud recipient of awards as "Best Manager in Al Ordnance
Factories' in 2013 and Ayudh Bhushan in 2020 by OFB. He took over as the first Dhirector (Fmance) of the
Munitions India Limited. Pune, a newly created entity carved out of the Indian Ordnance Factones.

Shri Prukash Agarwala 1s a graduate in Mechamical Engineering [rom
NIT Kurukshetra & MBA from [IM, Kolkata, He is am [OFS olficer of 1990
batch.

After completion of his trmining at NADP, Ambajhan, Nagpur, he
joined al erstwhile Ordnance Factory Board (OFB) m 1992, where a new
division of Marketing & Export was bemg set up. He has o vast expenience ol
Marketing, Export and International Cooperation durmg his long stint al
ersiwhile OFB. He was decorated with the prestigious “Ayudh Bhushan™
Award also during this peniod.

He has also worked in the areas of Material Management, Production
Phanming, Quality Control ete. al the Gwctory level at Ordnanee’ Egquipment
Shri. Prakash Agarwala Fmﬂury.gﬁ Kanpur and thereafler at OEF Huudqlmﬂr:r&. Kanpur -
Directon Tinonee & CFO
(et 13.06.2022)

He served at erstwhile OFB, Kolkaty again as Deputy Director Generatl of Marketing & Export [or three
years (il 2021 before joining the newly created DPSU, Munitions India Limited (MIL) at Pune, as General
Manager, Business Development & Finance.

He has a wide international exposure having visited around 25 couniries for Defence Export
promotion and International cooperation.
' Shri Prakash Agarwaly, took over s Director/Finance at MIL on 16th June, 2022 He is also the

= Olficer (CFO) o MIL.
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Shri Surendra Prasad Yadav has been appointed as a Governmies
Nominee Director on the Board of Company. _

Shn Surendra Prasad Yadav is qualified in B Tech and M.Tech and
1996 hatch Indian Forest Service (IFS) Officer of West Bengal cadre. He has
previously worked in Department of Forest, Governmen! of West
Bengal, n differen! capacities 1e. Divisional Forest Officer and Chief
Conservator of Forest.

He also worked as Executive Director in West Bengal Industnal
Development Corporation for more than 7 years.

Presently, he is working as Joinl Secretary (Land Systems) in
Department of Defence Production , Mmistry of Defence, Govt, of Indi

Shri. Surendra Prasad Yadav

Tomt Secrewry (L)
Crovl, Mommes Dhirector
(weef 30.11.2027)
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ABOUT US

Munitions India Limited [MIL] 15 a Defence Public Sector Enterprise [CPSE] under the mimistry of
Defence, Government of India.

MIL. the India's biggest manuficiurer and markel leader s engapged in Production; Testing Rescarch
& Development and Marketing of comprehensive runge of mmmumition & explosives for Army,
Mavy, Air force & Para-Military Forees.

With Corporate Office at Pune (India), MIL @il 12 state-of-the-ant manufactunng anits located
across the country employs skilled worklorce of sround 23,000, These faclonies have proven
integrated hase for production of Small, Medium & High calibre ammunition, Mortars, Rockets,
Hund Grenades ete. with in-house manufacturmg of Initiatory Compositions, Propellants and High
Explosives for over 150 years. Our primary objective 1s (o provide competitive edge to the Ammed
Forces by equippmg them with modemn and quality battlefield anmumtion,

Our foreign customers include countries located in North Amenca, South Amenca. Europe, Africa
and Asin. The patronage wereceive from our customers both i Indin and abroad reflects their faith in
quality of our products and services. We are the foree behind the Armed Forees.

MIL with 1ts 12 manufacturmg umis provide:

. A broad and versatile production base with multi-technology capabilities

. State-of-the-art manufacturing facilities

. Large pool of skilled and professionally quatified manpower and managerial personnel

. Strict adherence to quality stundirds (all ursits are 1SO-9000 certified)

. Omngmal as well as adaplive Research & Deyvelopment 1o make need-base refinement
and modifications.

. A strong base for ndusirial traising & testing
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PRODUCTION & NON PRODUCTION UNITS
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Ordoance Factory Nalanda

o TR 2

Ordnance Faclory
Badmal

- W

S gl D 1964

‘i r i Ordnance Factory Bhandara
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Ordnance Factory
Chanda

-
.
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1964

- Ordoance Factory Varaneason
1942 11 2 o
Ordnance Factory
Khamaria

1940
High Explosives Factory Khadki

P —

== 1869
Ammunition Factory
Khadki
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PRODUCT PROFILE

MIL's Product portfolio includes ammunition, explosives, pyrotechmes, and other
defense-related products, Munition India Limited is known lor its high-guality products that meet
the striet standirds and requirements of the Indian Armed Forees, Para Military Forees & Exports.

SMALL CALIBRE AMMUNITION
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PRODUCT PROFILE

MORTAR BOMBS NAVAL AMMUNITION :
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MODERNIZATION

PINAKA

The production capacity of Multi Barrel Rocket System PINAKA was sugmented from 1000 Lo
2500 rockets per anmum.

HEPF Trichi, OF Chanda, OF Dehuroad, and OF ltarsi are engaged m the production of this
Rocket
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MANGO PROJECT
The AMK-339 FSAPDS (MANGO) s per the reguirement of  Army, the capacty lor
manufiacture of 125 mm FSAPDS ammunmition, the man ammumiiton for Tank 1-72 and

1-90. is being setup as perthe technology given by Russia.

DPA Miver, Doy Curing Cabine

MANGD Manufacturing Process
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30 mm BMP-1l Ammunition

Ordnance Factory Khamana has mdigenously designed the assembly line for manufacture of 30
mm BMP-1 ammunition. The plant was fabricated by Indian industry based on the know how
provided by OF Khamarin, This 15 the shining example of hand holding ol Indiin mdustry by OFK
i developing the new technology.

+ .
illl.“_“”il
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MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

Research & Development

Indigenisation... “Afmanirbhar Bharat”

Current Indigenisation Content — 95%

o Indigenous ul Import

Products Developed Successfully

Grenade 30 mm for Automatic Grenade Launcher

Grenade 40 mm for Multi Grenade Launcher and Under Barrel Grenade Launcher
Grenade 40 X 53 mm

Cartridge 7.62 X 39 mm with higher muzzle velocity

PINAKA extended range Rocket

500 Ke General Purpose Aireralt Bomb

Fuze 557

LA A T T

LU 1
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Products Under Development

s Dual Purpose lmproved Conventional Munition (DPICM) Warhead

> Multi Influence Ground Mine (MIGM)

> Varunastra Warhead

Vs Propellant for HEAT -751, HEDP-502 & SMOKE-469C Ammunition
> 125 mm FSAPDS Ammunition {Depth of Peaetration 550 mm)

»  Fuze for Air Force Bombs

# Drone Delivered Ammunition (Delivery System with Homing & Guidance)

Dirone Delivery Ammupttion and i5s patform

It iz an alternate defvery svstem of ammunition to keep our manaed aireraft away from
ememy's long-tange misslle & weapons near o battlefield.
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7 155mm Smart Ammunition:

-

155 mm smér smmunition ensbles (the capsbility enhancentent of Artillery guns by allowing.
precision sirikes and simultanecusly reducing collateral damage.

T0hmm Rocket for Air foree:-

The 70mm Rockets are used primarily in the air to ground role. These rockets can perform anti-
persomnel, air (o ground suppression and illumination.

The major component of 70mm rocket are:
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Munitions India Limited bagged Runners up Award From
Hon’ble Raksha Mantri During the DEFEXPO 2022 for
achievements in export (Under Category - Large Scale Enterprises)
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Major Events

Beginning of Munitions India Lid.
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Major Events

Celebrating The Foundation Day of Munitions India Limited

ARKIIEG THE 1Y BIRTHDAT OF
HEW DEFENCE COMPARIES
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HTATE! BT A WElodd CELEBRATING INDIA @ 75

A dedicated week from 13" to 19" December 2021 for commemoration of “Azadi Ka Amrit
Mahaostay™ was celebrated by Faclories / Umts under Mumitions India Limited (MIL), MIL had
orgamzed local public exlnbitions at 8 (Eight) production units and a newly curated Museum at
Ammumition Factory Khadki, Pune was also maugurated.
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NOTICE TO FIRST ANNUAL GENERAI MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the First Annual General Meeting of Mumitions India Lmited will be held
on Wednesday, 21° December, 2022 at 11,00 am through Video Conference Lo transact the business
mentioned herem below-

Ordinary Business

b, Toread, consider and adopt the Director’s Report, Audited Statement of Profit & Loss und Cash
Flow Statement for the period ended 31° March, 2022, Balunee Sheet as on 31° March, 2022 and
Auditors' Report and the comments of the Complroller and Auditor General of India thereon and
topass with or without modification the following Resolution as Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Balimee Sheet as on 317 March, 2022, Stutement of Profit & Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the penod ended 317 March, 2022 1ogether with Director's Report and the
Auditors' Report and the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India are hereby read.
considered and adopted™.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Mumtions India Limmied

(E. J. Paul)
Company Scerelary
Place: Pune
Date: 29/11/2022

Notes:

. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy 1o attend and
vole mstead of himselland the Proxy need not be amember:

p 1 Members cuan attend and participate in the ensumng First Amnunl General Meeting through
Video Conference.

i The attendance of the members attending the First Amnual General Meeting through
VideoConference will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guonuom under Section 103 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

4. The members will be allowed to pose questions durm;;, lhu. course u[‘th meeting.

The quenies can also be given m advance at finsmcefa 1 X

The lmk to access through Video Conference shall be shared two days before the meeting.

3




To,

The Sharcholders
Munitions India Limited

The Directors huve pleasure in presenting the 1 Annual Report together with Audited accounts of
your Company for the period August 17,2021 to March 31,2022,

The Cabinet Committee on Security (CCS) i its meeting held on 29.07. 2020 approved 1o convert
Ordnance Factory Board (OFB), mm Attached Office of Mimistry of Defence into one or more than
one 100% Government owned corporate entities registered under the Companies Act 2013,

The Cabinet meetmg held on 16.06.2021 approved o convert 41 production umits of OFB mto 07
Defence Public Sector Undertakings (DPSUs) and accordingly the Office Memorandum
No. 1 (SVY202HOF/DP(Plg-V) DL21.06.2021 was issued by the Department of Defence Production.

Mumitions India Limited (MIL) 5 one osuch 07 DPSUs, with its corporate office located in Pune.

MIL, the India's biggest manufucturer snd market leader 1s engaged m Production, Testing,
Research & Development and Marketing of comprehensive runge of ammunition & explosives for
Army, Navy, Air Foree, Para-Military Forces, Police Forces and Expors.

Formation of Munitions India Limmited (MIL) after being carved out of erstwhile OFB hastesulted m
transformation of existing sel-up inlo o corporale entity and 18 at o crucial stage of trunsition, Any
transition is a very critical & complex process having many challenges ond requires implementation
of various business strategies (o hundle the transition for putting the company in the best possible
position with the new ownership leam.

The change is always difficult. Some of the initzal challenges were adapting to procedural changes
like change of tax regime, financial accounting, commercial accounting ele and o reduce
bureaucratic admmistrative procedures. Motivating the existing employees amidst the perceived
apprehensions regarding uncertuin future of the corporation was also a big challenge.
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In order to ensure faster decision making. Board in its first meeting delegated ndeqguate financial
powers to various authorities at the unit level. The cases which earlier were being finalized al OFB
level. are now being finalized at the unil level.

The orgamsation structure at the unit level was revamped and the major change was designating the
Junior Works Manager (Selection Grade) as Divisional Officers and accordingly the requisite
financial powers have also been delegated.

MIL 1s committed to make its contribution in protecting the environmenl. In pursuit to that the use of
technology such us e-mail ete. for speedy communication and approval are bemg encouraged. The
same has now become the part ol MIL s work culture.

Transparency is key to business development in the long run.  Actively pursuing transparent
business process, particularly in the area of material procurement. a new ‘Stores Procurement
Maunual' has been incorporated. The munual has been drafied taking into consideration the best
practices being followed in Govi ol India and other PSUs. The directives of MoF, DDP und CVC as
issued from time W tme have been suitably incorporated i the manual. This has brough enhanced
transparency and efficiency, resulting in speedy procurement actions. The same has helped n
mmproving the availabihty of raw matenal for production activities.

Alongwith trunsition from govt organization 1o DPSL, MIL has been effectively contributing to
vantous Govl. missions like, Swacchh Bharat Abhiyan, Mission Raksha Gyan Shakti (MRGS),
Mission Karmayogi (EDP, MDP), Skill India Mission (Pradhan Manin Kushal Vikas Yojpuna),
AtmaNirbhar Bharnt elc.

MIL has purticipated in various defence exhibitions at national & international level where the
products of MIL were highly appreciated.

[ am happy to mform that the company has registered a Profit{afier Tux) of INR 18,10 Crores during
its first six months ol busimess Le from August 17, 2021 to March 31, 2022 Despite the negative
cascadg effect on vanous business/production activities due (o COVID-1 9, the company wus able
to muike profit by reducing the expenditure and adopting the imnovative managemenl practices.

1. HIGHLIGHTS:

1.1 Transfer of Assets and Liabilities:

Department of Delence Production vide Office Memorandum No, 1{5)/2021/OF/DP(Ple-V)/01 DL
24.09.2021 deeided dissolution of Ordnance Factory Board and transfer of assets and liabifities of
Ordnance Factory Board 1o new Defence Public Sector Undertukings and Directorate of Ordnance
(Coordimnation & Services). Accordmgly. the assels and liabilities of the following Production and
non-production units were transferred 1o Munitions India Limited.
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Production Units:
L Ammunition Factory Khadki
i, Condite Factory Aruvankadu
. High Energy Projectile Factory Tiruchirappalli
. High Explosive Factory Khadki
V. Ordnanee Factory Bhandara
VI Ordnance Factory Bolangir
vil.  Ordnance Factory Chanda Chandrapur
viti,  Ordnance Factory Dehu Road
X Ordnunce Factory lturs:
X. Ordnance Factory Khamana
xi. Ordnance Factory Nalanda
Xil, Ordnance Factory Varangaon

Non-production units:
1 Ordnance Factonies Institute of Leaming, Khamaria
il National Academy of Defence Production, Ambajhari
1. Regional Controllerate of Safety, Pune
V. Regional Marketing Centre, Pung

2 FINANCIALREVIEW:
2.1 Summary of Financial Results

The summary of financial results of the company for the period August 17, 2021 to
Muarch 31, 2022 is given below:

TR in Croves
Pardculars Values
Ciross Income 261838
| EBIDTA 11041
Fmancial Expenses paiis
Depreciation & Amortization E3.02
| Profit/(Loss) Before Tux 2540
Provasion for Tax. sle. 7.30
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1210
Legs: Profit/(1dss) Brought fomwand il
Balancs Carried to Balance Sheet 18.10
22 Growth
For sustimed growth of the company, efforts are bemg made 1o widen the customer base and
develop the new products. Smee, the Government has approved export of Defence items,
the Company would also like to focus on this area for its growth.
23  NetWorth

The net worth of the-.company as on March 31,2022 18 INR 6549.75 Crores.
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4.2

43

44.

Foreign Exchange (Earnings and Outgo):
Eamings are m the form of USD, EURO
Expenditure is for LUSD, EURO, SEK

Earnings Expenditure
For the period
A;g::t n:.:'; i[fl INR 26,19 Croros MR 24531 Crores
2022
ANNUALRETURN:

As required under the provisions of the Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual
Return of the Company for the perfod August 17,2021 1o March 31, 2022 is displayed on the
websile www.munitionsindia.co.n.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursusmt to Section 134 (3) (¢) of the Compamies Act. 2013, it 15 hereby confirmed that

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts lorthe pernod August 17,2021 to March 31,2022 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed, along with proper explanation relating to
malerial departures.

Such sccounting policies are selected and applied consistently, and judgments and estimales
made that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the compuny at the end ol the finaneial year, and of the profit or loss of the company for thal
period.

Proper and sufficient care 158 wken for mamtenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for sufeguarding the assets of the
company, and for preventing and detectimg fraud and other irregulirities.

The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,

Proper systems have been devised and are being improved further to ensure compliance with
the provision of all applicable laws.

ACTIVITIESOFTHE COMPANY:

PRODUCTION:

The company mits | 2 states of the art manufacturing units, located across the country with total
employee of around 23000, produces various kinds of ammunition and explosives. It is the
Indin's biggest manubacturer and market leader engaged in Production, Testing, Research &
Development and Marketing of comprehensive range of ammunition & explosives for Army,
Nawy. Air force, Para-Military Forces and Exports. The company possesses proven mlegrated
hase for production of Small, Medium & High Calibre Ammunition, Moriars, Rockets, Hand




4 G“‘ 1'Dﬂ|" 1‘,

W %,
L\
', -
ST py—

Accurate, Lethal. Reliable

Grenades ete. with in-house manufactuning of Imtiatory Compositions, Propellants and High
Explosives for over 150 years. The company strictly adbere to Quality standards. All the units
of the company are [SO 900 | cerfified.

Details of Production and non-Production uniis:

PRODUCTION UNITS

Ammunition Factory Khadki (AFK)

AFK, located in the city of Pune, came mto bemg on
16th December 1869 as 0 Small Arms manufacturing unil
of the British Govermment. Regular production of
ammunition cariridge using pun powder commenced in
1872, In 1886, manuficture of Carig. 0.303" was
established vsing cordite (made from nitrocellulose and
nitroglyeerine paste) propellant. In 1914 there was an
expansion of manulfacturing focilites at AFK & different
types of primury explosives like mereury fulminate, lead
azide, lead styphnute and filling of caps, detonators,
percussion fuzes & different pyrotechnic stores were
miroduced at AFK formeeting the requirements of warm

Asia & Afnca. The factory 15 a leader m manufacture of various types of Small Arms Ammunition
bemy used by vanous Armed Forces and Police Forces.

Cordite Factory Aruvankadu (CFA)

CFA, located in the hilly region of Nilginis, Tamil Nadu
wis established in the year 1904. CFA possessed the
necessary advantages ol good ¢limatic condition suitable
for propellant manufacture, own reservoir for waler
supply and Madras Reprmental Centre which is located
about 5 KM for the secunty. CFA 15 the prioneer m the
manufacture ol quality propellints for different type of
Ammumitions including 105mm. 120mm, 130mm.
155mm, Propellant for naval ammumbion and small
arms: The latest addition of Triple Base propellant for By
modular Charges for 155mm Ammunition s greal
achievementof CFA.
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High Explosive Factory Khadki (HEF)

High Energy Projectile Factory (HEPF)

HEF was planned as a separate umit in the Pre-World
War-11 years, 1935-40 for muanufacture ol high explosives
(TNT & CE) and Initialors required for AFK. lts
foundation stone was lmd on Januury 11", 1940 at
Woestern bank of Mula niver al a site where the "Battle of
Khadki” was fought between the valiant Marathas and
British army m 1817, Major production at HEF started
durmg [942-44. Since its inception, 1t has been playing a
mujor role m defence preparedness of our country, HEF
produces High Energy Materials, TNT, Liqud
Propetlants,

HEPF [formerly Heavy Alloy Penetrutor Project
(HAPP)]. 15 a premier unit manufacturing Anti-Tank
Kinetic Energy Projectiles namely Fm Stabilized Armour
Pieremp & Discarding Sabot (FSAPDS) of varous
caliber. This is the only Unit manufacturme FSAPDS
shots 1n the country. During early 1980s DRDO
estublished this mtegrated manufactuning facility for
FSAPDS ammumtion. This ammumtion s a mghtmare
for the enemy and has got the capability to destabilize the
enemies Battle Tank by sheer Kinetic Enerpy. Besides
Kinetic Energy Projectiles, HEPF is also engaged m the
manufacture of various Tungsten Alloy based componeni

The factory is located ina rural setting and is about 21 KM away from Tiruehirappalli Railway station

anid 1 7 Kmaway from the Airport.

Ordnance Factory Bhandara (OFBA)

OFBA is situated m the District Bhandara in the State of
Mahurashtra on Kolkata-Mumba National Highway at
I8 kms west of Bhandara 1ownship and 55 ks east of
Nagpur City. The [actory s considered as mother of all
propellant factories as 1t produces a large vanety of
propellants. It has multi- dimensional product-matrix
mngmg from Acids to High Explosives and various
propellants with highest quality standards, The testing
facilibes in s well-equipped laboratonies have been
accredited by NABL.
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Ordnance Factory Badmal, (OFBL)

OFBL was set up m the State of Onssa with state-ol~the-
art lechnology machine supplied by M/s Day and
Zmmermann, USA, M/s Josel Meissner, Germany, M/s
HAKQ, Switzertand and M/s KINTEX, Bulgaria. Late
Pome Mimister SmbL Indira Gamdhi Inid the foundation
stone of this Factory on October 29th 1984, The vision of
sefting up a huge ammunition f(actory dedicated to
manufucture of medium and heavy calibre ammunition
has brought this backward region of KBK belt of Orissa
to lime light. The project sanction came in 1989. The
Factory s situated in the Bolangir district of Onssa with
aspread of 12200 acres encompassimg hills & hillocks of

historical Gandhamardun Range and Nanked by two tributary rivers, the LANTIH and the TEL, of the:
Mahanadi River System. The factory produces vanious kind of ammunition used by Mechanised
Forces, Artillery and Engineers regiments of the Army.

Ordnance Factory Chanda, (OFCH)

F I
#
Ordnance Factory Dehu Road (OFDR)

used here are very sensitive and have high energy content, the safety ol production processes is very
eritical.

The Ordnance Factory Chanda Project was sanctioned
m the year 1964 and the mitial production commenced m
1970, The factory was designed as medium and high
calibre ammumtion manufacturing unit with the
necessary auxilianes for the producing explosives and
non-explosive components such as inttialor, primer, cap,
fuze, paper component & packages. OFCH 1s situated
135 KM from Nagpur due south and 28 KM from
Chandrapur due north.

Services had imdicated that Night Warfare will become
pre-domimant in future and as such, Production of various
Pyrotechmic Ammumbion items for Night Wartare had to
be established m India 1 achieve the much-needed sell-
sufficiency i this vitsl field The necessity for the
establishment of this new factory was considered during
the Defence Mmistry Production and Supply Committee
meeling and the project was sanclioned by the
Government m Jan 1977, The factory is engaged in the
manuflacture of various kinds of Pyrotechnic
Ammumtion. It 18 the only [wctory in the country
producing this kind of ammunition. Since the materials
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Ordnance Factory ltarsi (OFI)

Ordnance Factory Khamaria (OFK)

Afler reviewing requirements of Propellant for High
Caliber Ammumtions vig-a-vis then capacities available
m 1969-70 m Ordnance Factones, a new propellant
factory was considered necessary and OFl was sel up.
OFI manufacture Double and Triple base Propellant and
the Cast and Case Bonded Propellant requuired for various
types of Rockets and Missiles lor all the three Services.
Safety & Human Resource Development are the basic &
vital concerns of the factory. Research & Development
are the areas of its endeavour.

OFK was set up m the year 1943 dunmg World War-11 as
one of the Eastern Group Projects to meet the
requirements of Ammunition for Allied Forces. After
Independence, the product range of the Factory was
diversilied 1o meel the operational requirements of
different Services and Pamm Military Forces. During
Chingse War in 1962 and Pakistan Wars in 1965 and
1971, the Factory was [urther expanded to meet the new
demunds of Army, Air Force and Navy. Al present this is
the biggest ammumition factory i the country. The
present production activity of the Factory 15 a
combmation of Hardware Component Manufaclurmg,

Explosive Filling and Ammumition Assembly for all the three Services and Parg-Military Forces.

Ordnance Factory Nalanda (OFN)

Ordnance Factory Nalanda, the latest addition to the
ammunition manu facturmg [Betones m the country. 1L s
located at Rajeir m district Nalanda of Bihar and 15
engaged in manufacture of latest technology propellant.
The project was sanctioned on 29.11.2001 flor
estublishing modern lechmology n the field of propellant
manufacture of Bi-Modular Propellant for 155mm
Artillery Gun with a moderately vast area ol
approximately 3000 Acres.
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Ordnance Factory Varangaon (OFVY)

NON-PRODUCTION UNITS:

Ordoance Factories Institute of
Learning. Khamaria (OFILKH)

National Academy of Defence
Production (NADP)

OFV was established m 1964 immediately alter Chunese
aporession mamly for undertukmg the manufacture of
7.62mm Ammunition to replace 0.303™ Cartndges which
acts the primary ammunition of Indian Army tll then. The
produchion started m the year 1965 with the plant &
machines received under LS. amid. Afler development of
Indian National Small Arms System (INSAS) by DRDO,
OFV established the production line for manufacture of
its ammumtion. Currently the factory is engaged m
production of various types of small Arms smmunition
used by Armed and Pohee forees.

OFILEH was estabhished as Regronal Traming Institute.
Khumari (RTL, KH) on 1st April, 1996 and subsequently
renamed as OFILKH, Jubalpur, for mmparting traimng to
and undertaking developmental activiies in respect of
Group B and C employees. This mstitute has the expertise
to impard trainimy in the field of chemicals and explosives.
Apart from the above. induction training for newly
recruited Chargeman (chemist) is also conducted by this
mstitute on manufacture of chemicals, explosives,
ammunition components, different types of ammunitions
and related safety aspects elc.

NADP is the premier trmiming Institute, with the mandate
to impart both induetion and n-service training to Indian
Ordnance Factores Service (10FS) and Indian Crdnanice
Factornies Health Service (IOFHS) officers. Sel up as
Ordnance Factories Stalf’ College (OFSC) in the year
1978 for providing mstitutionalized training Lo the fresh
entrants and in-service Officers of 10FS; it was
rechnistened as National Academy ol Defence Production
(NADP) in the year 2003, With the motto "Vidya
Amritam' (Knowledge Eternal), the Academy 1s
commilted to the philosophy of 'Excellence through
Leaming'. The Academy has evolved over the years to
meet the [ast-changimg needs of the organizaniion and o
equip ils Officers with adequate techno-managenal skills,
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The satety in explosive production ts of paramount
importance and no slackness in the sume can be accepled.
Accordingly, MIL-COS was established on 02/03/2001

for monitonng matlers concening:

Explosive Salety

Electnical Safety

Industrial Safety

Envirommental Sufety

Explosive & Hazardous Waste Management

Munitions India Limited-Controllerate
of Safety (MIL-COS)

5.2 ACCREDITATION AND CERTIFICATIONS:

All twelve umts of MIL are having following certifications:

CERTIFICATION VERSION LINITS
Quulity munagement system (QMS) IS0 9001:2015 All Units of MIL
Environmenl management System (EMS) ISO 14001:2015 All Units of MIL
Oceuputional Health & Safety 150 145001:2018 All Units of MIL
Management System (OHSMS)
National Acereditution Bouard For testing ISOVIEC/1 7025 All Units of MIL
and Laboratones (NABL)
Agrospace QMS ASS 00D AFK, Pune
Enerpy and Management Systems (EnMS) IS0 50001:2018 All Units of MIL

6. MISSION RAKSHAGYANSHAKTI:

Ministry of Delence, Department of Defence Production (MoD, DDP) has mitiated MISSION
RAKSHA GYAN SHAKTI in the month of Apr 2018, with a primary objective ol Boosting 1P culture
and (o promote creation ol Intellectual Property in the Delence production sector, in line with the
national policy on IPR 1o encourage and assist the Defence Public Sector Units (DPSUs), Delence
establishments and their creative/ inmovative officials towards IPR regime.
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To achieve reahstic selfrehance in Defence sector, the company 15 trying to generate more and more
Patents by in-house R&D efforts and further to ensure its timely commereiulization by the Indisn
Defence industries for use by the Armed Forces. Towards this MIL set target of R&D expenditure as |
Yool total revenue for FY 2022-23 & 2% for FY 2023-24.

The company has conducted senes ol PR training programs (o trun the employees m all the umts. The
knowledge base developed during the trainings has created the awareness among the employees to
capture the mnovative ideas/1Ps wathin the organtzatnion. Till date approx. 2679 employees have been
tramed.

The company has also fucilitated the vendors on [PR related activities by conducting comprehensive
truining sessions al their premises/ online trainings and durmg vendors’ meet & till date approx. 637
vendors regstered with vimous units are trained.

Our nmnssion 18 o promote more and more mnovation and imdigenization ol vanous Ammunitions &
Explosives and we are very conlident thut the on-going efforts of the company will continue to create [P
assets while promoting an innovative culture for organizational benelit.

i DETAILS OFIPR FILINGWITHIPOAFTER MRGS TILLDATE

Patent Ind. design Copyright Trademark Total
Filed | GTD | Filed | Regd | Filed | Regd. | Filed | Repd | Filed | Regd
142 [43] 28 03 47 21 42 23 239 48

Status of I[P creation for FY 2022-23

IP filed by MIL Till date (26-12-2022) 156 Nos.
Target Given by MoD for FY 2022-23 104 Nos.
8. NOTABLE INNOVATIONS BY OFBa

Title: Cord with non-explosive erystalline chemical and its apphication.
Patent No.: 360600 Date of Grant: 09.03.2021.
Short Title: Cord Drill

Deseription of the Cord:

The cord with non-explosive crystaliine material wherem free flowing crystalline chemcal like Penta -
erythritol (PE) 15 directly incorporated in the spoon double layer cotton yarn cord and insulation is
carried out with PVC coating. A ndge is created throughout the cord length w. r. L symmetncal cord
diameter of the live detonating cord and easy identification of non-explosive cord by trained army
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personnel. More conversantly 1t wall be used for traming purpose.

The said cord is imitation of live cord and capable of being used for mining purpose to the newly joined
state services person (e. g. Army, State Police, Poramilitary Forces under MHA) for creating
awareness, likely hazards ete. This will help o reduce the aceident during handling of live detonating
cord and ultimately save the human being from unexpected harm.

The Cord Dall has been developed and issued Qty. 8161 Mtrs, to Army against their demand.

CORD REEL RIDGE

Technical Details
¢ Charge Muss of PE : 5.67gm/meter.

s Over all diameter - 5.0 1o 5.5 mm
# Ridge © 1.0 £ 0.2 mm

9. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

9.1  Schedule Caste / Schedule Tribe Reservation:
The dircctives issued by the Govermment of India regarding reservation for SC/ST m
appointment and promotions o various posts were complied with

9.2  Training & Human Resource Development:

The compuny has signed Mol with IIT Madms for conducting “Web-enabled M.Tech in
Ammumition Technology™. 10 (Ten) persomnel of the company have been nominated and
sponsored for the first bateh which commenced m August 2022,

National Academy of Defence Production (NADP), the raining institute of the company has
received AICTE approval for conducting "Post Graduate Diploma in Management (Business
Management)”, a 2-years fully residential programme with a focus on Defence industries, for
the students mcluding executives aspiring to muke/advance their cureer in the field of
mimugement,
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The contribution of the company for developing Skill through Traimmg,

i) In-house HRD Centers are set up atl various factories/units of the company for
imparting skill training to own employees as well as for training of trade apprentices in
varous trades.

i) Ordnance Factories Institute of Leaming, Khamna (OFILKH) is in process of vetting
ulfiliation with NIELIT for starting Digital Learming Courses.

i) The traiming for developing skills of the employees of the compuny is being provided in
the areas of Mamtenance, Sufety, IPR, Frefighting, Admmistration, I'T.

) IT] trade apprentices (other than the company employees) are being tramed m the
Trades of Chemical (AOCP), Mechanical (Machinist, Tumner, Fitter, Welder etc.),
Electrical (Electriciun), Cival (Plumber, Mason ele.).

To motivate human respurces and keep their morale high new award & reward systemn has been
mtroduced.

9.3 Indusirial Relations:
Industnal relations continued to be healthy, cordial und harmonious.

Consultative Mechanism at the Corporate Office level has been constituted for indusinal
relations / industnal harmony. For contributing in the development and growth of the company,
the participation ol employees is ensured through this forum.

lﬂi E.

No Memorandum of Understanding with Ministry of Defence was entered into for the peniod
August 17,2021 to March 31,2022,

11.  OFFICIALLANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION:

The oflicial Language Act, along wath the Rules thereol and orders issued from time 1o ime by
the Department of Official Langunge, Ministry of Defence regardmg propressive use of Hindi,
were implemented m the Company during the period. Meetings of the Official Language
implementation Committee were held regularly to review the use of Hindi i the Company and
steps luken to mplement the Amnuwl Program for the penod Auguost 17, 2021 to March 31,
2022, issued by the Department of Official Languape, Ministry of Home Affairs, Government
of India.
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12. REPORTONCONSERVATION OF ENERGY,. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION.ETC.

12.1 Conservationof energy-
12.1.1 Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
Following steps has been taken [or conservation of energy -

i Replacement of conventional Ceilimg Fans with Energy Efficient BLDC Fans 1o save
electneity.

1) Replacement of Conventional lights with Energy Efficient LED hights to save elecineity.

1il) Replacement ol Street Sodium Vupour lamps with LED lamips and Installaiion of Astronomical
Tumer control switches for streel lights so as o aulo switch-off the lights on sunnise.

iv) Installation of Occupaney Sensors in offices, cormdors, washrooms ete.

v) Installation ol Grid connected Rool Top Solir Energy Plant as allernale source ol energy.

vi) Installation of APMFC punels at all substations and production shops mside factories and estates
o improve power hctor,

vil)  Replacement of Oil Type Trunsformers with energy eflicient Dry Type transformers.

viil)  Replacement of Reciprocating Compressors al chiller Plunt with energy efficient Screw

Compressors.

1x) Replacement of Cooling Tower Fan Blades with FRP blades.

x) Replacerent of old less efficient H2 generation plant with new high efficient H2 generation
plant.

xi)  Replacement of Star- Delta Starters with VFDs/Sofi Starters for higher HP motors.

xii)  Energy eflicient IE3 motors has been included in technical specifications for all plant and
machmery under procurement and for fulure procurement to reduce the electncal energy
consumption.

xiii)  Installation of Energy Efficient Boilers replacing Old Boilers.

xiv)  Installation of Solar Water Heating System at Boiler Houses (o save Furnnee Oil Consumption.

xv)  Installation of Economizers to utilize flue pas for pre-heating boiler feed water in Botlers

12.1.2 Steps taken by the company for ufilising alternate sources of energy . -

The company has taken vanous steps for developing and utilising altemnate source of energy.
Procurement and instullation of solarpower plants has been done at vamious umits (o utilise solur energy
and develop an alternate source ofenerzy.

12.1.3 Capital investment on energy conservation eguipments:

Roofl top and Ground Soliar Plants have been mstalled in various umis.

12.2  Technology absorption-
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12.2.1 Absorption of indigenous Technology during production:

Two version of Pinaka Rockets 1.e, DPICM & Enhanced Range ME- for which the TOT was taken
from DRDO have been successlully test fired. Also, development of Guided Pinaka Rockets is at
advaneed stupe. Production of 125 mm FSAPDS Practice Ammumnition for which the ToT was taken
from DRDO has been successfully started. Production of BMOS has been mdigenously established in
assoctation with DRDO (HEMRL).

The automation of Nitrocellulose plant-11 (NC-11) supphed by M/S Yugolmport Yugoslavia &
Nitrocellulose plant-111 (NC-111) supplied by M/S Bowas, Austria has been successfully completed
through m-house efforis at OF Bhundira,

12.2.2 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution

Through the technology absorption there has been sigmificant improvement m product quality. The cost
of the product has also reduced significantly,

Benefils denved from Pinaka Project at OFCH arez-

L Improvement m Density of Explosive

i Reduction in Retum for Rectilication (RFR)
i Reduction in Production hours

. Increase m Productivity

OFN has successfully demonstrated the extended operational range of BMCS M92 in sub-zero
temperature {(-30°C) during dynamice trials. This will facilitnte deployment of mdigenous BMCS in
extreme cold environmental condition and proves BMCS (Ex-OFN) at par with international standard
of other foreign competitors.

AL OFBA. the lollowing benefits have been acerued afler automation of Nitrocellulose Plant:

(a) Reduction in manual intervention during operation

(b} No chockmg of circulation line valve due to accumulation of slurry m case of power [ailure post
nitration

{c) No wastage 0f NC and Acids.

(d) Reduction in exposure of employees (o huzardous workmg area.

12.2.3 Absorption of lmported technology during production:

L Production of 3VBM17 Rounds (AMK 339- Mango Ammunition) st HEPF
Indigenous manufacturning of 3VBMI17 Rounds at HEPF (AMK 339-Mango Ammunition)
using Russian equipment and materials under ToT from Russiais expected to be established by
end of inancial year 2022-23,
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L Installation of Single & Double Base Propellant Plant for 125mm FSAPDS (MANGO
PROJECT) at Ordnance Factory Bhandara
Smgle & Double Base Propellant Plant for 125mm FSAPDS (MANGO PROJECT) at
Ordnanee Factory Bhanduara are under erection and commissioning,

i Installation of Pyroxyvlene Sheet Plant for 125mm FSAPDS (MANGO PROJECT)
at Ordonance Factory Bhandara
Pyroxylene Sheet Plant for 125mm FSAPDS (MANGO PROJECT) at Ordnance Factory
Bhandara is under erection and commissioning.

iii. Installation of New Single Base Propellant Plant
Contruct signed with M/s BOWAS, AUSTRIA for supply of new Single Base Propellant Plam
at Ordnance Factory Bhandara in the year 2022, The plant is expected to be commssioned by
2024.

iv. Installation of Triple Base Propellant and NC-NG Mixing Plant at OF Nalanda
Contract signed with M/s Eibit, Israel for supply of Triple Base Propellant and NC-NG Mixing
Plant a1 Ordnance Factory Nalanda in the year 2021. The planis are expected 1o be
commussioned by 2024,

12.2.4 Theexpenditure incurred on Research and Development.

Total Expenditure meurred on R&D by the company during second half of FY 2021-22 (1.e. from
(17102021 to31/03/2022); INR 1150 Lakhs

The company has identified the following areas for cost reduction and optimmsation of expenditure:

i. Contract Labours & Services
Sustumed efforts have been made Lo reduce the expenditure incurred towards hiring of contract
lubour. All the units of the company have studied the requirement ol contract labours in details
and have rationabsed for an overall reduction of'more than 10%.

il Reduction of existing Unavoidable Rejection (UAR)
The voncerted action for reduction m UAR of all major stores has been twken by each
production units of the company and as a result UAR lor major stores huve been brought below
10%., All production units have carmied out process improvement and optimised the frequency
of machine mamtenance activilies, to minimise rejection which will eventually lead to
reductionm UAR.

iii. Water consumption reduction:
The company has taken vanous steps to reduce the water consumption such as rain water
harvesting, de-silimg & restoration of waler bodies, mstallation ofbore water and recuse ol re-
cycled water ele. i the estates & factories.
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iv. Energy Conservation and Use of Solar Energy:
All units of the company have used energy efficient appliances and fttings including load
bulanemg and resorted to use of non-conventional energy like solur eneérgy o reduce the
electricity expenditure. Energy efficient light fittings, LED sireet lights have been mstalled in
offices, production units and estate of each unit which has resulted in saving of electnicity.

Solar enerzy is bemg tapped to meet the requirement of power m most of the umils. Presently. it
15 producing 28 MW of power which is around 40% of the total power requirement of the
company.

V. Use of technology to be resorted to wherever it is possible to reduce the
expenditure:
Video conferenemg is being encoumaged for holding meetings, vendor meets, customer meis
ete. All the procurement cases are being processed by using digital signature of officers / slafls,
Further, email services have been used for communication between the Units and Corporate
Office which gives speedy commumication and also reduce the cost of paper and printing.

13.  VIGILANCE MATTERS:
An officer m the rank of Jumor Administrative Grade has been nominated to oversee the
vigilance matters. During (he period under report pertodical reports relating to vigilunce
mitters were senl o Ministry regularly. There was one vigilunce complaint received during the
penod August 17,2021 to March 31,2022,

14. BOARDOFDIRECTORSAND BOARD MEETINGS:
The Company's Directors are appomied and their remuneration fixed by the Government of
India. Henee. the company has no policy on appomiment of Directors and their remuneration
meluding eniteria for determimng qualilication, positive attitudes, independence of a director
and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 1 78,

As on date, Munitions India Limited has Shri Ravi Kant as Chairman and Managing Director,
Shri Debashish Baneree as Director/Human Resources, Shn Sushanta Kumar Rout as
Director/Operations, Shn Prukash Agarwala as Director/Finance and Shn Surendra Prasad
Yadav, IS (LS) as Governmient Nommee Director,.

During the period August 17, 2021 to March 31, 2022 four Board Meetings were held on
20.08.2021.08.09.2021,01.10.2021 and 18.01.2022.

15. AUDITORS:
The Compiroller and Auditor General of India appointed M/s. P.G. Bhagwat LLP, Suite 102,
Orchard, Dr. Pai Mare Buner, Pune-411045 as Statutory Auditor and 12 other firms as Brunch
Auditors forthe period August 17, 2021 to March 31, 2022 under Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The auditors have audited the Accounts of the Company for the period August 17, 2021 10
March 31,2022, The audited accounts with required annexure and reports ure annexed to this
report.
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6. RIGHT TOINFORMATION ACT, 2005:
RTI Muchinery is in place in the company to attend to RT] aspplications mnd follow-ups. Necessary
action has been taken by the Company towards implementation of Right to Information (RTT) Act 2005

i Munitions India Limited.
l. Chief Public Information Officer
Shn Shahir Faroogui
2. Appelliate Authority

Shn Avinush Tarhawadkar

17. VIGILMECHANISM:

In order to prachce better Corporate Governance the company is framing a Whistle Blower Policy. The
ohjective of the policy 1s to provide a system for detection and prevention of fraud, reporting of any
fraud that is detected orsuspected and for finr dealing of matlers pertaining 1o fraud.

18. AUDITCOMMITTEE:
Audit Commutiee is being formed.

19. SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT:

Form No.MR-3, Secretarial Audil Report is enclosed herewith as ANNEXURE-1L

2. COMMENTSONTHEAUDITORS REPORT:

Explanations by the Board of Directors on the disclaimer of opinion made by the statutory
auditors in their report:

The statutory auditors have provided a disclaimer of opinion on the Company's financial statements for
the pertod ended March 31, 2022 The followmg table provides explanations by the Board of Direclors
on the busis of disclarmer of opimion provided by the statutory auditors in therr report. Refer o the
Auditors' Report sittached to the financial statemients for detailed remurks by the suditors,

ﬂ,l_ Auditor’s Remark Explanations
Extract from Auditors' Report The Management believes thal the linancial
statements reflect true and far view of the {inancial
Basis for disclaimer of opimion: position of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its

We draw attention to the matters performeance for the pertod from August 17, 2021 1o
described in Annexure A where March 31,2022 und the cash Nows for the suad period.
we are unable 1o obtam suflicient The Management's response for each of the items
und appropriate sudit evidence | constituting the basis of disclaimer of opinion issued
and the identified material by the auditors is hsted below.

misstatements eflect ol winch
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was nol uscertumable along with
the possible effect of undetected
misstatements, if any, which
could be both material and
pervasive to the Financial
Statements for the period ended
March 31, 2022, As a resull of
these maiters, we are unable o
determine as to whether any
adjustments that would have been
necessury and required to be

made in respect of:

Non-compliance with The Company's books of accounts melude the mam
maintenance ol books of FoxPro based accounting system which records the
accounls as r:qmﬂ_ﬁ'ﬂi h}' [ﬂw mxﬂm“iﬂg enlries ]‘R'.Iﬁll.:d m the 5}’&“.3!]] o i double-

entry basis. There are various other supplementary
systermns which complement the main system. Each
accounting entry is supported by relevant vouchers,
bills, supporting documents etc. duly approved. Thess
collectively form the books ol accounts (o be required
to be kept under the Companies Act, 2013, In
Muanagement's view, the Company has mamiamed
proper books of accounts as required (o be kepl under
the law.

The Company inherited the accounting sofltware from
Delence Accoumts Depurtment (DAD), which used to
maintain books of sccounts of the erstwhile OFB.
(niven the size, volume and geographical spread of the
urits transferred to the Company, including the short
penod of time [rom acquiring the business as part of
the corporatisation of the OFB to the reporting date,
the Compuny decided to continue with the existing
system of mamtenance of books of accounts. The
books ol accounts prepared by DAD have been
subjected to audit in the past by C&AG.

There are certain system limitations on generation of
reports such that certain stundard reports otherwise
dvailable m other systems gre not available [rom the
Company's present system. The Managemen! has
already mitiated necessary corrective action in this
regard by deciding 1o mmplement and migrate 1o
another system which is Tally with effect from 1°
April 2022, The Munagement expects to resalve the
various systemrelated issues identified by the
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auditors through migration (o the new system.

Balances acquired on business
reorganisation as on October 1,
2021 has not been subjected to
awdit.

The assets and liabilities of twelve production units and
four non-production units of erstwhile OFB related to
manufacture of ammunition and explosives (referred 10
a5 “busimess”™ heremalter) were transferred o the
Company as on October 1, 2021 on account of
corporatisation of the erstwhile OFB mio different
delence public seclor undertuking,

The assets and habilities of the business taken over by
the Company were obluined from the accoumnts prepared
by Defence Accounts Department (DAD) for each of
the units. Sinee the Company is a first tme adopled in
respect of the business transferred (refer note 39 of the
financial statements), corresponding Ind-AS
adjustments weere made 16 these accounts to align with
the Company's accounting policies, details of which
have been provided to the statutory auditors (including
branch auditors). Additionally, certain other
adjustments were recorded to the assets :md liabilities so
taken over 10 account for items not recorded m the
accounts prepared by DAD.

While there was no instruction or Oflice Memorindum
or stfutory requirement lo gel the openmg value of
assels und Habilities so transferred audited by any
competent authority, the details of all the opening
balunces so transferred. meluding the details of the
adjustments made lo the openmg balances have been
made available to the auditors for their verification

Reconcilhiation of inter-unit
immsactions and balances

The currenl accounting system is not configured 1o
automalically record inter-unit transactions
simultaneously by both the respective units. For
mstance, in case of sale of goods from one umt 1o
another umit of the Company, the goods which sre in
transit are not recorded until and unless the goods are
received by the receiving unil resulting in a mismateh in
the sales und purchases and the respective receivable
and puyable between the umts. The Management is
aware of such dilferences and has accordigly posted
appropriate accounting entries to reconcile the inter-
unil balances.
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The Munagement will [urther strengthen the process
ind implement controls m respect of inleér-umnit
transuctions und balances reconciliation by ensurmg
thut appropnate details of such trunsactions are
maintwined at the unit level in the system and timely
reconciliations ure performed and approved.

Process reluted to accounting of
purchases and trade pavable;
Process related to accounting of
sules und trade receivables

The issues highlighted by the auditors relate to
availability of system generated reports lnghlighting
detailed mvoice-wise and party-wise listing of
oulstanding  trade payable and trade receivables,
agreeing lo general ledger as well as confirmation and
reconciliation of these balances as at the reporting
date. Further, the 1ssues highlighted also melude the
tming of recording the purchases and the accuracy of
recording the purchases.

The current book-keepmg system has lmitations in
generting such detailed transaction wise reports. The
Management believes that the migration 1o the new
system should help in resolving this mutter. However,
the Company has separately mamlamed fransaction-
wise lists of aceounts receivable and accounts payable
duly reconciled to the General Ledger and have been
provided (o the auditors for verification,

The Company currently records the purchases based
om the acceptunce of matenal m hine wath the terms of
agreements agreed with the suppliers and therelore
believes that the current tuiming of recordmg of
purchases 15 approprate. In respect of the accuracy of
recording of the purchases, the Company followed
the controls configured in the book-keeping system
inherited rom erstwhile OFB. The Managemenl
believes that migration to the new system should
resolve this  issue. Additionally, the Management
will further strengthen the process and mplement
controls in relation to trade payables and  trade
receivibles with respect to third-party confirmation
and reconciliations, sub-ledger to general ledger
reconciliations.

Inventory

The issues highlighted by the auditors melude
commenls on existence, valuation mnd provision for
non-moving and slow-moving provision,
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The physical verification of inventory was carried out
by the Stock Verification Group of each umit as of 31
March 2022 and discrepancies, where identified, were
adjusted in the fnancial stalements afler necessary
approvils. The report of the physical verification has
been shared with the respective branch auditors. The
Munagement will further review and strengthen the
existing physical venification process and implement
addittonal controls; i reguired.

The auditors have highlighted that non-production
overneads hike selling and admimstrative overheads
are also considered for the nventory valuation
purposes. Further, the unrealised guin or loss in
respeet of mter-unil mventory 1S not identified :nd
accounted at ndividual mventory ol umt level. The
Management had assessed the impact of these
adjustiments during the inventory valuation process
and coneluded that the impact of such adjustments on
the valuation of inventory is nol material and therefore
the inventory carrying values were not adjusted. The
auditors also highlighted that the valuation of
mventory &l cost ornet realisable value, whicheveris
lower, 15 not appropriate. The Management has
performed a detailed ttem-wise valuation of each item
of inventory and determined that the mpact of items
where net realisable value was lower than the cost, is
not material to the inuncial statements.

The auditors have highlighted that the Company has
not provided for non-moving and slow-moving ilems
of mventory. However, the Company has identified
such items of mvenlory as on the transfer date of
October |, 2021 and the sume were provided for. The
details of such adjustments were provided to the
auditors for therr verification. The Mumagement
further assessed the position as of 31 March 2022 and
determined that there is no need for any additional
Provisiorn.

GST related accounting

The auditors have highlighted that the input tux credit
has been recognised in the financial statements bused
on the balances appearing m the Electrome Credit
Ledger (ECL) without reconciling the purchases as
per GST retum with those as per the books of
deeounts.
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The auditors have lghlighted that the mput tax credit
has been recogmsed o the inancial statements based
on the bulances appearing in the Electronic Credil
Ledger (ECL) without reconciling the purchases as
per GST return with those as per the books of
dicounts.

As per the current process followed by the Company,
the credit for mput GST was recogmised at the tme of
making payment (o the parly and not af the tme of
recording of the invoice. The Management
determined that the difference between the input tax
credil as per the GST Return and the books of sccount
15 only on account of the non-recording ol eredit at the
time of recordmg of the mvoice and therefore adjusted
the balances in the books accordingly. Due to the
limitation of the existing accountng system, GST
reconciliation between books of accounts and ECL
could not been camed out n detwl. However, the
Muanagement expects that the i1ssue will be resolved
once the Company migrates o the new systen.
Further, the Management will review and reconcile in
detail the list of purchases considered to file GST
returns and the corresponding credit recognised in the
books of sceounts.

Other matters as included in
Section Il of Annexure A
consisting of observalions as
mentioned m respective reports
1ssued by the branch auditors

Other matters highlighted by the branch auditors
mainly melude that details of physical verification of
property, plant and equipment have not been mude
available to them and proper records with respect to
property, plant and equipment have not been
maintined in the Fixed Assets Register maintained by
the Company.

The Management had carmed out a detailed [or
valuation exercise of the land, building and items of
plant and machmery through an mdependent third-
party agency. The Management 15 therefore
comfortable with the existence of tlems of property,
plant and equipment. The Management will design a
phased programme Lo cover physical venfication of
cach item of property, plunt and equipment over a
reasonable penod.

The Munagement has assessed the observations
highlighted by the auditors in respect of the
depreciation, useful hfe and the residual value and
determined that the mpact of any adjustments arising
out of the same, al the Company level, isnot material,
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Disclaimer of opimmion on miernal This 15 the first year of meorporation of the Company.
financial controls The Company is in the process of formalising and
enhancmyg its mternal control systems with respect to
financial reporting. It has already tnken certam
meusures m this regard post the reporting date. Ths
mecludes ereatmg a formal risk and controls matrix for
each of the businesses processes as they relile to
financial reporiing. The Company is also m the
process of hinng quahfied accountants at cach umit
level 1o fix the accounting processes and controls
reluted issues ateach unit level

21.
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COMMENTSONTHE SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT:

As per Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to
have at least 2 Independent Directlors. However, the Company doesn't have any
Independent Director on the Board. As such, the composition of the Board of Directors
of the company is not in Compliance with provisions of the Companies Act.2013 and
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

: Munitions India Limited a Defence Public Sector Undertuking and 100% owned by the

Government ol India 18 a Gove. Company, hence, 1ts Board of Directors of Mumtions India
Limited is appointed by the Ministry of Defence. Munitions India Limited has no role in the
appointment of its Directors. The same will be intimated 1o Ministry of Defence for the
appomtment of Independent Directors.

In the absence of Independent Directors, the Company has not constituted the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee as required under the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013
and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Guvernance for CPSEs.

Reply: Mumitions Indim Limited o Defence Public Sector Undertaking and 100% owned by the

Government of India 15 a Govt. Company, Henee, the Board of Directors of Mumtions India
Limited 15 appointed by Ministry of Defence. Munitions India Limited has no role in the
appomntment of ils Drectors. The same will be intimated o Mimistry of Defence for the
appomtment of Independent Directors.

Further, we are now going to constitute the Audit Commuitiee. Nomination und Remuneration
Committee, and Corporate Social Responsibility Commillee as required under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 ind DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

In the absence of Independent Directors, the Company has not complied with to clause
VI of Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding holding of a mecting of
Independent
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Reply:

Directors without the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the
management for the financial year 2021-22.

Munitions India Limited a Defence Public Sector Undertaking and 100% owned by the
Government of India isa Govt. Company. Hence, its Board of Directors of Mumitions India
Limifed is appointed by the Ministry of Defence. Munitions Indis Limited has no role in the
appointment of its Directors. The sume will be mtmmuted to Mmistry of Defence for the
appomntment of Independent Directors.

Further, after the appointment of the Independent Directors, the Company will comply with
clanse VII of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding holding of 4 meeting of
Independent Directors without the attendance of non-mdependent directors and members of
the management.

The Board of Directors of the Company was not duly constituted with proper balance of
Exccutive Directors and Non-Executive Directors for the first financial vear
commencing from 1 7th August, 2021 to 31" March.2022.

Munifions Indin Limited a Defence Public Sector Undertaking und 100% owned by the
Government of India is a4 Govi. Company, hence, its Board of Directors of Mumitions India
Lumted is appomted by the Mimstry of Defence. Munitions India Limited has no role in the
appointment of its Directors. The same will be miimated o Mimistry of Delence for the
appointment ol Independent Directors and non-executive Directors

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of Direclors will review internal & external risks of the busmess penodically so as to
take imely corrective action. In order to review its internal weaknesses and various external
threats perniodically, reports will be placed before the Board of Directors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
Smee the peniod August 17, 2021 to March 31, 2022 was the first pennod of operations of the
Company, CSR wis not applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION. PROHIBITIONAND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013.

An Internul Complamts Committee (1CC) ol Munitions India Limited has been constituted for
redressal of grievance of women staff members.

The followmg is a summary of sexual harussment complaints received and disposed of during
the period August 17,2021 to March 31,2022,

No. ofcomplamisreceved - Nil
No. of complamts disposed of - Nil
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26.

Z7.

28.

29,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company consistently endeavours 1o adopl the best pructices of Corporate Governance to
ensure lrmsparency, integrity and accountability in its functioning. The Corporate Governance
Report highlighting these endeavours is enclosed herewith (Annexure ),

FIXED DEPOSIT:
The Company has not mvited deposits from Pubhic under Section 2(31), 73 and 74 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARSOF EMPLOYEES:

There was no employee m the Compuny [alling under the category of employees required to be
reported under Section 197(12) of the Compantes Act, 2013, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of
the Compunies (Appomtment tnd Remumeration of Manageriul Personmel) Rules, 2014,

RESEARCH & DEVELOPEMENTS:

All units of company are huving R&D umits 1o ¢arry oit product mprovement and
indigenization projects by In-House R & D activities. Accordingly, number of R&D projects
huve been taken up by these centres und are al vanous stages ol completion. The total number of
projects is 89 with total project cost of INR 113,00 crore.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board thanks the Company's business partners for their support and confidence in
Mumitions India Limited and look forward 1o sustaining and building this mutually supportive
relutionship in the future as well.  The Board also gratefully acknowledges the support and
guidunce received from the Government of India, various Mmistries ol the Government of
India, particularly the Minmistry of Defence in the Company’s operations.  The Directors also
express therr grateful appreciation to the Department of Public Enterprises, Comptroller and
Auditor General of Indin, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Bankers, Patrons and
Customers of the Company. The Board records its deep appreciation for the enthusiastic and
dedicated work of the employees of Mumtions India Limuted. Their outstandmg team effort was
invaluable for the smooth fimctioning of the Company during the period under report.

Forand on behal Mol the Bouwrd of Directors

(RAVIKANT)
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN No.09283919

PLACE: Pune
DATE: 2122022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (ANNEXURE-I)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE PERIOD
AUGUST 17,2021 TO MARCH 31, 2022

A Pubhic Sector Enterprise of Government of India, Mumtions India Limited follows the extunt
Guidelmes on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Pubhic Enterpmises (DPE), Mmistry of
Heavy Industinies and Public Enterprises, Government of India

A Bnefreport on Corporate Governance 1s given below

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Munitions India Limited 15 committed to pood Corporate Governances supported by
appropriite transparent svstems and practice to protect, promote and safegunrd the interests of
all its stakeholders.

Munitions India Lomited 1s committed to act as a competitive, chent-Imendly and development-
ortented organization for manufacture of explogive nnd ammumition in the country and abroad.
It is also commuitled to providing client frendly best services to all its customers in a transparent
TIIHNTIET.

v BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

21 COMPOSITION OF BOARD:
The Bourd of Direclors of MIL compnses live Members, oul of which [owr are Functional
Directors and one 15 Govt. nominee of the Government of India. The Directors bring to the
Board a wide range of experience, knowledpge and skills,

The composition of the Board as on 317 March 2022 isas follows

Executiive Direciors

Shri Ravi Kant - Chamman and Managing Director
Shrt Debashish Banerjee - Dhrector/HR

Shni Sushanta Kumar Rout - Director/Operations

Shn Vivek Chandra Verma - Director/Finance

Non-Executive Directors
Shn Surendm Prasad Yadav - (ovl. Nominese Director

2.2 Other provisions as to Board and Committees
Details of Board Meeting held duning the period August 17,2021 to March 31,2022,

i During the penod August 17, 2021 to March 31, 2022, four Board Meetings were held on
20.08.2021,08,002021,01,10.2021 and 18.01.2022.
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Details of Number of Board Meetings attended by Directors, attendance at last AGM, number
of other Directorshup (in Public Limited Companies) / Committee Memberships held by

Direclors durmng the period August 17, 2021 to March 31,2022 are tabled below

The Board has complete aceess to all the relevant information within the Company enabling the

Bourd of Directors to take mformed and efficient decision.

Details of Number of Board Meetings attended by Directors, attendonce at last AGM, number
ol other Directorship (in Public Limited Companies) / Committee Memberships held by

Directors during the period August 17,2021 {0 March 31, 2022 are (abled below

8. | Mame ol Duector | Degignation | Board Meeting | Attendances | No, of other Mo ufoller
M, ' ot Lagt Diliectorship Commities
AGM 545 00 IMernbeighipe
31032022 a5 an 3170372022
Held | Attende Ay As
during d Chairma
the o Menibe
Tonure L
1. | M. Ravi Eant Chatrioan.
g 4 4 NA o o 0
hreetor
2. | Mc I]Ehmhuh Directos R & 4 A 0 o 0
Banerjee
3. | Mr. Sushanta DireetorOpe NA i
Eumar Rout Taliung L 4 0 0
4| Mr. Vivek Director 3 5 MA 0 o 0
Chandsa Vermn: | Fimance
5. | M SueEndre Govgrmmend M
Brazad Yadow Monmnes 1 o 2 i} 0
Digector
L None ol the Directors on the Board is amember of more than 1 0 Commuittees.
iL. Brel Profile ol new Directors

Shri Vivek Chandri Verma, DIRY Finance was appomted w.e.l. 01.10.2021 and Shn Surendra
Prasad Yadav is the Government Nommee Direclor with effect from 30.11.2021. He is workmy
as Jomt Secretary (LS), Ministry of Delence.

Code of Conduct

The Company is preparing a policy on Code of Conduet for the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel m alignment with the Company’s mission and objectives and aims at
enhancing ethical and transparent process inmanaging the affairs of the Company.

Z.3
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3.1

4.1.

i1

i
v,

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The following Committees will be constituted by the Board shortly which are as follows:-

o Audil Commities
» Nomination and Remuneration Committee
e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

ANNUALGENERALMEETING:
Since, this is the first penod of operations, no Annual General Meeting has been held so far.

DISCLOSURES:

There are no matenally signilicant transactions with related parties i.e. Promoters, Direclors or
the Management conflicting with the Company's mierest.

The Company hos adopted suppested items 1o be included in the Report on Corporate
Governance,

There s no inter-se relationship between Directors of the Company.

No penalbes or stnictures have been mmposed on the Company by any statutory suthorily, on any
mallerrelated to any puidelines issued by Government.

Additional disclosures as required under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs
issued by Department of Public enterprises

il

4.2

i

Hems of expenditure debited m books of accounts, which are not for the purpose of business
NIL

Expenses incurred which are personal i nature and mourred for the Board of Directors and Top
Management - NIL

Admimstrative and office expenses as a percentupe of total expenses for the penod August 17,
2021 toMarch 31, 2022, is4 %,

Information on adoption/non-adoption of non-mandastory requirements is given hereunder

Nop-mandatory Requirements

The Bourd

The Company ts headed by o Chairman and Managing Director. There are no Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
MNominution ind Remuneration Commuttee will be constituted shortly,

Sharcholders Rights
As ol now thereis no system ol sending half yearly [imancial performance meludmg summary of
the significant events in the last six months to shareholders.
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v,

vi.

Audit Qualification Auditors report annexed.
Training to Board Member 1t is need based.

Whistle Blower Policy

Whistle Blower Policy is being framed by the Company, wherein a Whistle Blowermechanism
will be in place for detection, prevention and reporting of fruud. This policy applies to any fraud
or suspected fraud mvolving employees as well as stakeholder, consultants, vendors, lenders,
hormowers, contractors, outside agencies doing business with the Company, employees of such
agencies, and/or any other parties with a business relationship with the Company.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Company commumcates with its shareholders through its Annual Reports, General
Meeting and Disclosures through website. All the importunt information pertuming to the
Compuny will be mentioned in the Annual Report for each period contaming inter alia Audited
Accounts, Direclors Report, Auditors Report, which 1s circulated to the members, and others
entitled therelo.
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SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT (ANNEXURE-I)

Form No. MR-3

[Pursuant to section 204(1 ) of the Companies Act, 201 3 and rule No. Y of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 [

FORTHE FIRSTFINANCIALYEAR COMMENCING
FROM 17/08/2021 TO 31/03/2022

To,

The Members,
MUNITIONSINDIALIMITED
C/o Ammumtion Factory Khadka,
Khadki Pune-411003
Maharashira

We have conducted the secretanal audit of the compliance of apphcable statutory provisions und the
adherence to good corporate practices by MUNITIONS INDIALIMITED (UZ9190PN2021GOI1203505)
herein after called the company for the first financial year commencing from 1 7% August, 2021 to 31" March,
2022, Secretanal Audit was conducted m o manmer that provided us a reasonable basig for evaluating the
vorporate conducts/statutory comphances and expressing our opimion thereon.

Based on venfication of the Company's books, papers, mmute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretanial audil, we hereby report that m our opimion.
the Company his, during the audit period for the first financial year commencing from 17 August, 2021 to
31" March, 2022 (Audit period) complied with the statulory provisions listed hereumder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compluince-mechamsm in place to Lthe extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made heremaller

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the first financial year commencing from 17" August, 2021 1o 31*March, 2022, according to
the provisions of:

(1) The Compames Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securilies Contructs (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the ules made thereunder; (NOT
APPLICABLE)

{11) The Depositonies Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
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(1v)

(v)

Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent ol Foretgn Drect Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (NOTAPPLICABLE)
The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ("'SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the company as the shares of
the company are not listed with stock exchanges during audit period).

The Secunties and Exchange Board ol India (Substantial Acgmsiion of Sharesand Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prolbition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

The Securities snd Exchunge Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Securities ind Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

The Securities and Exchanpe Board of India ( Registrars 1o an Issue and Share Transfer Apents)
Regulations, 1993 regardmg the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
The Securties and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998,

We have also examined compliance with the following laws which are especiully applicable o
the company:

The Water ( Prevention and Control of Pollulion) Act. 1974
The Air{ Prevention snd Control of Pollution) Act 1981

Solid Wastes Management Rules 2016 and E-Waste (Management) Rules 2016, issued under
The Environment (Protection) Act . 1986

Petroleum Act, 19345, The Indian Boilers Aet, 1923
The Public Liability Insurance Aet, 1991
The Atomic Energy Act, 1962 and the Atomic Energy (Radiation Protection) Rules 2004

SOMET approval comes under Foreign Trade ( Development and Regulation) Act, 1992
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9. Arms Act 1939 and Arms Rules 2016

1. State Excise Act (Spiril License) comes under Madhya Pradesh ActNo. 1l of 2018,
The Madhya Pradesh Motor, Spirt Upkar Adhimiyam, 201 8.

(1) Secreturial Standards 1ssued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

() The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) and the by the
company with the stock exchanges and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Regurement= 2015, (Not applicable to the company during Audit period)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regalations, Guidelines, Standuards, ete. mentioned above subject to the followmg observations:

L. As per Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to
have at least 2 Independent Directors., However the Company doesn't have any
Independent Director on the Board. As such, the compaosition of the Board of Dircctors of
the company is not in Compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

2. In the absence of Independent Directors, the Company has not constituted the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee as required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs,

i In the absence of Independent Directors, the Company has not complied with to clause VII
of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding holding of a mecting of Independent
Directors without the attendance of nop-independent directors and members of the
management for the financial vear 2021-22.

We further report that:

The Bourd of Directors of the Company was not duly constituted with proper balance ol Execulive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors for the first financial year commencing from [ 7th August, 2021
1031° March, 2022. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
pertod under review were carmied oul in comphance with the provisions ol the Acl.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detamled notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, barmg few urgent matters, and a system exists for
seekmg and obtaming further mformation and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meanmg ful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision was carnied through while the dissenting members’ views were caplured and recorded
as part of the minutes,




We further report that there were adequate sysiems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size und operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that durmg the audit penod the company had no major events having a bearimg on
Company’ alfairs in pursuance of the above referred laws rules, regulations, guidehnes, standards ete.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter ol even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an

mtegral part of the Reporl.

Place: Ghaziabad ForA. K. Rastogi & Associates
Date: 27/ 10/ 2022 Company Secretaries

1CSI Unigue code No S2020UP 724400

(ALK RASTOCGH
PROPRIETOR
FC5no 1748
CPNo.:22973
UDIN: FODI748D0O0 1 367629
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To,

ANNEXURETOSECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

The Members.

MUNITIONS INDIALIMITED
C/O Ammumition Factory Khadka,
Khadki,

Pune4 11003

Maharashira

Ourreport ofeven date is 10 be read along with this letier.

1.

2

0.

Maintenance of seeretarul record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility 1s to express an opimon on these secretanal records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriale Lo obtain reasonable
assurance about the comrectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The venfication was
done on test busis 1o ensure that correct [acts are reflected in secretanal retords. We believe that
the processes and pructices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for ouropmion.

We have not verified the correciness and appropnateness of financial records and books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtamned the Management representation about the comphance
oflaws, rules and regulutions and happening ol events ete.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards 18 the responsibility of management. Our exumination was limated o the verification
of procedures on test basis,

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the compuny nor
of the eflicacy or eflfectiveness with which the mumugement has conducted the aflairs of the
company.

Place: Ghaziabad For AL K. Hastogi & Associates
Date: 27" October, 2022 Compiny Secretaries

1CS1 Unigue code No.S202001P724400

(AK. RASTOGH
PROPRIETOR
FCSnw. 1748
CPNe.22973

LTI FOO1 748D 1 367629
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I THE COMPANY:

Mumitions India Limited (MIL) 18 one of the 07 recently formed Delfence Public Sector
Undertakimgs, located m the historiec city of Pune. MIL, the India's biggest munufacturer and
market leader is engaged mn Production, Testing Research & Development and Marketing of
comprehensive range of ammunition & explosives lor Army, Navy, Air Force, Para-Military
Forcesand Police Forces.

MIL's vision 18 to provide competitive edge to the Armed Forees by equipping them with modern
and quality battlefield ammunition. MIL's mission is to be a promment patron of Atma Nirbhar
Bharat Abhiyan and Make m India Intiative m Ammumtion sector. To establish and retain
leadership in’ domestic market as the most teliable und preferred partner ol our delence and
homeland security agencies and develop the group mto an internutionul class ammumition
manufacturing. To create and strengthen Brand MIL by providing supenor value for money and
meeting the expectations of stakeholders. To be a learning organization with global competencies,
commitlled to creativity and imovation.

2. STRENGTHSOFMIL:

2.1 Someof themyjor modernization and capacity sugmentation projects are as under:

A] PINAKA: The production capacity of Multi Barrel Rocket System PINAKA was augmented
from 1000 to 2500 rockels per annum with :@n mvestment of Rs 572 Crin MIL factories. HEPF
Trichu, OF Chandu, OF Dehuroad. and OF tarsi sre engaged m the production of this Rocket.

B] MANGO PROJECT: The AMK-339 FSAPDS (MANGO) As per the requirement of Army,
the capacity for munufacture of 125 mm FSAPDS smmumition, the main ammumition for Tank T-
72 and T-90, is being set up us per the technology given by Russia. The project 1s being set up with
an investment of over Rs 1300 Cr.

Improving the lethality of the smmunition has always been the requirement. Accordingly, the
manufacturing fcilities for production of HMX, a very lethal explosive, has been set up at OF
Bhandara,
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C] 30 mm BMP-11 Ammunition: Ordnance Factory Khamarta has indigenously designed the
assembly lme for manufucture of 30 mm BMP-1 ammunition. The plant was [abricated by Indian
mdustry based on the know how provided by OF Khamaria. This 14 the shinmg example of hund holding
of Indiin industry by OFK indeveloping the new technology,

2.2  INDIGENIZATIONAS PARTOFATMANIRBHAR BHARAT:

A| Drone Delivered Ammunition (Delivery System with Homing & Guidance)

It is an alternate delivery system of ammumnition to keep our manned airerafl away from enemy's long-
range missile & weapons near to battlefield.

B| 155mm Smuart Ammunition:

155 mm smurt ammunition enibles the capability enhancement of Artillery guns by allowing precision
strikes and simullaneously reducing collateral damage.

C] 70mm Rocket for Air foree:-

The 70mm Rockels are used prmarily m the air to ground role, These rockets cm perform amti-
personnel, wir to ground suppression and illumination.

The major component of 70mm rocket are:

1) Warhead

1) Propulsion system

m)  Fuze: Pomt detonating impact fuze:

23 Skilled Work Force

24  Manufacturing and Sales Expenience of Ammunitions for more than 150 years
25  Huge Manufaclurmg Capacities

26  Availability of Surge Capacity

2.7  Leadership position in Domestic Ammunition Market

2.8  Esiablished Supplier Base

2.9 Established Product Range

The units under MIL have a proven integrated base [or production of Small, Medium & High calibre

ammunition, Mortars, Rockets, Hond Grenades ete. with in-house manulacturing of Initiatory
Compositions, Propellants and High Explosives forover 150 years.

MIL with its 12 manufactunng umis provide:
=  Abroad and versatile production base with multi-technology capabilities.
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State-of-the-art manufacturme facilities.

Large pool ol skilled and professionally qualified manpower and managenal personnel.

Strict adherence o quality standards (sl unmits are 1ISO-9000 certified).

Original as well as adaptive Research & Development to make need-base refinement and

modifications.
A strong base for industrial traming & testing

MIL has the proven capability to cater o urgent and emergent needs of the Armed Forces and Pam
Military Forces during wartime and emergencies.

3.

EE |

32

i3

14

35

High Overheads

Legacy Systems

Cumbersome procurement process

Poor R&D base in umits due to dependence on DRDO for R&D pre-corporatization

As MIL was carved out from the erstwhile Ordnance Factory Board setup, along with the robust

framework of munufacturmyg of Ammumition & Explosives, MIL has mherited certiin pre-
existing weakness 1o from the past.

Supply Chain management (Procurement) is one such area where MIL 15 1o excel by adapting to current
murkel trends in global supply chain by introducing industry standurd measures for inventory control
such as Just-in-Tine (JIT), EOQ, reducing the mventory holding costs.

Al present the lead tme for procurement of raw materials 18 very long owing o lengthy procurement
process from Tender Aoating to Final raw muterial acceptance. These time lines can be further refined o
be shorter & efficient.

The work load orders placed on MIL from its two major customers, Le., the Armed Forces and Ministry
of Home Alffairs are not fixed on long term basis leading to uncertainty of workload and targets for
production.

Being over 150 years old organisation in Defence sector under Govt. of India, the transition [rom
Government setup lo corporate style of working s difficult for s employees

4.

4.1

OPPORTUNITIES:

Proposed Modernization Plans:
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Mumitions India Lunited has given spectal thrust o export driven by favourable government policies &
large business opportunities. Afler starting its business operation MIL has progressed rapudly in field off
export and bagped export ordeér worth more thuan 600 crores in first six months.

Mumitions India Limited further plans to increase its tum over by expanding the customer base which is
possible by aggressively working in the area of export.

One of the key factors for enhancing the business opportunities is modernization of fucilities available
with MIL. Afier starting it5 busmess operation MIL has started working agzressively in the area of
modernization and has concluded the contracts for; -

1) BMCS manufacturing plants at Ordnance Factory Nalanda
2) Single base propellant plant at Ordnance Factory Bhandara

While the project for FSAPDS tank ammunition is already in advance stages of completion following
moderntzation planis are in pipelines: which are essential for achieving the desred growth.

o PLANT & MACHINERY FACTORY

Research Department Explosive or Royal Ordnance Factory, Bhandara
Demolition Explosive (RDX) Plant (OFBa)

Relurbishment of Nitro-glycerme (NG) plant
Integrated Sulphuric Acid Concentration- Nitrig
Acid Concentration (SAC-NAC) Plant for
production of Strong Nitric Acid 98.5% min
RDX Compound Plant

Nitrocellulose (NC) Plant

Substance C-1 Manufactuning Plant

New leg for Ballistite (BT) and Rocket (RK)

Propellant Plant

Nitroguamdine (NIGL) Plant Ordnance Factory, Nalanda
(OFN)

Nitrocellulose (NC) Plant Augmentation

Nitrocellulose (NC) Plant Ordnance Factory, ltarsi

Nitroguanidine (N1GL) Plant

Ball Powder Plant
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Trinitrotoluene ('TNT) Plant High Explosive Factory, Khadki
(HEF)
De-Nitration ( DEN) 'lani
Nitrocellulose (NC) Plant Cordite Factory, Aruvankadu
(CFA)
Cartndee 9 mm ball Ordnance Factory, Varangaon
4.2 Following actions have been tuken at MIL for Export promotion.
»  Export Promotion Cell formed at MIL
»  Response ime against enguines reduced considerably
»  Regstered with EXIM Portal and DGFT
»  All Channel Partners of erstwhile OF B are on-boarded
» New Channel Partners added -8 Nos
»  Finalizwtion ol Product: Country™ Matrix:
# Inaddition to existing matrix, new geographies and products have beenidentified
# MIL participuted in Egyplian Defence Exhibition (EDEX-2021) held at Cuiro, Egypt m Nov-
Dec, 2021 and Eurosatory-2022 held at Panis o Jun, 2022,
4.3 MIlLplans to have an aggressive Export Promotion strategy with following actions.
» Expansion of Geography by aggressive marketimg m identified target countries.
» Expansion of Exportable Product base
= Continuously monitormg Olfset Opportunities
# Explonmg possibilities for becommg part of International Supply Cham of Ammunition
Components, Explosives and Sub-assemblies ol ammumition.
» Participition in exhibitions like Defexpo-2022 for exhibiting MIL products and production
capahilities to perspective customers
4.4 Achievements:
7 MIL has bagged export orders of INR 600 Crores since its formation in Oet, 2021,
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> MIL aims to get export orders from 5 new Countries in 2022-23,

= MIL aims to get export order of new Products in 2022-23,

> Post corporatization, freedom and flexibility to form Joint Ventures and enter inio co-
production agreements

- Post Corporatization, more Aulonomy m Cperations

- Present Geo-Political Seenario/Environment

4.5 Global Opportunities:

Post corporatisation of Ordnance Factories outreach of MIL is not just restiictiéd to the Armed forees
and security agencies under the Ministry of Home Affiirs but now there lies a huge opporiunity lo reach
out to the vast global market, 1.¢.. the secunty forces of foreign counines.

4.6  Accelerated Technological Innovations & Advances:

Rapid technical advancements and modermisation of manufacturing plants are increasing industry
productivity. allowing suppliers to provide a wider range of producis and services. This may enable
Mumitions India Limited to expand its product portfolio dramatically.

5 RISKS (THREATS:

5.1 Openmg up ol Indian Defence Sector (o private players
5.2 Emergence of Competitors m Domestic Market

5.3 lssue of RFPs for items (which were previously supplied by us on nommation basis) to various
domestic players

5.4 Towl dependance on DRDO/DGOA for prool ranges.

5.6 Safety & Health of Employees:

Munitions India Limited deals with major safety threats to its workers and employees as the
organisation deals in ammunition filling and manufacturing of chemicals & explosives which are
highly volatile and may sometime have unpredictable behaviour.

5.7  Private Sector in Defence Production:

With the GOI's decision of 74% FDI in the field of Defence Manufacturing, a significant number of
Private Companies have now entered into the Defence Production sector who enjoy ease of working
with liberty in taking dynamic decision in absence of the restrictive admimstrative systems and policies
being [aced by the DPSUs.




6. INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMSANDTHEIRADEQUACAY:

The Company has un adequate imternal control and Internal Audit System commensurate with s size
and niture of business. The Internal Audit Report are reviewed by Statutory Auditors of the Company as
wellas by the Government Auditors.

7. CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY:

As per relevant provisions of the Company Act, 2013, 2021-22 bemg the first penod of operations
Corporate Social Responsibilily is nol applicable to the Company.
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF DPE GUIDELINES ON

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

To,
The Members,
Mumitions India Limmted,

Pune. Maharashim

We have examined the compliance of Conditions of Gudelmes on Corporate Governance for
Munitions India Limited (CIN: U29190PN2021GO1203505) here afier called as Company us
required 1o be done under Guidelines on Comaornate Governance [or Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 1ssued by DPE withrespect to your Company for the Fimancial Year 2021-22,
The comphance ol Guidelines on Corporate Governance 15 the responsibility ol management. Our
examination was hmited o the procedures and implementation thereol, adopled by the company for
ensuring the comphance of Guidelmes on Corporale Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on financial statements of the company.
In our opmion and to the best of our mformation and according 1o the explanation given 1o us by the
munagement, we certily that the company has complied with all the provisions of DPE Guidelines on
Corporate Governance as referred above durmg the Financial Year 2021-22 except for the matter
specified below:
1. The Company has not complied with paragraph 3.1.1 of the Guidelines on Corporate
Governanee for Central Public Sector Enterprises with regard (o the Composition of the Board
as the company has no Independent Directors on its Board.
2. The Company has not complied with paragraph 3.4.1 and 3.4.2 of the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises with regard to the Code of Conduct
for all Board Members and senior Management of the company.
3. The Company has not constituted  the Audit Committee  as provided in paragraph 4.1
of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Scector Enterprises as the
Company does not have any Independent Director on the Board.
4. The company has not constituted its Remuneration Committee as provided in paragraph
5.1 of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises as the
company does not have any Independent Director on the Board.
1. We further certify that such comphance 15 neither an assurunce as to the future viability of the
company nor the efliciency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the alfairs ol the
campiany.
ForA. K. Rastogi & Associales
Company secretaries
1CS1 Unigue code No S2020UP7 24400

(A.K. RASTOGI)

PROPERIETOR

FCS no 1748

Dates 26/10/2022 CP No.-22073
Place: Ghaziabad UDIN: FOO1 T4RDOO1357905
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NoMIL/HR/BC&E Dated: 16/012023

Certificate for Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

It is hereby declared that all members of the Board of Directors of Munitions India Limited have
affirmed complinnee with Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for the Finuncial Year 2021-22,

(RAVI KANT)
Chairman and Managing Director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PG BHAGWAT LLP HEAD OFFICE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Suites 101-102," Orchard'
LLPIN: AAT-9949 Dr. Pan Marg, Baner, Pune - 45

Tel (O): 020 - 2729077 TIH1T73
Email: pgbi@pebhagwatca.com
Web: www.pegbhagwatca com

INDEPENDENTAUDITORS' REI'MORT
To the Members of MUNITIONS INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the Financial Statements of Munitions India Limited (“the Company™. which
includes the Head Office located at Pune, Maharashtra and fifieen branches), which compnse the
Balunce Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (meludmg Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes m Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period
{1.e. [rom August 17 2021 w March 31, 2022) then ended, snd notes to the Fmaneml Sunements,
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory mformation (hereinafler
referred to as “the Financial Staternents™) m which are included the Retums of fifteen bronches for the
period on thut date andited by the branch suditors of the Compuny's branches as stuted below,

Significant branches:

Srnn | Branch Namic Branch Liocation
1 | Ammumition Factory Khadia, . Pune, Maharashira
) Highly Explesive Factory, Tune Pumne. Maharaskira
3 Ordnance Fadtory Dehuroad | Purie, Makarashira |
4 Ordnancs Factory Khamaria | Khamaris, Jabalpur, Madhva 'radesh |
3 | Cordite Factory Arovankody . Ooty. Tamilnadu
& High Energy Projectile Faciory Tiruchirappalli Tiruchirappalli, Tanulnsdu
7 Opdnonce Footory Bhapdams Bhandagy, Moharashieg
2 | Ordnance Factory Chanda Chandrapur, Maharashtra
9 | Ordnange Factory Balangir ‘Bolangir, Odisha
I | Ovdoonce Faclory larsd limesi, Madhyn Prodesh
Il Ordnance Factory Walanda Malends, Bihar
12 | Ordnance Foctory Vamngaon Varangaon, Maharashira

Other mmmatena] branches:

Srno | Branch Name - Branch Location 1
13 | Ordnance Factory Instituie of Leeming, Khamaria Khamariae, Jabalpur, Madhya
Pradezh
14 | Regional Conlrollerof Safety. Pune | Pune. Maharashtra
15 | National Institute of Defence Production. Ambajhari | Nagpur, Maharoshtro
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We do not express an opmion on the sccompanying Fmancial Statements of the Company. Because of
the sigmificance of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Diselaimer of Opinion section of our report and
based on the consideration of reports of branch auditors on Branch Financial Stalements, we have not
been able o obtam sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audil opinion on these
Financial Statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
We draw attention to the matiers described m Annexure A where we are unable to obtain sufficient and
approprate audit eévidence and the identified matenal misstatements effect of which was not
asceriainable along with the possible effect of undetected misstatements, 1 any, which ¢ould be both
material and pervasive to the Fmancial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2022, As a result of
these matters, we ure timable lo determme as to whether any adjustments that would huve beennecessary
H:Ildreqmmd to be made inrespectof;
non-comphance with maintenance of books ol accounts as required by law,
- balances of assels and liabilities acquired as 4 result of business reorgamsation which were not
subjected to any audit,
- Reconciliation of inter-unit transactions and balances
- Purchases and trade payable
- Sales und trade receivable
- Inventory.
- GST related secounting and
- Othermatters as included n section 1T ol Annexure A consisting of observations as mentioned m
respective reports issued by the brunch auditors
We were engaged to conduct our audit in sccordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in
the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stalements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit
of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities i accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that we could not obtuin sufficient and appropriate audit evidence which provide
4 basis for our disclaimer of opimon.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Bulanees acquired on Business Reorganisationas on October 1. 2021

We draw attention (o Note 39 of the financial statements, regarding the following aspects of balances of
assets and liabilities as on October 1, 2021 which is the 'Appointed Date' for the purpose of business
reorganisution, acquired on account of business reorganisation:

Durmg the course of andil, the management has made adjustments lo balances acquired as a part
business reorganisation as on October 1, 2021 on account of Ind AS adjustments as well as certiin
correction entries pertaining to the period prior to October 1, 2021, Refer noie no 39 (o Financial
Stutements showmg net debit mapact of Rs. 4.233.87 Crore to equity. The balunces incorporated for the
purpose of iccounting are after considering impact of abovementioned adjustment entries.

2. Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits reluted obhizations
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We draw attention to Note 40 of the [mancial statements regarding recognition of employee benefils
CXPEnSes.

As per information and explanation given by the management and based on the consideration of the
audit reports issued by respective branch auditors, provision for employee benefits as per IND-AS 19
namely, provision [or gratuity, leave encashment and other retrement benelits and allownnces ete., are
not recognized in the finuncial stalements as on March 31, 2022, smee these are obligations of the
Central Government and not of the Company vide the Ministry of Defence's Office Memorandum (OM)
No. [(5)/2021/OF/DP(PMlg-V)/02 dated September 24, 2021,

3. Tax expenses

We draw attention to Note 31 of the financial statemenls regardmg tax expenses recognised m the
[inancial stalements.

The management has made provision lor meome lax expense (current ax) us per provisions of Income
Tax Act 1961 without considenng vanous disallowances specilied under the Act including Section 40,
Section 438 elc. as necessary details were not available. Further in the opimion of the management,
effect ol such disullowances if uny would not be material (o the linaneinl statements. The Company has
made provision for current lax under Section | 15]B of the Income Tax AcL. 1961 for which MAT Credit
Entitlement has been recognised as deferred tax asset. Deferred tax asset has also been recognised in
respecl ol unabsorbed depreciation.

4. Non compliances related to appomiment of directors and constilution of audit conmmuittee.

We draw attention o Note 41 of the financial statements regurdime certain non-compliances related 1o
appomtment of directors and constitution of Audit Committee. As informed by the management, the
Compuny 1% in the process of making nécessary comphiances and such complianees could not be made
due to pendency of certain admimistrative procedures. The managemen! believes that these non-
comphances would not result m matenial adjustment to the finuncial staternents.

We further draw attention to the following matters reporied in the branch audit report

5. Unusable and obsolete stock as on October 1, 2021 (As reported in the branch audit report of
Ordnunee Factory Dehuroad)

We draw altention to Note 8 of the brunch hnuncial stalements regarding accounting treatment of
unusable and obsolete stock acquired on October |, 2021, Based on the assessment performed by the
management, unusable and obsolete mventory items as on October 1, 2021 which mamly consisted of
raw materiul and work in progress, amounting to Rs. 30.36 crore were written down (o i1s estimated
serap value at the rate of 10% 1.2 Rs. 3.37 crores. It was mformed 1o us that the branch has also
nominated the aforessid matfer to the Board of Enguiry (BOE) for confirmation of management
assessment that the stock 15 unusable/ obsolete and 1ts disposal plan. Our opmion is nol modified in
respect of this matter.

Note & as descnbed above commesponds to Note 9A to these Financial Statements.

6. Unusable and obsolete stock as on October 1, 2021 (Asteported in the branch auditreport of Highly
Explosive Factory, Pune)

We draw attention to Note 8 of the branch fimincial statements regarding accounting treatment of
Unusable und obsolete stock acquired on October 1, 2021. Based on the assessment performed by the
minagement, unusible and obsolete inventory items as on October 1, 2021 which mumly consisted of
raw malerial and work in progress, amounting 1o Rs. 3.39 crore were written down to its estimated serap
vitlue at the rate of 10% 1.2, Rs. 0.40 crore. It was informed to us that the branch has also nominated the
aforesaid matter to the Board ol Enguiry (BOE) for conlirmation of management assessment that the
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stock 15 unusable/ obsolete and its disposal plan. Our opimon 1s not modified mrespect of this matter.
Note 8 as described above corresponds to Note 9B to these Fmancial Statements.
Our opinion is nol modified in respect of these matlers.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Direclors 18 responsible for the other information. The other imformation
comprses the Directors’ report, bul does not include the Fmancial Statements and our auditor's report
thereon.)

Due 1o the possible effects of the matter deseribed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion parngraph
above, we are unable to comment on the Other Information referred above.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanece for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Bourd of Directors 1s responsible [or the matters stated in section 134(5) ol the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance (mcluding other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted m India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specilied under section 133 ol the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also meludes
mamienance of adequate accounting records m accordance with the provisions of the Act for
sufeguarding of the assets of the Compuny and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularties; selection and application of appropnate accounting policies; makmg judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, mplementation and mamtenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Stalements that
mvea true and fur view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial Statements, the management 15 responsible for assessmg the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and
using the gomg concern basis of accounting unless management either miends to hguidate the
Company or (o cease operations, orhis norealistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finuncial Statements

Our responsibility 15 1o conduet nn audit of the entity's limmceial statements in accordance with
Standards on Auditing issued by 1CAT and to issue s auditor's report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence 1o provide a basis for an audit opimon on these [inunciul
stalements,

We ure independent of the entity in accordiance with the ethical requirements in aceordanee with the
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by 1CAl und the ethical requirements as prescribed under the
laws and regulations applicable to the entity.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial mformation of ffteen brunches, whose inancial information reflect total
assets of Rs 11,531.93 Crore and net assets of Rs 8,042.28 Crore as at 31 March 2022, (otal revenue of
Rs. 3.058.06 Crore, total comprehensive tncome (compnsing of (loss)) and other comprehensive
meome) of Rs (10.22) Crore and net cash mflows amountmg 1o Rs 385.68 Crore for the year ended on
that date, as considered m the financial statements. These linancial mformation have been audited by
other auditors (branch auditors) whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our
opmion on the Financial Stutements insofur as it relutes o the amounts and disclosores meluded m
respect ol these branches and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Actim 20 [aras
itrelites to the aforesaid branches, 1s based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Ouropimon isnot modified imrespect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

I. As required by the Compantes (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”™/ “CARO™) 1ssued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, 1o be included m the
Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by respective branch auditors for fifteen branches included in the
finzneial stitements of the Compuny, we give in the Annexure B; a stntement on the matters
specified m paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, (o the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section [43(3 ) of the Act. wereport that:

a)  As described in the Basis for Disclimer of Opinion puragraph above, we sought but were
urible to oblain all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audil.

b) Due to the possible effects of the mutter descnibed in the Basis for Disclaimer ol Ommion
paragraph above, we are unable to stule whether proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our exammation of those books.

¢) The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under Section 143
(%) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt wath by us

mpreparing thisteport.

d) Due to the possible effects of the matler described in the Basis for Disclammer of Opimion
puragraph above, we are unable to state whether the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes m Equuty dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
aceounl

e) Due to the possible effects of the matler described in the Basis for Disclammer of Opmion
paragraph above, we are unable to state whether, the aforesmid Ind AS linancial stutementis
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act
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() The matter described in the Basis for Disclumer of Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functionmg of the Company.

£) The provisions of this clause i.e. section 164 (2) of the Act is notapplicable to the government
company videnotification no. GSR 463(E), dated 5" June 2015.

h) The reservation relating to the maintenunce of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opmion paragraph and in Paragraph 2 (b) ubove.

1) With respect to the adequacy of the mternal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operuting elfectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in
“Amnexure C7.

1) The provisions of this clause Le. section 197 of the Aet 15 not applicable to the government
company vide notification no, GSR 463(E), dated 5 June 2015,

k) With respect to the other matters to be meluded m the Auditor's Report in accondance with Rule
Il of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
mformation and according to the explanations given to us and bused on the consideration of the
audit reports ol branch auditors:

(I)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Finumeial Statements - Refer Note 37 to the Financinl Statements, However, based on
the consideration of audit reports of branch auditors, we are unible (o oblained suflicient
and appropriate sudit evidence wath respect 1o completeness of the relevant disclosure.

(1) Due to lack of availability of suflicient and approprate nudit evidence regarding long
term contracts having matenal foreseeable losses if any, we are unable to state whether
the Compuany has made provision Tor such losses.

(i) There were noamounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed m the notes o the accounts to the financial statements, if any, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premmum of any other sources or kind of fumds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), mcluding foreign entities (“Imtermedianes™). with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide
uny cunrantee, security or the hike on behalf ol the Ultimate Beneliciunes.

{b) The management hasrepresented (o us, thal, W the best ol its knowledge und beliel,
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other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts to the Financial Statements, ifany, no
funds have been received by the Compuany from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understandimg, whether recorded m writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or mdirectly, lend or mvest in
other persons or entities dentified in any mamner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultinuite Beneficiunies™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
hehalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on the information and explanation given 1o us and audit procedures perlormed
as considered reasonable and approprate in the circumstinces and based on the
consideration of the reports of brunch auditors, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us 1o believe that the representations made by the management and as mentioned
under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (1v)(b) above contain any material misstatement.

(1)  The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the period. The provisions of
sub section (1) and (4) of section 123 of the Act are not applicable Lo the government
company vide notification no, GSR 463(E), dated 5" June 2015.

(11) Therequirement o the use ol accounting software formaintiinmg Company's books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility s deferred 10
financial years commencing on or after Apnil 1, 2023, therefore reporting under Rule
H{g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for financial year
ended on Muarch 31,2022,

I, Asrequired by section 133(5) of the Act, on the basis of such check of the books and record of
the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation
mven to us, we give in the "Annexure D" a statement on the directions and additional directions
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, for the Company.

For
PGCBHAGWATLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101HEW/W 100682

Abhijit Shetye

Partner
Membership Number: 151638
UDIN: 23151638BGOGEI3Z393
Place-Pune
Date  December31,2022
PG BHAGWATLLP
Chartered Accountants

LLPIN: AAT-9949
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Annexure A - Section ]

Annexure A
(As referred to in Basis of Disclaimer of Opinion Para
in main audit report)

Section | - Common Observations
Based on the reading of report of branch auditors and communication received from for all brunches,
except otherwise stated, durme the course olaudit, we havenoted following observations;

A, Maintenance of books of sccounts

The Company has mamtamed 118 books of accounts al head office and branches (mdividually
referred Lo as 'Unit’) on Fox Pro based accounting systems/ soflware, comprising of Inventory
Package. Cash Compilation report (CC02), Production, Planning and Control (PPC) Package,
Punching Media. Commereial Accounts (COMMAC) ete. and various excel spreadsheets which
are nol Imtegrited with each other and as such no comprehensive report or tmal balance 15
available from these systems for preparation of financial statements at umt level. At unit level,
Output from respective sofiware are used o update excel spreadsheets which are considered as
busis forpassing accounting entries m COMMAC. Frequency ol updating excel spreadshests and
passing accounting entries in COMMAC s neither delined nor followed umformly. In case of
muny units, most of the entries are passed al year end. Also, internal controls meluding maker
checker principles, access controls 1o avoid unauthorised changes ele. around the entire process
of mamlenance of books of accounts and preparation of financial statements could nol be
identified and verified. The financial stalements at umt level are prepared based on COMMAC.
There 15 no consolidated dutabase at Head Office 1o facilitute preparation and review ol company
level financial stalements. In absence of such common datibase, Financial Statements of the
Company have been prepared by consolidating individual unit level financial statements.

Various accounting software referred above do not provide the conventional reports such as
general ledgers and sub ledgers (for debtors, creditors and employees) giving the date wise details
of transactions for the period under audit including openmg and closing balances, for the purpose
ol vertfication. Due (o lack of mlegration among the accountmg systems/software, the accuracy
and completeness of all the transactions cannot be venfied.

Pomuary recordmg of trunsactions does nol take place m the accounting software being used by
the umts for preparation of unit leve! financial statements by following the double entry system of
accounting, further giving party wise details ol transactions. Therefore, cash book / bank book /
purchase register / sules register / journal entmes ele. m dile wise ind transaction wise formail
could not be generated from the accounting software being used.

B.  Accrual basis ofaccounting
Present accountmg system and related processes implemented by management are nol designed
to maintain books of accounts on accrual basis. The management has passed certain adjustment
entries o prepare the fimuncial statements on acorual basis to the extent possible. However,
completeness ol accrual basis ol accounting as on March 31, 2022 could not be ensured due 1o
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inherent limitation ef accounting system.

For mstunce, as observed by the branch auditors ol Ordnance Factory Khamana, accounting of
transactions other than related to poods viz accounting of services related to vendors/contractors
of Matertal Handling for loading /unloadmg/shifting transportation and Freight, Bills of Civil
Waork or Mamienance work or Contractual Labour and hired vehicle gre made at the time ol
processimg of payment instead of recordmyg such transachons on availing respechive services as
per terms of the agreement entered into with such vendors.

Balances acquired on Business Reorganisation as on October 1,2021

The formation of the Munition India Liited ("The Company') 1s incorporated vide Memorandum
of Understumding dated 29th September 2021 by Ministry of Defence as purt of the restructurimg
and corporatisation of the Ordnance Faclory Board (heremafier referred (o as 'Business
Reorganisation') into seven different public sector undertakings.

Balances of assets and habilities acquired by the Company on account of Business
Reornramsation as at October |, 2021, are not subjected to audit from miny mdependent audiloror
Comptroller and Audit General (CAG) of India. These balances were taken from the unaudited
books of accounts of respective uniis as on September 30, 2021 as mamtained by Defence
Aceounts Department (DAD) for which detailed breakup of these assels and habilities could not
be made available 1o auditors for the purpose of audit. Therefore, there s no comfort on the
opening balunces and consequentially on the closing balances.

Reconcilintion of inter-unit transactions and balances

The mansgement does not have mtemal control in place for reconciliaiton of inter-unit
transactions and balances on regular bagis. The differences in inter-umit balances between the
branches were presumed to be on account of Goods i Transit (GIT) and accordingly the
sccounting effects were given m the books of accounts to tally the mter-unit balances. The
detniled transacthion wise breakup of reconciling items (mcludmg subsequent recepts thereol)
could not be made available to the auditors for verification. Further there is no process of
obtaining mter-unit balance confirmation and timely accounting of reconciling differences.

Hence, we are nol able to comment on the completencss and accuracy of the accounting effects
miven mrespect of the same m the finuncial statements.

Process related to accounting of purchases and trade payable

Based on the reading of reports issued by other brunch nuditors, it was observed that the purchases
are booked when the goods are received 1n the factory and mspection 1s complete. However, it
was ohserved that the cost at which purchases are booked in the accounting system are nol
necessarily in agreement with actual cost of the goods as mentioned in purchase invoice, Further
it was observed that rate as per purchase order is not matched at the ime of booking purchases of
goods and many a times the purchases are booked ut the historical weighted average cost ol the
malerial and not at the actual price as perpurchase mvoice.

While makmg the payment, the payment is made at the actual purchase price as per purchuse
mvotee. At the ime ol making the puyment, aprogram 18 required to be run to account for the
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price difference. However, in-case of one of the branches, this program was not run resulting into
misstatement of purchases and creditors. Impact of such cases i any on the financial statements
cannot be ascertained. Smilarly, this will have a correspondmg effect on the mventory valuation.
In view of the same, proper reconding of purchases and payables could not be ensured.

Stmiilarly, the accounting system does not provide party wise and mvoice wise list of trade
payable balances meluding advances to supplier duly tallying with the general ledger balunce,
Further, management has not obtained balance confirmation from supphers and therefore nol
performed reconcilmtion as at March 31, 2022,

Therefore, we could not obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence with respect to
completeness and accuracy of purchases and existence of trude payable und advances to supplier
balances.

Process related to accounting of sales and trade receivables

Sales of goods made by the brunches are recorded in an accounting system named PPC fom
which excel report is generated which 15 considered as basis for booking sales i the COMMAC.
At the time of booking the sales in COMMAC, GST pavable on such sales is not accounted for.
Further based on the reading of audit report of the branch avditors and communication received
from branch auditors during the course of audit, it was noted thal accounting entry for recording.
of sales in COMMAC 1s passed two to three times during the period under audit as a combined
entry. Whereas balance of trade receivables and advances [rom customers areaccounted ss part ol
single entry as al year end. Hence customer wise and mvoice wise hist of sales made during the
period could not be generated from COMMAC. Further payments recetved from customers are
not adjusted at mvoice level. As a result, detailed list of mvoice wise outstunding balances
receivable from customers and advances received from customers could not be obtained and
vertfied from any of the accounting systems.

The balances of Trade receivables und advanees [rom customer are subject o confirmation from
respective parties and/or reconciliation as the case may be. Pending such confirmation and
reconciliation, the impact of consequential adjustments if any cannot be ascertained. In the
ubsence of sullicient and appropriate audit evidence, we are unable 10 commeent on completeness,
accuracy and existence of these balunces as at March 31,2022

Inventory
L. Existenceof Inventory
Based on the consideration of report of branch auditors, il was noted that the management has
performed physical venification of mventory as at March 31, 2022. However proper, detailed
report and working has not been prepared by the manapement and provided 1o branch auditors for
their cross examination lo ensure whether all matenal diserepancies observed i the verification
has been appropriately accounted in the books of accounts.

Further as per the mformation and explanation given (o branch auditors snd as per their
examination of books ol accounts, physical verification of inventory was not conducted on
October 1. 2021 (1e. appomted date of busmess reorgamization ) and also durmg the period at
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reasonable mterval by the Management as prescribed inthe Office Manual.

Therefore, we could not obtam sufficient and appropniate audit evidence on existence of
mventory ason March 31,2022,

ii. Valuation including NRV

Based on the considerntion of audit reports of branch auditors, it was noted that the impact of
incorrect purchase sccounting, as desceribed under para E above, is leading 1o mcorrect valuation
ol mventory, Further non-production overheads like selling and admmistrative overheads are
also considered for the mventory valuation purpose.

Further m respect of mterunit inventory, elminution of unrealized profit or loss was nol
identified and accounted for at individual inventory al umit level Based on management
assessment performed, the impact of such adjustments, iT made, would be immaterial. However,
the assessment performed by the management i1s nol adequate, and therefore, sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence was notavailable to substantiate the management conclusion.

Further, measurement of inventory at value lower or higher than the actual cost due o the reasons
mentioned above, il would resull mlo meorrect assessment of Net Realisable Value (NRV).
Therefore, compliance with Ind AS 2 “Inventories” regarding valuation of inventory at lower of
costor NRV could not be verified

i Non-moving and slow-moving provision

As per the mformution and explanation given (o branch auditors and from the exammation of
records provided to them, 1t was observed that the accounting mmpuct of slow and non-moving
inventory on the mventory valuastion was nol assessed by management and it was valued as per
ordinury invenlory m use. No provision has been made for obsolete/discarded inventories. There
15 no policy about the provision for non-moving stock. Inabsence of the management assessment,
we are unahle to quantify the impact, if any, of the sume on the financial statements.

It was also observed thal actual imward movemen! of inventory and booking ol corresponding
purchises viz a viz outward movement of mventory and corresponding recognition of sales does
not comcide m the existing accounting system, therefore it may lead to understaternent of payable
and recervable balimees as at the period end. However, in the absence of management control Lo
mitigate this risk and non-availability of corresponding sufficient and appropriate audit evidence,
we arenot able to comment on the consequential impact on the financial statements,

It was also observed that actual mward movement of inventory and booking of corresponding.
purchases viz a viz outward movement of inventory and corresponding recognition of sales does
not comneide in the existing accounting system, therefore it may lead 1o understatement of payable
and receivable balances as at the period end. However, in the absence of management control (o
mitigate this risk and non-availability of corresponding sufficient and appropnate audit evidence,
we are nol able to comment on the consequential impact on the inancial statements.
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H.

GS'T Related accounting

Based on the reading of report of branch auditors for all branches except Ordnance Factory
Bolangir and Ordnance Factory Nalanda, GST Input tax credit (ITC) is booked m the books of
accounts at the time of payvment to suppliers instead of recording of the same along with the
booking of corresponding purchases. However as informed by the management, GST I'TC as on
Murch 31, 2022 has been recorded based on the balances appearmg in respective Electromie
Credit Ledger. The management has not reconciled purchases as per GST retumn with those as per
books of accounts and therefore we are not able to comment on the occurrence of underlying
purchases booked in the system.

Further as reported by the branch auditors of Ordnance Factory Khamaria (OFK), I'TC has been
recorded at the time of payment. And ITC in respect of unpaid habilities as on March 31, 2022
were recogmzed on estimated basis at the rate of 18%. Further, no reconciliation of I'TC as per
books vis-d4-vis I'TC (including transfer of ITTC) GST returns of Company and erstwhile entity has
been made which has substantial rmpact on the recoverability of ITC and 1ts accounting 1n the
Books. No reversal ol I'TC has been recogmised on account of obsolete/unserviceable mventory.
Bused on the examination of the records performed by the branch auditors of OFK, there exists
excess clamm of I'TC (neluding duphication of claims) which may attract non-comphances with
the provisions of Goods and Service Tux related kaws,

Further the GST hability as on March 31, 2022 as per books of accounts were neither reconciled
with the GST returns filed nor details of the same were made available for verification by branch
auditors verification. Therefore, completeness and accuracy of the same cannot be ensured.

PG BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
LLPIN: AAT-9949
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Anncxure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph | under the heading, “Report on Other legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date and buased on the consideration of the CARO reports
issued by respective branch auditors and as per information and explanation given to us by the
management we report:

I (a) (A) Based on observations made by the branch suditors, we report that, exceptinrespect ol
two brumches, proper records showing full particulars, meluding quantitative details and
siluation of Property, Plant & Equipment has not been maintained by the company. The unit
wise observations as reported by the branch auditor, have been mentioned below:

Naume of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor
Head Office (HO) The Head Office has mumtumed not proper records of Property,
Plant & Equipment.

Ammumbion Factory Khadka The Branch has not properly mauntained record of PPE showing
(AFK) full particulars, meluding guantitative details, situation of
property, plint & equipment. In numerous cases, location of
assel, identification numbers from land records, quantifative
details ete. are not mentioned in assel register. The PPE register
15 not mamtamed in the format required under companites act.
Sofl Copy of block book mamtamed by erstwhile AFK was
produced before us as record of PPE, however it does nol give
details such as cost of acquisitiom by the new company
depreciation for the year ete. Though the umt 15 m physical
possession of vartous furniture and computers, there s no
mention of any fumiture tnd computers m PPE register

Regional Controller of The Branch has not properly carved out and maintained record
Safety, Pune of PPE showing full particulars, including quantitative detals.
situntion of property, plant & equipment. Location ol asset,
identification numbers from land records, quantitative details
ete. are nol mentioned in asset register. The PPE register 1s not
maintained in the format required under companies act. Sofl
Copy of block book mamtuined by erstwhile AFK was produced
before us us record of PPE, however it does ot give details such
as vost of acquisition by the new company depreciation for the
year ete. Though the unit 15 in physical possession of vinious
furmiture and compulers, there 15 no mention ol any furmiture
and computers in PPE register.

Highly Explostve Factory. The Branch has maintaimed proper records showing full
Pune particulars, including quontitative detmls and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment except in case of Building.
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Nume of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor
Muchmery and Vehicles quantity wise details needs to be
updated and mainiained by branch.

Ordnance Factory Dehuroad The Branch has maintaimed proper records showing full
particulars, mcluding quantitative detatls and situation of
Property. Plant and Equpment except m case of Buildmg,
Machinery and Vehicles quantity wise details needs to be
updated and mamtained by branch.

Ordnance Factory Khamaria The branch has maintained proper records showing full

particulars including quantitative detatls of Property. Plamt and
Equipment except records related to situation of Asset has not

Ordnance Factory Institute of

According to the information and explanations given to us and

Learning, Khamana on the basis of our exammation of the records of the branch, the
assels ol the branch has been maintained with the assets of the
Ordiance Faclory Khamana. Hence, we are unable to comment
on this clause.

Cordite Factory Aruvankadu The Branch has not mamtamed proper records showmng full

particulars, including quuntilative details and situation of
Property, plant and equipment. The Branch does not have
adequate system of recording of Fixed Assets and hence, the
cost of the assels sold during the vear could not be ascertained
while determmmg the profil or loss on sale ol such assel.

High EnergyProjectile
Factory Tiruchirappall

Branch maintained proper records showmng full particulars,
mcluding quanhitabive detmls and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipmenl.

Orrdnance Factory Bhanduara

The branch has nol mamtained proper reconds showmg full
particulars, including quontitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment

National Institute of Defince

The Unit has nol mumtained proper records showing full

Production, Ambajhari particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of nght-of-
use assets. However, block register for all fixed assets is
mamtiined m exeel formal,

Ordnance Factory Chanda The Branch has maimtamed proper records showing full

particulars including quantitutive details except the location of
Property, plant and equipment which has not been updated in
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Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

fixed asset register. Further the Branch has not recorded the
fumiure and fixture m the books of accounts as well as hixed
assel register even though the same are physically available at
site. The title deeds of the land has not been transferred in the
name of MIL from the erstwhile board. The Branch has not
camed out Gurviluation of lixed assets which has been handed

over by erstwhile board.

Ordnance Factory Bolangir | OFBOL has not maintained proper records showing full
(OFBOL) particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Ordnonce Factory Itarsi Branch has mamtained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details except the location ol Property,
plunt and equipment which has not been updited in lixed assel
register, [urther the company has nol recorded the furniture and
fixture n fixed asset register even though the same are
physically available at site and are charzed to profitand loss as
per erstwhile accounting policy.

Ordnance Factory Nalanda The Branch has maintained proper records showing full
particalars, including quantitative details execept the location of
Property, plant and equipment which has not been updated 1n
lixed asset register, [urther the Branch has not recorded the
fumiure and fixture m the books of accounts as well as Lixed
assel register even though the same are physically available at
sHle

Ordnunce Factory Vimangnon Branch has mamtamed proper records showing full particulars
mcluding quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

(B) The Company is mamiuiming proper records showing full particulars ol intungible assets exceplin
¢ase of six umils where proper records were not mumtained as per branch auditor’s report. The umit wise
observations as reported by the branch auditor, have begn mentioned below:

Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

Head Office (HO) The HO has maintained proper records showing [ull particulars
ol Intangible assels.

Ammunition Factory Khadki The branch has not maintained proper records showmg full
particulars ofintangible assets.
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Name of Unit

Comments by respective branch aonditor

Regional Controller of Safety.
Pune

The unit is not having any intangible assets, as such this clause is
not apphicable.

Highly Explosive Factory,
Pune

The Branch has maintained proper records showing full
particulars ofintungible assets.

Ordnunce Factory Dehuroad

The Branch has mumtumed proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assels.

Ordnance Factory Khamaria

According to the mformation and explanations given o us and
on the basis of our exammation ol the records of the branch, the
branch does nol have record any Intangible assets wherens the
erstwhile entity had obtained patent nghts, licenses and
Successful Reassert &* development Project. Hence, we are
unable 1o comment upon the mamienance of proper records
showing  [ull particulsrs including quantitative detuils and
situation ol Intangible asset anses

Ordnance Factory Institute of
Learnmng, Khamaria

According lo the information and explimations given 1o us and
on the basis of our exammation ol the records of the branch, the
branch does not have any Intangible assets. Hence this pomt of
CARO, 2020 is not applicable

Cordite Factory Aruvankadu

The Branch has mamtained proper records showing full
particulars of Intangible assets,

High Energy Projectile
Factory Tiruchirappulii

The Branch having intanmble assels of Rs.45.60 crores towards
deferred revenue expenditure.

Ordnunce Fuctory Bhandara

The Branch has not mamntamed proper records showing full
particulars of intangibles assets.

National Institute of Defence

The Unt does not hold any mtanmble assels thus reporting

Production, Ambujhari under clause (1) (b) of the order 1s not applicable.

Ordnance Factory Chanda The Branch has not disclosed research and development
expenditure in fixed asset register which has been shown as
imtangible asset in INDAS financial stalement.

Ordnunce Factory Bolungir The Branch has not mamtained proper records showmg full
particulars of miangible assets,

Ordnance Faclory ltarsi The Branch has mamtaimed proper records showmng full

particulnrs of Intangible assets,
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Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor
Ordnance Factory Nalanda The Branch has maimtaimed proper records showing full
particulars of ntangible assets.

Ordnance Factory Varungoan The Branch has maintaimed proper records showing full
particuliars of Intangrble assets.

{h) Based on the reports of the branch auditors, except in respect of three branches, m case of
remaming branches the Property, Plant & Equipment of the branches have not been physically verified
by the Management during the period. Accordingly, the discrepancies, il uny, could not be ascertained
and therefore, the branch auditors are unable 1o comment on whether the discrepancies, if any have
been properly dealt with in the books of account. Detals as reported by brunch auditors and as
observed by usare mentioned below:

Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

Head Office (HO) Physical verification of assets was not conducted at HO level

Ammumition Factory Khadki It was mmformed that there 1s regular vearly progrumme ol
(AFK) physical venlication of property, plant and equipment, which in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size ol the
company and nature of its assets. Duning the year, physical
vertfication of property. plant and equipment was done. As
mformed by the munugement, no matenul discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. One page report stating that there is
no diserepancy on physical verification of the assets was
produced before us. However 11l does not mention the fact that
compulers and [umiture which are physically presemt in the
possession of the Branch are nol found in the Assels record.
Hence m our opinion the exercise done by the Branch 15 not

reliable
Regional Controller of It was imformed thal there is regular yearly programme of
Safety, Pune physical venlication of property, plant and equipment, which in

our opinien s reasonable huving It was mformed that there is
repgular yearly progrumme of physical venfication of property;
plant and equipment. which i our opinton 18 reasonable having
regand to the size of the company and nature of its assets. During
the year, physical verification of property, plant and equipment
was done. As informed by the management, no matenal
discrepancies were noticed on such venfication.

Highly Explosive Faclory, According to the mmformation and explanations given (o us, the
Pune Fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the
Management m accordance with a regular program of
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MName of Unit

Comments by respective branch auditor

verification which, in our opinion, its provides for physical
verilication ol the fixed assels on test check basis. According 1o
the informabon and explanation given to us, the report of
Physical verification of fixed assets does not provide details of
discrepancies if any, therefore we cannol comment upon
whether there is any mpact or not of material discrepancies
noticed om such verification.

Ordnance Factory Dehuroad

The Fixed assets were physically venfied dunng the year by the
Management in accordance with a regular program of
verification which, m our opmion, provides for physical
verification of the [ixed assets on test check basis. According to
the information and explanation given to us, the report of
Physical verification of fixed assets does not provide details of
discrepancies 1l any, therefore we cannol comment upon
whether there is any impacl or not of material discrepancies
noticed on such venfication.

Ordnance Factory Khamaria

b. According to the mfvrmation and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our exammation of the records of the branch of a
company, the brunch does have a poehiey, direclion and
programme 0f physical verification ol its property. plant and
equipment by which all property, plant and equipment could
be venlied. However, on scrutiny ol the reports we observed
that there exist vanous discrepancies which have been detniled
in Point No-5 of this report in Section-11 of Annexure-A. Hence,
we are unable to comment upon the following requirement of
the clause:-

(1) Whether any material discrepuncies were noticed on such
verification and.

(i1) Whether the same have been properly dealt with m the
baoks of account.

Ordnance Factory Insttute of
Lewrnimg, Khamarna

b. According to the mlormation and explanations given lo us
and on the basis of our examimation of the records of the
branch of a company, the branch does have a pohioy, direction
and programme ol physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment by which all property, plant @nd equipment
could be verified. However, on scrutiny of the reports we
ohserved that there exist vanous discrepancies which have
been detatled m Point No-5 of this report in Section-11 of
Anmmexure-A. Hence, we are unable t6 comment upon the
following requirement of the clause:-

(1) Whether any material discrepancies were noticed on such
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Nume of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor
venlication and,
(1) Whether the same have been properly dealt with in the books
ol account
Cordite Factory Aruvankadu All Property, plant and equipment have been physically venified

by the manazement al s regular mterval of time (normally once a
yvear). No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

High EnergyProjectile
Fuclory Tiruchirappalli

Physical venfication is performed by management ond no
discrepancies were noticed.

Orrdnance Factory Bhanduara

There 15 no a regular program of venfication., which, m our
opinion, is unreasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature ol 115 assets.

National Institute of Defince
Production, Ambajhan

Accordmg to mformation and explanations given (o us, the amt
has not physically venfied its Property, Plant & Equipment since
during the year. The last physical verification of Property, Plant
& Equipment was conducted during June-2020.

Orrdnance Factory Chanda

The Branch has not carmed out physical venfication of assets
both while takmyg hundover of assets from erstwhile board as
well as on 31.03.2022 hence we cannol commenl on matenial
discrepuncies i physical verification as compared with
available records.

Ordnance Factory Bolangir

The OFBOL does not have aprogram of verification of Property.,
Plint and Equipment so to cover il the items of Property, plant
and equipment m a phased manner over u pened of 3 years
which, in our opinion, is not reasonable having regard to the size
of the OFBOL and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certam Property, Plimt and Equipment were due for
verification during the year and were physically not venfied by
the managemen! during the year.

Ordnance Factory [tarsi

The Brunch his not carmed out physical venification ol assels
both while taking handover of assels from erstwhile board as
well as on 31.032022 hence we can't comment on material
discrepancies in physical verification as compared with

available records.
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Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

Ordnance Factory Nalanda Branch has not carried out physical verification of assets both

while taking handover of assels from  erstwhile bourd as well as
on 31.03.2022 hence we canl comment on material
discrepancies in physical venfication us compared with
available records.

Ordnance Faclory Viringaon The Compuny does not regularly progrmmme of physical

verlication to cover Property, Plant and Equipment.

(c)

(d)

()

Title deeds ofimmovable properties are not held in the name of the Company since all the assets
were transferred consequent upon the decision of the Mmistry of Defence vide Memorandum of
Understondmg dated 29th September 2021 (o (ransler activities carmied on by the erstwhle
Ordnunce Factory Board 1o 7 New Delence Public Sector Units (DPSUs). This company 15 of one
such DPSUs. However. as informed by the managerent, the Company has oblumed the signed
document named "Handing tuking over of Erstwhile ordnance fetories Land in name of New
DPSU". Further we were mnformed that the process of tmnsfer of title deed in the name ol
company 1s under process.

The Company has adopted cost model and hence not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment orintangible assets during the period.

According to the mformation and explanations provided 1o us there are no proceedings have
been initinted or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended m 2016) and rules made
thereunder. Hence reportmg under clause 3(1) (e) ol the order 1s notappheable.

il (1) In our opimon and based on branch auditors report, excepl m respect of six branches, the

coverage and procedure of such vernification is nol appropriale and conclusive, and therelore
discrepancies, if any cannot be commented upon. Details as reported by branch auditors are
mentioned below:

Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

Head office (HO) The HO does not have any iventory and hence reporting under

clause 3(u)(a) of the Order 1s not applicable.

Ammumition Factory Khadki The mvenlory of stores has been physically venfied by the

separiate internal inspection department and other items of
inventory were physically verified by the management at
reasonable tervals, in our opinion, which 1s reasonable. One
page report stating that “there 15 no discrepancy / differences in
physical mventory verified and mventory as per records™ was
produced before us, However later on material discrepancies to
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Nume of Unit

Comments by respective branch auditor

were noticed on verificatton of mventory during our audil.
Please reler our comments in Annexure A ol emphusis of malter
regarding valuntion as well physical w/ofl of invenlory. Hence
in our opimion inventory his not been properly physically
verified by the management, and exercise of physical
verification done by management 1s not reliable. Detailed
discrepancy/varution reports on physical verification were not
produced before us for venification.,

Regmal Controller ol safety

The mventory of stores has been physically venfied by the
sepurate mtemal mspection department and other items ol
mventory were physically venfied by the management at
reasonable intervals, in our opinion, which is reasonable.

Highly Explosive Faclory,
Pune

Accordmg to the information and explanation given 1o os,
mventories have been physically verified during the vear by the
managemen! at regular miervals on test check basis. However,
detailed report of such venfication mentioning details of
observation was not produced for venfication. Therefore. we
cannot comment on eflect of material discrepancies, ifany. lo be
given m books of accounts. Regarding the coverage und
procedure of such venfication, whether il is appropriate or not,
cannot be commented.

Ordnance Factory Dehuroad

Inventores have been physically verified dunng the vear by the
managemenl at regular miervals on test check basis. However,
detailed report of such venfication mentioning details of
observation was not produced for venfication. Therefore, we
cannot comment on effect of material discrepancies, ifany. o be
given in books of accounts. Regarding the coveruge and
procedure of such verilication, whether it is appropriute or not,
cannot be commented.

Ordnance Factory Khamaria

As per the mformation and explunation gmiven to us and as per
our examination ol books of accounts Physical verification of
mventory has not been conducted at reasonable interval by the
Management as prescribed o the OMs. However, the branch
has carmed out venfication of the Inventory subsegquent to the
end ol the financial year for which no proper, detailed report and
detailed working has been prepured by the team members and
provided to us for our cross examination so that an assurance
can be concluded that all matenal discrepancies observed m the
verification has been approprately adjusted n the books of
necounl
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Nume of Unit

Comments by respective branch auditor

The List of Inventory vernified containing | page consist of 17
itemns valuing Rs. B7.68.50,571/-(18.23% ol SIH value)out of
Total lems 12771 valumg Rs. 480,92.20,010/- under Store in
hand excludmg Fmished Components (SIH) has only been
covered. This indicate that only 8.98% i total Inventory has
only been verified whereas other Inventories Le. WIP and FG
Including Fimished Components which consist of 50.73% of
total Invenlory has nol been coveréd i the Invenlory
venficahon programme.

In view of above observation, m  our opmon  system of
verilication  of Inventory vis-# vis- 18 reconciliation,
mainlenance of detniled working sheets for andit trails and
appropriate adjustment m the books of account 1s not working
effectively and required improvement.

Oridnance Fucorty Insutute of

As per the mformation and explanation given (o us and as per

Learmng, Khamaria. our examination of books of accounts there 1s no inventory
maintained. Hence this point of CARO, 2020 1s not apphicable
Cordite Factory Aruvankadu It was noted that the management has performed physical

verilication of inventory as at March 31, 2022, However proper,
detailed report and working has not been prepared by the
management and provided to branch auditors for their cross
examimiation (o ensure whether all muatenal discrepancies
observed m the verification has been appropriately adjusted in
the books of accounts. Further as per the mformation and
explanation given to branch auditors and as per their
exammation of books of accounts, physical verification ol
mventory was nol conducted on October 1, 2021 and also duning
the period al reasonable mterval by the Managemenl as
presenbed i the Office Manual. Therefore we could not obtamn
sufficient and appropriate aoudil evidence on existence of
mventory as on March 31, 2022 the certificate of physical
verification of stock, viz WII and finished goods, was revised
several times by the branch, and hence, we have our own
apprehension on the accurncy and correctness of the stock
reported m the Stundalone financial stalements.

High Energy Projectile
Factory Tiruchimappalli

Physical venfication of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management and m the opmion of
the auditor, the coversge ind procedure of such venlication by
the management is appropriate; No discrepancies of 10% or
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed
and they have been properlv deall with in the books of account:
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Nume of Unit

Comments by respective branch auditor

Ordnance Factory Bhandara

excepl the followmng There 15 item of Inventory m W1 which
muterial rejected due to quality problems (Rs. 0.23Crs) included
 the Inventory. We are of the opmmon that adequate provision /
write-off to be made 0 the accounts to get true and fir view of
the Profit/ accounts.

The mansgement has conducted physical venfication of
mventory at reasonable imtervals durmyg the penod, except for
goods-in-transit and stocks lyme with third parties. For stocks
lying with third parties at the period-end, written confirmations
were nol obtuined by the management except from few sister
concemns. In our opimion the coverage and the procedure of such
verfication by the management 15 mappropriate,

Nuanonal Institute of Defence
Producthion, Ambujhan

The Unit does not have any mventory and hence reporting under
clause 3(11)(a) ol the Order 15 not apphcable.

Ordnance Factory Chanda

Asexplumed to us and on the basis of the records
produced before us, m our opimon, though physical venfication
of the mventories. have been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the Muanagement. However proper, detatled report and
working has not been prepared by the manapement and
provided to branch auditors for their cross exammation lo
ensure whether all matenial discrepancies observed m the
verification has been appropristely adjusted in the books ol
mecopunl

Ordnance Factory Bolungir

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. In our opmion and
according to the information and explimations given Lo us, the
coverage and procedure of such verlication by the munagement
15 not appropriate having regand 1o the size of the Company and
nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
apgregate for cach class of inventories were noticed on such
physical venficution of mventories when compared with books
ol account.

Orndnance Factory ltarsi

Asexpluined to us and on  the basis of the
records  produced beforeus, in - our opimon, though physical
verilicatiom of the nvenlones, have been conducted at
reasonable ntervals by the management However proper,
detailed report and working has not been prepared by the
management and provided to branch auditors for their cross
examination lo ensure whether all matenal discrepancies
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Name of Unit Commenis by respective branch auditor

observed mn the venfication has been approprately adjusted m
the books ol accounts.,

Ordnance Factory Nalanda As explained 10 us and on the basis of the reconds
produced before us, in our opimon, though physical venification
of the mventories. have been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the mimagement However proper, detniled report and
working has not been prepared by the munagement and
provided to branch auditors for their cross exammation lo
ensure whether all matenal discrepuncies observed m the
verification has been appropristely adjusted in the books ol
oeeounks,

Ordnance Factory Varangaon The munagement has not conducted physical verification of
mventory al reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion
the coverage and the procedure of such verlication by the
munagement is inuppropriale.

(b) According Lo the mlormation and explanations provided 1o us, the company has not been sanchoned
workmg capital limts in excess of five crore rupees during the period. in aggregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Henee reporting under clause 3(1)(h) of
the orderis not applicable.

i1 The company during the perod has not made investments in, provided any guarintee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured. o companies,

firms, Limited Liubility Parinerships or any other parties. Hence reporting under Clause (ini)a),
(in)(b), (1E)(c), () d), (i )(e) and (i) 1), of the said Order are notapplicable to the Company.

v The Company has not granted any loans or made any mvestments, or provided any guarantees
ar securily (o the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{iv)
of the sad Order are not applicable to the Company,

V. The Company has nol acceptid any deposils or amounts which are deemed (o be deposils from
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules (ramed there under
to the extent notified.

vi. Being the first year/period of mcorporation of the company the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company 15 not
applicuble for the current vear. Therelore, the provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the said Order are not
applicable lo the Company.

vil. (a) According 1o the mformation and explanations given 1o us and the records of the Company
examined by the brunch auditers, m opmion of respective auditors, except for statutory dues m case
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of branches as mentioned in the table below, the Company 1s regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income lax, sales
tax, service tx, duty ol customs, duty ofexcise, value added tux, cess and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears of statutory dues outstunding as at
March 31, 2022, for a penod of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Name of Unit Comments by respective branch auditor

Ordnance Factory Khamaria As per the mformation and explanation given to us and as per
our examnation of books of accounts, the branch of a
Company has delayed in  deposition of Labour Cess under
Rule 4 of the bulldmg and other constructions workers welfare
cess Tules, 1998 and also delay in deposit of TDS pertamimg to
the month of October-21 which are deposited in the month of
December-21. However due to non-availability of complete
data we are unable 1o comment on the same,

National Institute of Defence | The Unit has been generally regular in depositing statutory dues
Production, Ambujhar as applicable; with the appropnate authorities except there have
been certum delays in payment of ESIC & Provident Fund due
to websile error mamlenance.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Compuny
exammed by branch auditors, the particulurs of stututory dues referred to m sub-clause (a) as at March
31,2022 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute as reported by the branch suditor, ure

s Tollows:
Name ol Name of Nature Amount Period to Forum where the
Branch the statute of dues (Rs, Crore) which the ‘dispute is pending

amount relates

Ordnance Central Excise 8.98 Crore 01.06.2015 to The Custom Excise
Factory Lxeise Act Duty 30.06.2017 and Service Tax

‘Bhandara 1944 Appellate Tribunal

viii.  Being [irst year of incorporation of the company. there are no income lax returns [illed by the
company till the date of this report and therefore there are no assessments completed or m progress
under Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reportng under clause 3(vin) of the order isnot applicable.

ix{a) As the Company does not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender durmg the year,
henee the provisions of Clause 3(ix )(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{b) As there ure no borrowmgs made by the company hence the provisions ol Clause 3(ix)(b) relating
Lo willul defaulter are not applicable to the Company.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures
and based on branch auditors report, the Company has not availed any term loan.
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(d) According to the mformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
the Company has not raised any funds on short term basis.

(e) According 1o the information and explanations given (o us and on an overall examimation of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations ol its associate. The company does not have
any subsidiary orjomnt venture.

(1) The compuany has not raised loans during the period on the pledge ol securities held in its associate.
The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

x. (@) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of mitial public offer, further pubhe offer
(mcluding debt mstruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made sny preferential allotmenl or private placement of shares or fully or
partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordmgly. the provisions of Clause
3(x)(b) of the Order are not apphicable to the Company.

xi.(#) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carmed oul in
accordance with the generally aceepted auditing practices in Indin, and according to the information
and explanations given o us and based on branch auditors reports, we along with branch auditors
have neither come across any mstance of fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or
reported during the penod, nor have we been mformed ol any such case by the Management

(b) Durmg the course ol our exammaton of the books and records of the Company, carmied oul in
accordance with the generally accepted audiling practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, report in the form ADT-4 as specified under sub-section (12) of section:
143 of the Companies Act has not been filed. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(x1)(b) of the orders
notapplicable.

(¢) Provisionsrelating o whistle blower are not applicable Lo the company as per section 177(9) of
the Companies uet, 2013, As represented to us by the management and based on considenation of the
CARO reports issued by respective branch auditors, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the company during the penod.

xit.  Asthe Company is not o Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are nol applicable to il the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are notapplicable to the Company.

xiit.  Due to the possible effects of the matter deseribed m the Basis for Disclaimer of Opmion
paragraph in the main audit report, we are unable to comment on whether the Company has enlered
mio transactions with related parties m compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the AcL
Being a government company, the details ofrelated party trunsactions are not required 1o be disclosed
in the financial statements of the Company s per IndAS 24, Related Party Disclosures specilied
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under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. Further. the Compuny has not constituted an Audit Committee us required under Section
177 of the Acl, however it was informed o us that the company is m the process of making
compliance mrespect of the same, Refernote 4! 1o the Financial Statements.

xiv. (4) Bemg the first yearperiod of incorporation of the company provisions of section 138 relating o
Internal Audit system ure not applicable to the company lor the financial year under audit. As reported
by brunch auditors of followmg branches; respective branch has internal audit system, however same 15
not commensurate with the size and nature ofbusiness ol the Company.

Name of Unit Comments by respective branch anditor

Highly Explosive Factory, | The Branch does not have an mlernal audit system
Pune commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

Ordnance Factory Dehuroad The Branch does not have an internal awdit system
commensurate with the size and miture of its business.

Ordnance Factory Khamana Internal andit report provided to us is not appropnate, effective
and not satisfies the requirement of various areas and aspects to
becovered m an internal audit. We are in opinton that branch ol'a
Company does not have mn internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business,

Cordite Factory Aruvankadu In our opmion and based on our examination, the Branch does
not hive an miernal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.,

Ordnance Factory ltarsi The Company has an mternal audit system commensurate with
the size und the nature of 1s business

Ordnance Factory Nalanda Brunch does not have an  intermal  audit  system
commensurate with the size and nature.

Ordnance Factory Varangason | The Company does not have internal audit system
commensurate with the size @md nature ol 11s business since this
1 the first year of its operalion,

(h) As the provisions of section 138 reluting (o mlernal audit are nol applicable (o the company for
the financial year under audit. Further inview of the comment given under clause 3 (xiv) (a) above, we
are nolable to comment on the clavse 3 (xiv) (b) ol the order.

(xv)  According to information and explanations given 1o us, audit procedures carmied out by us and
based on branch auditors report, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors orpersons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are
notapplicable to the Company.
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xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us and procedures performed by us, we
repaort that the Company has not conducted sny Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finanee activities
during the year. Therefore reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) According to the mformation and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the
Company is nol Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bunk of India, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(¢) of the order 15 notapplicable.

(d) Based on mformation and explunation given to us and as represented by the managemenl, the
Group does not have any Core Investment Company (C1C) as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses durmyp current financial yvear/period.

{(xviir) There has been no resignation by statutory auditors during the year hence reporting under
clause 3(xvii) of the orderis notapplicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, agemng and expected dates ol realization of financial assets and payment ol inancial abilities,
other mformation accompanymg the finsncial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supportmg the assumphions and
further also considering the Company 1s a Government Company m the Defence Sector. active equity
participation by the Central Government and based on consideration of CARO reports 1ssued by
branch auditors, nothing has come (o our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncerfainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 15 not cupable of meeting its
liabiliies existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheel date. We. however, state that this is nol an assuranee as (o the future viability of
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance Lhat all Babilities falling due within a period ol
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due,

(xx) (a) Bemg first year of incorporation of the Company, the provision of section 135 of Compamies
Act, 2013 are not applicable for the vear under audit. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of
the Orderis not applicable forthe year.

(b) Bemg [irst year of incorporation of the Company, the provision ol section 135 of Companies Acl,
2013 are not applicable for the year under audit. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx}(b) of the

Order is not applicable for the year Abliijit Shetye
Partner
ForPGBHAGWATLLP Membership Number: 151638
Charlered Accountants UDIN: 23151638BGOGEI3393

Firm Registrution Number: 1011 13W/W 100682

Place - Pung
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred o m paragraph 2{1) under the heading, *Report on Other legal and Repulatory Reguirements™
of our report on even date:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Financial Stalements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2003 (“the Act™)

We have audited the mternal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Munitions
Indu Limated (“the Company™) (which mcludes the Head Office and fifteen brunches) as of March 31,
2022 m comjunction with our audit of the Fimancial Statements of the Company [or the peniod ended on
that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishimy and maintaimng mternal fmancial controls
hased on the intemnal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considening
the essential components of mternal controls stuted m the Guidance Note on Audit of Tnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting 1ssued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the desipn, implementation and mamlenance of adequate mtemal finuncial
controls that were operating effectively for ensurning the orderly und efficient conduct of 11s business.
mcluding adherence o company's policies, the safeguarding olnits assets, the prevention und delection
of frauds and emors, the accurncy and completeness of the accounling records, and the omely
preparation ol reliable financial information, as required under the Act

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Stutements based on our audit. We conducted our audii m accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Fmancial Controls Over Fmancial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) und the Standards on Auditing, to the extent apphicable to an audit of intemal financial controls,
hoth issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan und perform the audit 10
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internal linuncial controls over financial reporting
was established and mamtamed and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all matenial respects.

Our audit mvolves performing procedures Lo oblam audit evidence about the adeguacy of the mternal
finuncial controls with reference to the Fiancial Statements and therr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference o the Financial Sttements included obtaiming an
understanding of imternal financial controls with reference lo the Financial Statements, assessing the
risk that a matenal weukness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controls bused on the assessed nsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judeement, meluding the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the Fmancral Statements,
whether due to fraud orerror.

Because of the matterdeseribed m the Disclaimer of Opimon paragraph below, we were notable to
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obtain sufficient and appropriate audil evidence (o provide a basis of audit opmon on un internal
financial controls with reference to inancial statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements 1s a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes i accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, A company's mlemal fGnancial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements meludes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in
reasonible detadl, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary lo permil
preparation of Fancial Statements in accordunce with penerally accepted sccounting pnneiples, and
that recerpts and expenditures of the compuny are being made only m accordance with authonsations
o management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assunmee regarding
prevention or imely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the Finamcial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements
Because of the mherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference o the Financial
Stutements, meluding the possibility of collusion or mmproper minagement override ol controls,
material misstatements due (o ermor or fraud may oceur und not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the mtemnal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future penods
are subject o the nisk that the imternal linancial controls with reference o the Financial Statements may
become inadequate because of changes m conditions, or thal the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us, in the opinion of the management, the
Company has not established its mternal financial control over linancial reporting on criteria bused on
or considering the essential components of internal control stated m the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internitl Fmaneial Controls Over Financial Reporimg ('Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accoumtants of India. As mformed to us, bemng first year of mcorporation, the Company 1s1n
the process ol implementing mternal finuncial control over linanciul reporting on eritenia based on or
considering the essential components of internal control stated m the Guidance Note.

Because of this reason, we are unable 1o oblam sullicient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for our opimon whether the Compuny has internal financial controls with respect (o the financial
statements and whether such mtermnal financial controls were opemting effectively as at March 31,
2022,

We huve considered the disclaimer reported above in determining the nature, tming, and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company, and the disclaimer has
afTected our opmion on the financial statements of the Company and we have ssued a disclammer of
opmion on the financial statements of the Company. Refer Basis of Disclaimer of Opmion paragraph
m our main audit report.
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the mternal financial controls with reference to fmancial statements msofar as it relates 1o fifteen
branches 1s based on the corresponding reports of the branch auditers ol such branches. Our opmion is
nol modified in respect of this matter.

ForPG BHAGWAT LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101118W/W 100682

Abhijit Shetye

Partner

Membership Number: 151638
UDIN: 23151638BGOGEI3393
Place - Pune

Date — December 31, 2022

PG BHAGWAT LLP
Charfered Accountants
LLPIN: AAT-9949
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Annexure D- Reporton Directions / Additional Directions issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act

In terms of Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General ol India under sub-section (5) of
section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books of accounts, as we considered
appropriate, the information and explanation given to us and based on the consideration of the audit
reports issued by respective branch auditors and subject to matters specified m our basis ol disclaimer

ol opmion, we give below a statement on the muliers specilied in the said Directions.

Directions and Additional Directions under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act

1 Directions/Additional directions Observations

I. | Whether the company has system in | Refer to Parn A under Section | ol Annexure A 1o
place to process all accounting | our mam audit report. Further due to the possible
transactions through IT Systems? If | effects of the matter described in the Basis for
yes, implications of processing of | Disclmmer of Opmion paragraph, we are not able
accounting trunsaction outside 1T | to comment om implications of the processing of
systems on integrity of accounts | accounting trunsactions outside I'T systems on
along with the financial implications | integrily of accounts along with the financial
iFany may be stated. mplications ifany.

2. | Whether there 1s any restructuring of | According to mformation and explanations given
an existing loan or cases of | w us, the Company has not obtuined sny loan
waiver/wrile off ol | durmg the period and does nol have any existing
debt/loans/interest etc. made by a | loan. Hence this clause is not applicable.
lender to the company due to
Company's mability (0 repay the
loun? 1f yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case, the
lender is 4 Government Company,
then this direction 1s also applicuble
to Stututory Auditors ol Lender
company.)

3. | Whether funds (grant/subsidy ete.) | According to mformation and explanations given
received/receivable for specific | to us, no funds (grants/subsidy etle.) are
schemes from central/state | received/receivable for the specific schemes from
covernment or s agencies were | Central/ State Government or ils agencies.
properly accounted for / utilised as | However, during the peniod under audit, the
per its term and conditions? List the | Company has received/receivable amount of relief
cuses of deviations. from the Government towards reimbursement  of

expenses meurred during current year but
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el Directions/Additional directions Observations
central or statement government or ifs agencies,
this clause isnot applicable.

4. | Whether the Company his migrated | As per mformation and explanation provided to us,

the assetys and lablities of erstwhile
ordnance factories to the newly
formed DPSU inaccordance with the
provisions of Ind AS snd other
related Govi. of India orders or
directives? If there 15 any deviation,
the nature of deviation and 1ts impact
an the linancial statements may be
stated.

the assets and liabilities of erstwhile ordnance
factories have been mugrated to the newly formed
DPSU maccordance with the provisions of Ind AS
and other related Govt of India orders or
directives. However due to lack of sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence regarding completeness
ol assets and liabilities acquired as a part of
business reorganisation and also giving
consideration to the fact that these balances were
nol subjected to any mdependent auditor or
Comptroller imd Audit General (CAG) of Indin, we
are ol able w0 comment on the completeness
including deviations il any. Also refer to Srno |
under Emphasis of Matter paragraph of our mam
audit repori.

Whether the Company has
recontiled the openmg balances of
the Assets and Liabilities of the new
formed DPSU with the closing
balances of erstwhile ordnance
factories as per the financial
statements prepared by the Principal
Controller of Aceounis (Fys) m the
commercial format? The
discrepancies observed (if any) and
its nmpact on the finsncial statements
miy be stuted.

Balances of assets and labilities acquired by the
Company on account of Business Reorganisation
as at October 1, 2021, were not subjected to audit
from mny mdependent auditor or Compiroller and
Audit General (CAG) of India. These balunces
were taken from the unaudited books of accounts
of respective units as on September 30, 2021 as
mamtained by Defence Accounts Department
{DAD) for which detailed breakup of these assels
and [iabilities and their reconciliation with closing
balanee of erstwhile ordnunce factories as per the
financial statements propared by the Principal
Controller ol Accounts (Fys) could not be made
available o auditors for the purpose ol audil.

Further due to the possible effects of the matter
descnbed n the Basis for Disclaimer of Opimion
paragraph, we are nol able to comment on this pari.

Also refer to Sr no | under Emphasis of Matter
paragraph of our mam audit report.

Whether the Compuany has carned

As informed to us by the management,
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v | Directions/Additional directions Observations
out reconcilistion exercise of inter- | reconciliastion of Inter- Faclory balmmces with the
fuctory balances with the other | other DPSUs as on the date of formatiwom ol the
DPSUs on the date of formation of | Company has not been made available 1o brunch
the Company and whether | suditors. Further due to the possible effects of the
confirmation have been obtamned | matter described in the Basis for Disclaymer of
from other DPSUs lor balances due | Opinion puragraph, we are not able to comment on
to/due from them? The amount of | thisparagraph.
unreconciled bhalances, 1f any, for
cach DPSUmay be stated

7. | Whether the accounling policies | Yes, the accounting policies huve been frumed by
have been framed by the DPSU asper | the DPSU as per the provisions of the Ind AS and in
the provisions of the Ind AS and in | accordance with the prudent accounting prnciples
accordance with the prudent | applicable to Defence Sector
accountmg principles applicable to
Defence Sector? Inconsistency, if
any, may be stated.

& | Whether the provisions [oremployee | According to information and explanation
benefit liabilities and their valuation | provided to us, on corporatization ol the
on the date of formation of DPSU | production facilities of ersiwhile Ordnance
have been made in accordance wiath Factory Board (OFB), the employees of erstwhile
the provisions of Ind AS? | OFB have been transferred 1o the Company on
Deviations, iFany, may bestated. deemed deputaton lor an mitial period of two

years vide the Mmistry of Delence's Office
Memorandum (OM) No. 1(5)2021/0F/DP(Ple-
V)02 dated September 24, 2021, As per the said
OM, the employees continue 1o be the Central
Government emplovees and therelfore the pay
allowsnces, leave, medical fucilibes and pension
hability continue to be the obligation of the Central
Government. Therefore, provision for employee
benelits viz. provision for gratuity, leave
encashment and other retirement benefils and
allowunces, are not recognized as per IND-AS 19
n the financial statements, as these are obligations
of the Central Government and not of the
Company. Also refer to Srno 2 under Emphasis of
Matter paragraph of our maim audit reporl.

For PG BHAGWAT LLP AbhyitShetye

Chartered Accountants Purtner

Firm Regrstration Number: 1011 18W/W 100682

Membership Number: 151638
UDIN:23151638BGOGEIZ393

PMlace-Pune

Date - December 31,2022
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COMMENTS OF C & AG

Comments of The Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) (b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Munitions India Limited for the period ended 317
March, 2022
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MUNITIONS INDIA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements of Munitions India Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2022 i accordance with the linancml reporting framework prescribed under the
Compames Act, 2013 s the responsibility of the munagement of the Compuny. The Statutory Auditor
appomted by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act 1s
responsible for expressimg opmion on these Financial Statements under Section 143 ol the Act based on
mdependent audit m accordance with the Standards on Auditing preseribed under section 143 (10) of
the Act This s stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 3 | December 2022

I, on behall of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the Financial Statements of Munitions India Limsted for the year ended 31 March 2022 under
Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carmed out independently without
uecess 10 the working pupers of the Sttutory Auditor and is limiled primarily o inguiries of the
Statulory Auditor and Company persommel and a selective examination of some of the accountng
records.

Bused on my supplementary audit, [ would like to laghlight the followmg significant matters
under section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my altention and which m my view are
necessary for enabling a better understanding of the Financial Statements and the related Audit Report.

A.  Comments on Profitability
Balance Sheet
Other Current Liabilities (Note 23) Rs.2123.90 crore

L The above does nol include a sum of Ry 220,52 ¢rore towards the provision for employer's
contribution in respect of the employees of emstwhile Ordnance Factory Board on deemed deputalion
(Foreign Service) covered under Old Defined Benefit Pension Scheme and National Pension Scheme
during the period from 01 October 2021 10 31 March 2022, As per Office Memorandum dated 24
September 2021, the Government of India has trunslerred all its Linbilities to the newly formed
DPSUs, hence the Company is obligated to provide this liability for availing the services of the
Government employees on deemed deputation [or the six months' period. This has resulied in
understatement of Other Current Liahilities and overstatement of Profit of the Company by Rs 220,52

CITTE.
Statement of Profit and Loss
Other lncome (Note 25): Rs. 46.83 crore
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits: Rs. 22.64 crore
=, This meludes an amountof Bs. 2,07 crore being Total Tax Deducted (Rs. 2.04 crore) and




Overhead Tax Deducted (Rs. 0.03 crore) by State Bank ol India on the Bunk Deposits of the Compuny.
This has been added by the Company with the Interest Paid (Rs. 20.29 crore) ond Interest Accrual (Rs.
0.28 crore) o arrive at the Other Income of the Company amounting to Rs. 22.64 crore.  Since the
Interest Pand 35 nclusive ol Total Tax Deducted and Overhead Tax Deducted, the same should not have
been added by the Company. This has resulted in overstatement of Other Income as well as Profit of the
Company by Rs.2.07 crore.

For and on behalfl of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: Kolkata Director General of Audit
Date:01/03/23 (Ordnance Factorics)




‘\E

%

e

Accurale, Lethal. Reliable

o in ﬂl'.| {f

o\

»
et
-

MANAGEMENT REPLY TO THE COMMENTS OF C & AG

Managements reply to the comments of The Comptroller and Auditor General of Indis under
Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Munitions India Limited for

No. M1

To

the period ended 31" March. 2022

L/FIN/Audit/CAG/MIL response/FY2021-22 Dud. 08032023

Office of the Director General of Audit,
Ordnance Factones,
Kolkata

Sub:
Refl:

{ Kind Attention: Shn Sarat Chaturved:, DGA)

MIL response to CAGaudit report and comments.
(1) CAG comments vide Letter No. 216/T459/MIL/ Accounts2022-23
Did. 01/03/2023

Inresponse to above referred letter, the management response of MIL s provided below.

CAG comments:

The above (Other current habilities (Note 23)) does not include a sum of Rs 220.52 crore
towards the provision for employer's contribution m respect ol the employees of erstwhile
Ordnance Factlory Board on deemed deputation (Foreign Service) coverad under Old Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme and National Pension Scheme during the peniod from 01 Ogctober
2021 w 31 March 2022, As per Office Memorandum dated 24 September 2021, the
Governmenl of India has transferred all its Liabilities to the newly lormed DPSUs, hence the
Company is obligated to provide this liability for availing the serviees of the Government
employees on deemed deputation for the six months' period. This has resulted m
understatement of Other Current Lisbilities ind overstutement of Profit of the Company by Rs
220.52 crore.

MIL management response:
Post corporatization from 1st Oct’ 21, all the employees of the erstwhile OFB are working in
the company on deemed deputation with same service conditions as that of government

employes.

Regarding Central Government NPS subscribers, attention is invited towards para no. 07 of
Office Memorandum No. 1(3)2021/0F/DP (Plg-V)/02 dated 24 September 2021 of
Government of India, Mimstry ol Defence ( Department of Defence production), which states
that “the pension liabilities of the retirees und existing employees will contimue 10 be borne by
the Government from the Mimstry of Defence (Mol)) budget for Defence Pensions. For the
emplovees recruited afler 01.01.2004, National Pension Scheme applicable to the Central
Government employees 1% in vogue and the same may be adopted by the New DPSUs,
ncluding continuation of all special provisions applicable to Central Government employees
under the National Pension Scheme”.
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It is submuitted that as para no. 07 of OM, the company is making the payment of employer
contribution of NPS m respect of employees recnuted afier 01.01.2004 as per special
provisions applicable to Central Government employees (i.e., 14% of Basi¢ Pay und DA).

Further, as per the para no. 08 of the same OM, “The condition of payment of pensionary
benefits to the employees of OFB on absorption to the New DPPSUs would be regulated in
accordunce with Rule 37- A ol the Central Civil Services (Pension) Rules, 19727,

Rule 37A, para no. | Greproduced below lorkind reference:

“The Government shall discharge its pensionary liability by paymg m lump sum as a one-time
payment to the Pension Fund the pension or service gratuity and retirement gratuity for the
servive rendered tll the date of absorption of the Government servant in the Pubhe Sector
Undertaking.™

In view of the above, the hability to make the provision for terminal benefits will be bomne by
the Gol as there 15 no permunent employee of the compuny. Neither the Gol nor the company
has crystallized any [uture service condition so far.

Notwithstunding above, MIL has submitted that any further directives given by the
Govermment in this regard will be followed.

CAG comments:

This meludes an amount of Rs. 2,07 grore bumg Tolal Tax Deducted (Rs. 2.04 crore) and
Overhead Tax Deducted (Rs. 0.03 crore) by State Bank of India on the Bank Deposits of the
Company. This has been added by the Company with the Interest Paid (Rs. 20.29 crore) and
Interest Accerual (Rs. 0.28 crore) to armive at the Other Income of the Company amounting to
Rs. 22 64 crore. Since the Interest Pand 15 inclusive of Total Tax Deducted and Overhead Tax
Deducted, the same should not have been added by the Company. This has resulied in
overstatemnent of Other Income as well us Profit of the Company by Rs.2.07 crore.

MIL management response:

[nterest income on FI was calculated as per document received from SBI and explanation
made by SBI personnel and accordingly the sum total of interest paid, acerued interest, total tax
deducted and overhead tax deducted was taken into consideration.

The caleulation was re examimed in view of the observation made by CAG audit and it isagreed
upon thal, FD amount is oversiated by INR 2.07 Crores, which 18 due 1o melusion of total tax
dedueted and Overhead Tax Deducted m the total mterest paid shown in the SBI document and
should not have been added separately while caleulating total mierest imcome of MIL from
FDs.

These amounts will be restated as the comparative amounts for the poor period in FY 2022-23
asper Parn42 ol Ind AS B "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”

{ Prakash Agarwala)
Director! Fiance & CFO
For CMD/MIL
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BALANCE SHEET

Munitions India Limited
Balance Sheet sns nt Mareh 31, 2022
fel il ooy are in (MR Croves, imiess siared orherwised

Ag i
Nuotes March 31,
S 2022
ASSETS
MNan-currint asscts
Property, plent sand equipement 4 (m) 3.000.87
Capital work-in-progress 448 1,442:99
Intangible azsels 4 (b} 7379
Intunyible nesels under development 4 e 13.42
Irevemaries 5 4354
Finaneiul hssets
{2} Tnvestmenis & §.80
(b)) Hecoiveble from goveroment 7 343
Other nomn-current ngsois B 555
Total non-curreat asseis 4.597.09
Current nsagts
Invaniories 9 9.087 45
Financial sasets
ta] Trade receivabies L0 266.55
(L) Cash und cash equivalems 11 5 078 53
i) Regeivable from gnvernment 12 43458
{cl) Oibver fineneol assers 13 §.31
Gther current assets 14 686,25
‘Total current asscis 7.860.37
Fatul asscis 12,457.46
EOQUITY AND LIABILI'TIES
Enuity share cajpatel 15 12323
Eguity shareg pending issue on buginegz reorganizetion (refer note 39) 39 42 724 50
Reserved und surplus \&: -27.407.06
A s 6.549,75
LIABILATIES
Mon-corrent linhilitics
Finunnedal Linbilities
Oiher frmemciel liabilines 17 3.60
Provizsions 18 2.985.3)
L0853
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Deferred 1ax liabilities 12 263
Total non-current labilities 299154
Current Habilitics
Financial lighilitios
{a) Trade payables n
(1) Total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlrprises 2.07
{11} Total ootsianding dues ather than (a)(1) above 39546
{bj Dither financial liebilies 21 18615
Current lax liabilities 22 560
Other current liabilities 23 2,123.50
Totul carvent Habilities 2.916.17
Total Habilitics S907.71
Total equity nad liabifities 12,457.46
The above balance-sheel should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Ad per our fepert ol even date allached,
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registeation Number: 101118W/W 100682 Mumitions India Limsited
Abhijit Shetye Ravi Kant Prakash Agarwala
Pariner Chairman and Managing Direclor CFO & Direclor Finance
Membership Mumber; i51638 DIN [B283910 DN 02666613
E J Paul
Company Secretary
Membership Mo, - FCS4521
Pune Pane

31 December 2022 27 December 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

Munitions India Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2022

(Al amiounis are in INR Crores, unless stated otherwisel

Tor the period
from 17 August
Notes | 3521 to 31 March
2022

Revenue from operalions 24 2.571.55
Orther income 25 46,83
Total income 2618.38
Expenses
C'ost of materials consumed 26 1.051.90
Changes in mventones of work-in-progress. stock-in-irade 37
and finished goods - 283.38
Employee benefit expenses 28 919,39
Diepreciation and gmoriization expense 25 85.02
{rher expenses a0 55390
Total nses

kot 2,592.98
Profit before tax 25.40
Income fax cxpense
- Curgent tax 31 4.67
- Deferred tax 31 563
Total tax expense =130
Profit for the period 18.10
Other comprehensive income |
Other comprehensive income for the perviod. net of tax i
Total comprehensive income for the period 18.10
Eamings per share
PBasic and Diluted (Nomina| value per share Rs. 10 each) 38

0.0l
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The above statement of profit and loss should be read {n conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached,

For P G BHAGWAT LLP _ For und un behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registrution Number; 101118W/W 100642 Munitions Indin Limited
Abhijit Shetye Bavi Kant Prakash Agarwala
Fartner - Chairman and Managing Director CFO & Director Finance
Membership Number: 151638 DIN: 09283912 DIN: 09666613

EJ Paul

Company Secretary

Memberstup MNo. ; FUS4521

Pune Pune
31 December 2022 27 December 2022
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Munitions India Limited
Statement of cash lows
{All amaunis are m INR Croves, unleis srared orherwise)

31 March
2022

Cash flow from nperating activitics

Profit befare (noome tox 35.40
Alimetinenmg foe s

Dieprecistion and amoriissiion expenss B5.02
Inierest recelved (22.64)
Chunges in operating ssseis and labilithes;

{lnereane dacrease in ade feceivibles (516 80)
{Increass Wdeerease i mventorics 290,51
[perease)| decreese) o Tade payebles 320.18
{Ingreage ) decragse in olher Minancis]l anseld 2788
L:u:rmm'Ldmmné'l- i wther Bnaneisl Habllitiss 5699
iTnerease Vdecreass in other cisrrent and non-curgnt asscis (314.83)
{Inerease i derrasse in provisions. (14.69)
{merease decrense i receivable from guvernment 262,44
Increase/| decrease ) in ¢urrent liabilities | 70492
Crash generated from operations I
Ianome (mees g .
Met cagh fow (rom eperuting sctivitics 1,400.07
‘Cash Mows from Investing netivithes: ' ]
Taymenid Toe propedy, plant amd equipment (17045
Payments for minngblie asscks 13.42)
Inrerest received 33,64
Cash nequirsd a2 part &f recrpanisstion of Osdnance Factory

Buaogrd (Refer note 3%) ) 1539
HNet cagh flow [rom investing petividles (184.85)

Cash flow from Iinnnrinu a:ﬁvfﬁes:

Procesls from ismies of shores 123231
Net cush from [osncisg wotivitics 1.232.31
Met incrense/(decrense) In cash and cosh eqnivalents 247653

N
Cush and ensh eguivalents at the end of the year 1,.976.53
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Mon-cash investing activities include consideration for business reorganisation in the form of equity shares
pending issue smounting '
lo B#. 32,724.50 Beler nole 39 for deluils.

Thie ahovye statement of cash flows should be read in ¢onjuncion with the sccompanying notes,

As por our toport of even date
For P G BHAGWAT LLP For and on behall of Board of Divectors of
Firm Registzation Number: 101118W/W100682 Munitions Indin Limited
Abhijit Shetye Ravi Kant Prakash Agarwala
Parmer Charrmom and Mansging Directar (PO & Director Finance
Membership Muntber: 151638 DIN: 09283919 DIN: 096668613
E J Paul

Company Secretary

Membership No. ; FC54521
Pung Pune

31 December 2022 27 December 2022
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STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY

Munitions India Limited
Statement of changes in equily
tAN amouniz are in INR Crares, wnless siated otherwize)

A. Equity share capital
Noles Amonni

i =1 |
As at 17 August 2021

| | =
Iszue of equity shares | | 125231
As at 31 March 2022 | | 123231
B. Other equity

Capiial Retnined Tutal

_ Rote Ruserve pArnings
Balimce asat 17 August 2021 | 1 I | - _
On reorgamnization of Ordnence 19
Faciory Board | (27423.01) - (27.425.00)
Frofil for the pariod | | | 1510 £8.10
Other camprehengive income | - _
ASALIL Muarch 2024 1 (27,425.01) 18.10 | (27,406.91)

The above statement of changes in equity should be 1ead in conjfunction with the accompanying notes.

As per aur repoit of even date

For P G BHAGWAT LLP
Firm Reygistration Number:

For and nn hehalf of Board of Directors of

101 1 1EWWI00682 Munitions India Limited
Abhijit Shetye Ravi Kant Prakash Agwrwala
CFO & Directot

Parlner Chairmmin and Managing Direclor Finanoe

DI,
Membership Number: 151638 05283919 DIN: G9666613

E J Paul )

Company Secretary

Fune
31 December 2022

Membership WNe, : FCS4521

Fune

27 December 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Munitions India Limited

(All amounts in Rs. Crores, unless otherwise stated)

L. General Information

Munitions India Limited ("MLL', or "the Company') 1s an Indian state-owned Defence company,
headguartered i Pune, Indig wus imcorporated on 17 August 2021 10 take over the business of
munufacture of ammunition and explosives as part of the restructuring and corporatisation of the
Ordnanee Factory Board (OFB) of Government of India mto different public sector undertakings.

The Board ol directors have approved these finantial statements forssue on 27 December 2022,

2, Basisof preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a hist of the significant sccounting policies adopted mn the preparation of these
finaneinl stements. These policies have been consistently applied 1o all the veurs presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
i. Comphance with Ind-AS
The financisl statements comply m all matenal aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
{(Ind AS) notilied under section 133 of the Compuntes Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies ( Indian
Accounting Standardy) Rules, 2015] and otherrelevant provisions of the Acl.

This 18 the lirst yeur of incorporation of the Company. Refer note 39 for details of business
reorganization of OFB.

n.  Higwoncal cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except certain financial
assels and liabilities measured at farvalue.

m.  Cument and non-current classification

All assets and habilities have been classified as current or non-current 4s per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other crileria set out m the Schedule 1 (Division 11) to the
CompamesAct, 2013, Based on the nature of products und the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and therr realvzation i cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascerinined its operuting cyele as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and habilities.

iv. Newamendments issued but nol effective

The Mimstry of Corporate AfTairs has vided notification dated 23 March 2022 notified
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Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends  certain
accounting standards and are effective | April 2022, These amendments are not expected to
have a material mpact on the financial statements in the current or fulure reporting periods
and on [oreseeable futtire trunsactions,

22 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Forcigncurrency transactions
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included m the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The
lnancial stutements are presented in Indizm rupee (INR), which is the Company's
functionul and presentation currengy.

(11) Transactions and balances

Foreign curmency (ransactions are translaled mto the functional currency usmg the
exchange rales al the dwtes ol the ransactons. Foreign exchange gains und losses
resulting from the setilement of such transactions and from the translahion of monetary
assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
recognised m profit or loss and presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net
hasis.

Non-moenetsry ilems which are carnied in terms of historical cost denominated i a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rmte at the date of the trnsaction.

b) Revenue recognition

The Company accounts for a contract with its customer when it has approval and
commitment from both parties. the nghts of the parties are dentified, payment terms are
identilied. the contruct has commercial substance and collectability of consideration 1s
probable.

The supply of goods does not have the same pattern of transfer to the customer as it does not
meet the conditions of performance obligations satisfied over time. Hence, each product isa
distinet performance obligation.

The Company assesses for the timmg of revenue recopnition in case of each distined
performance obligation. The Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recogmised
over lime as it performs 1 Fany ol the followmg eritena s met:

(#) The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company
performs. or
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(b) The customer controls the work-in-progress, or

(c) The Company's performance does nol create an asset with alternative use to the
Compuny and the Company has right to payment [or performance completed ull
date.

IMnone of the critena above are met, the Company recognizes revenue at a poini-in- time.

The contracts entered by the Company generally have a single performuance obligation. The
pomi-in-time is determined when the control of the goods is transferred which is generally
determined bused on when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership are transfemed to
the customer. Apart from this, the Company also considers its present nght to payment, the
legal title 1o the goods. the physical possession, and the customer aceepance in determining
the point in ime when control hus been trmsferred.

Sale ofproducts

In case of sale of products, revenue 15 recogmsed at a point in ime when control of goods s
trunsferred to the customer - based on delivery terms, payment lerms, customer seceplance
and other mdicators of control as mentioned above.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promused goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. Therelore, the Company does not adjust amy of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.

For contracts where the Company receives short-term advances from its customers, using
the practical expedient in Ind-AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant linancmg component 11 1L expects, ul contract
inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the
customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one yeuror less.

Income tax
The income tux expense or credit for the period 15 the tax payable on the current penod's

tixable meome based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in defirred tax
assets and hahlities attnbutable to temporary differences and 1o unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pertod. Management pertodically evaluates
positions taken m tax retums with respect to situations m which applicable tax regulation 1s
subject to mterpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures 1ts tax balinces either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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d)

Deferred meome (ax i provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
finuncial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised 1T they arise from
the imitiu] recogmition of goodwill. Deferred meome tax is also not accounted forif it anses
from mmitial recognition of an assel or liability in 4 transaction other than a business
combinalion that at the tme of the trunsaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss). Deferred meome lax is determined using tax rates (and Liws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tux assets are recogmsed for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if 1t is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 1o utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets und habilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to offset
current tax assets and labilities. Current tax assets and (ax liabilities are offset where the
entity has o legally enforceable right to offsel and miends either to settle on a net basis, or lo
realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously.

Current and deferred lax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Impairment ol assets

Assets are tested lor mpairment whenever events or chunges in circumstances mdicate that
the camrymg amoun! may nol be recoverable, An impairment loss 15 recogmsed for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher olun asset’s irvalue less cost ol disposal and value mouse.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are tested at the lowest levels for which
there are sepurately 1dentifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups ol assels (cash-generating umts).

Non-linancial assets that sulfered an mmpairment are reviewed [or possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of eachreporting penod.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash lows, cash and cash equivalents
mcludes cash on hand, bal:imees with banks wnd other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less thal are readily convertible o known
amounts of cash and which are subject to un msipmficant nsk ol changes mm value.
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g)

h)

Trade receivables

Trade recervables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of
busmess. Trade receivables are recogmised imhally at the amount ol consideration that 15
unconditional unless they contam significant finomemg components, when they wre
recognised ol fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contructual cash flows and therefore meuasures them subsequently at the
amoriised cost using the effective interest method., less loss allowance.

Inventories

Raw nuiterinls and stores, work-in-progress, and imshed goods

Raw materials and stores, work-m-progress und finished goods ure stated al the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost of raw matenals comprses cost of purchases. Cost ol work-1n-
progress and [imished goods comprises direet materials, direct lubour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Cost of imventories also include all other costs incurred in
bringmg the invenlories (o therr present location and condition. Costs are assigned o
individual items of mventory on the weighted average method. Costs of purchased mventory
are determined afler deducting rebates and discounts. Net realumble value is the estimated
selling price tn the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estrmuted costs necessary to make the sale.

Other financial assets
i. Classification
The Company classifies its inancial assets in the following categories:
. Those to be measured subsequently at fmir value (efther through other
comprehensive mcome, or through prolit or loss), and

. Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification is dong depending upon the Company's busimess model for managmg
the finuneial nssets and the contructunl terms of the cash flows.

For assels measured ot fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded m profit or loss
ar other comprehensive income, as elected. For mvestments in debt mstruments, this will
depend on the busmess modelin which the investment is held.

The Compuny reclassifies debt mvestments when and only when s business model for
managing those assets chunges.

ii. Recognition

Financial assets are imtially recognized when the Company becomes aparty to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument.
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iii.

iv.

vi.

Measurement
Atmitial recogmition, the Compuny measures a fimancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case ofa
financial asset not at Lwr value through profit or loss, trunsaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
"fair value through profit or loss' sre expensed m prolit or logs.

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's
business model for managing the assel and the cash Mlow charactenistics of the asset. The
Compuny classifies its debt mstruments as [ollows:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cush
flows represent solely payments ol prmeipal and interest are measured  at amortized cosL
Interest meome from these linaneial ussels 1s meluded in Other Income using the effective miterest
rute method. Any gain or loss arisimg on derecognition is recogmsed directly m profil or loss und
presented i Other Income. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line ilem m the
statement of profit and loss,

Impairment of linuncial assels
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried ml amortized cost The mpairment methodology spplied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note details how the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase incredit nisk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach reguired
by Ind AS 109, whichrequires expected lifetime losses o be recogmised from
imitial recogmtion of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A limancial asset 18 derecogmised only when

. Company has transferred the nghis to receive cash flows from the financial assel.

. Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash lows to one ormore recipients.

Where the entity has transferred @n asset. the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards ol ownership of the finineial asset. In such cases, the financial
assel is derecogmsed. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of
ownership of the linancial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a linancial assel nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the linemeial asset, the linoncial assel is derecognised if the Compuny has
not retamed control of the finuncial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset 15 continued to be recogmsed to the extent of continumng involvement n the
fmancial asset.

Income recognition
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective
interest method and 15 recogmsed i the statement of profit and loss as part of Other Income.
Interest mecome 1s calculated applying the effective interest rate (o the grosscarrying
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amount of a financial assel except lor inuncial assets thal subsequently become credit
umpaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective mierest rate is apphied to the net
carrymy amount of the finuncial asset (afler deduction of the loss allowance).

i} Offsctting financial instruments

Fmancial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right 1o ofTset the recognised amounts and there 15 an
mlention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultameously.
The legally enforceable righi must not be contingent on future events und must be
enforceable m the normal course of busimess and n the evenl of default, msolvency or
bunkruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

j} Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is camied at listoncal cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historieal cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the scquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrving amount or recognised 48 a separate.
assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that [uture economic benefits associated with
the itemn will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecogmised when
replaced. All other repurrs and mamtenance are charged o profit or loss durning the reporting
periodin which they are meurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the assets, nel of their
restdual value over themr estimated useful lives.

Assels Usefull life as per schedule U
Buildings 60 Years
Machines installed in Tool-rooms & Production shop 20Years

Motor Vehicles, . g Diesel/ Petrol driventrucks, Forklift trucks, | 05 Years
Dumpers, Tructors, Railway's shunters, Mobile Cranes ete.

Adrconditioners and Refngenitors 10 Years
Air Circulators, Pedestal Fans, Exhaust Fans elc. 20 Years
Electncal mains, meters, nstallation 16 Years
Electnical installation & fans in factory quarters 20 Years
Furmiture & Fixture 05 Years

Office Equipment & Years
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The residual values of the assets are not more than 5%, of the ortgmal cost of the assel. The
depreciation is caleulated as per depreciation rate mentioned in above table on the net value
ol ongmal cost and resadual value.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropniate, at
the end of cach reportng period.

An asset's carrying amount 18 wrilten down immediately to s recoverable amoumt  1f the
assel's carrying amount is greater than its estimaled recoverable amount. Assets costing
individually Rs 10,000 or less, are depreciated in full in the year of purchase.

Giains and losses on disposals are determimed by comparing proceeds with crmyimg amounts,
These are included in profit or loss within Other Income.

k) Intangible nssels

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated a1 acquisition cost less accumulated amortizition and rmpaimment
tosses, il any. Amortization penod and amortzation method are reviewed ot least at each
finuncial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is sigmficantly different from
previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordmgly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds und the carmymg amount of the asset and
recognised asmcome or expense m the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Intangible assets include nghis to technical know-how under a technology transfer agreement
which is amortised over the period of the agreement which is twelve years,

Research and Development expenses

Development costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique intangible assels controlled by the Company are recognised as mlangible assels where
the following eriteria are mel:

itis technically leasible w complete the asset so that it will be available for use
munagement intends to complete the mtangible assel and use or sell it

there is an ability to use orsell the asset

itcan be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits
adequate techmcal, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the assetare avatlable, and

. the expenditure attributable to the asset durng s development can be reliably
meastred.

Directly atinbutable costs that are capitahsed as part of the intangible asset mclude employee
costs and an appropriate portion ol relevant overheads.
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Capitalised development cosls are recorded as imtangible assels and amortiseéd from the pomt
at which the assel 1s available for use.

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the eriteria ibove are
recognised as an expense as meurred. Development costs previously recogmsed as an expense
ure not recognised as an asset ina subsequent period.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods ond services provided to the Company prior to
thi end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented as
current linhilities unless payment is not due withim 12 moriths afler the reportmg peniod. They
are recogmsed initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective mierest method.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for legal clamms and service warranties are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obhigation because ol pust events. 1118 probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recogmsed for future operating losses.

Provisions ure measured at undiscounted amounts since the mpact of discountimg is nol
malerial.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation ansmy fom past
evenlts, the existence of which will be confirmed only by oceurrence or non- occurrence of one
or more uncertan [ulure events not wholly withm the control of the Company or a present
obligation (hal anses from past events where 11 18 gither nol probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to seitle or a reliable estimate ol the amount cannot be made,

n) Emplovee benefits

On corporatization of the production fcilities of erstwhile OFB, the employees of erstwhile
OFB have been trunsferred (o the Company on deemed deputation on an imtial peniod of two
years vide the Ministry ol Delence's Office Memorandum (OM) No. 1(5)/2021/0F/DP{Plg-
V)02 dated September 24, 2021 As per the said OM, the employees continue (o be the Central
Ciovernment employees and the pension liability of existing employees will continue to be the
obligation of the Central Government. The pay allowances and medical [acilities is paid by the

Company for these employees. Given the substance of these expenses, it has been presented as

employes benelil expenses in the financial stalements.
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o) Contributed cquity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental cosis directly atiributable o the 1ssue ol new shares are shown n equity as a
deduction, net ol tax, from the proceeds.

Equity shares to be 1ssued and allotted agamst the net assets transferred to the Company on
the reorganization ol OFB has been presented separately on the balunce-sheet as equity.

p) Earnings pershare

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing
o dividing the profil or loss attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

() Rounding of amounts

3.

All amoumis disclosed m the Gnancial stalements and noles have been rounded off 1o the
nearest Crores as per the requirements of Schedule 11, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial sStatements requires the use ol accounting estimutes which,
by defimtion, will seldom equul the actunl results. Mmmagement also needs (o exercise
Judgement inapplyimg the Company's accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that nvolve a higher degree of judgement or
complexily, and ol items which are more likely to be matenally adjusted due (o estimates and
assumptions lurning out o be different than those originally assessed.
Significant Judgements
In the process of applymg the Company's sccounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the wmounts recognized in the
financial statements:

1. Investment i associatle

The Compuny acquired 8% equity interest in Indo Russian Rifles Privite Limited (IRRPL) as a
part of reorpamsation of OFB. The Company has also nominated one ol the directors on the
hoard of directors of IRRPL. The Management has determimed that the equity mvestment in
IRRPL together with representation on the board, provides it an ability (o exercise significant
influence over IRRPL. Accordingly, the management has determmed that IRRPL is an
associate of the Company. However, given the matenulity of the amounts mvaolved, the
Company has not equily accounted its investmenl in IRRPL by preparng consolidated
financial statements. Had the Company prepared the ¢consolidated financial statements in order
to equity account for its associate, the profit afler tax would have been higher by Rs. 0.06 crores
and the corresponding investment in associnte would have been ngher by the same amount.

2. Provision for warmantly

The Company provides for lifetime warranty on its products against contracts transferred from
the erstwhile OFB, The Company adjusted the net assels transferred from the erstwhile OFB by
providmyg for warrunty as of the tnmsfer date at an amount based on the best estmale of the
amount likely to be settled in case of products whose shelflife 1s not over as of the transfer date,
The amount was further discounted to the date of transfer. Refer note 39 for details.




l'.l-" Indiy £

ﬂ‘h

Llnmrate. Lethal. Reliable

4 (a) Property, Plant Equipment and Intangible Assets (PPE & I'TA):
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4 (c)jintangible assets under development

Ag ot
March 31,
2022
Technology refated o products
1342
Tuotad 1342
5 Non-current inventories
An ol
Mareh 31, 2022
aw materials 47 34
Tonul 42.24
6 Non current lnvestment
Axal )
Murch 31, 2022
Investment in assecinte - cnrried ar cest
BO,000 equiry shapes of Indu-Huzsan Bifels Privare Limited .80
Total (LR

Agpregate amoumt of quoted investments -
Aggregate market value of quoted mvestments -
Agpgregate amount of unguoled investments 0.80
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of mvestments --

7 Receivables from government

Al
Morch 31,2021

Reeesvables o govermaset 343

Tutal 343
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8 Other non-current assecis
As ok
Muargh 31, 2022
T (deved gond
Capitn! addvences .53
Tkl
5E5
9 Inventorics
Axat
Mareh 31, 2022
Eaw matemials L3763
Werk-in-progress 91781
Flnished goods 91.12
Tatal 1,787 46
Agat
Mareh 31, 2022
Hmw mureriais a4 00
Uiy

The above mventones include goods-m-transit as follows:

Note9A

Inventories which are unusable and obsolete mventory items as on October 1. 2021 which mainly
consisted of raw material and Work in progress, amounting o Rs. 30.36 erore are writlen down 1o 118
estimated scrap value at-the mte of 10% e Rs. 3.37 grores . We have also nomimated the aforesmd
matter to the Board of Enquiry (BOE) for confirmation of management assessment that the stock is

unusable/ obsolete and its disposal plan.

Noic 9B

Inventories which are unusable and obsolete mventory items as on Oclober 1,202] which mainly
consisted of raw matenial, amounting 1o Rs. 3.39 crore are written down 1o ils estrmated scrap value ot
the rate of 10% 1.e. Rs.0.40 crores. We have also nominated the aforesaid matter to the Board of
Enguiry (BOE) for conflirmation ol management assessment that the stock 1s unusable/ obsolete and its

disposal plin.
10 Trade receivables
Anar
Mireh 31, 2022
-Trrmd:mnt-ll-&-fnm centaCis with q.lmn'q_:-'uiﬁ._'ulil 766,33

Less: Loss wilowance

Teade reveivubies froun contioct with tusioies - unbillad

Toml




Refer note 36 for related parly disclosures.

Break-up of sccurity details

As
March 31, 2012
Trstic rerrivahiles considersd good - Secigmd
Trace receivaales connidersd good - Unsecured 653
Trade receivanle - cradil impaied =
Tieal ThbS3
Lo Lot pllywance =
Totl ThESS
wiatsnding for folluwing pecinds G due dite ol puymeniy
Vi Leas than L Mure . o
ar rh 9 o mowthe | weomthy 1-1 2-3 tham 3
Vuitpe) | Dot e -1 | Veard | Yesss | Venrs
enrs
Trade recelveablas
Undisputed trade reesivabies- congiders
good o ATTERE | IRLO4 1575 | - TRA 54
Und jsauifed Trede tec=ivable- which have
menitioant incrogse i sredin vk = Il = 2 ¥
Thaptred tradn reseivnbless which have
mignificant incivsss memedit ik " | - s -
Dispured trade receivabies- credit impaleed. e : _ )
Tatwl arEe |t iBsm | Th. 55
U1 C'asti and cnsh m.ﬂ;-__m
o oAwat
March 31, 202
‘Baluncas wirh banks
- I rutent Bsconnrs Tog.03
Depogits with manirity of Tess than three monfhs . 226749
Tuial 297053
L2 Rezgeivabiles from gavgrument
As mt
Mareh 31, 2022
Focs|vablad fram povernment 43428
Totul 43494
13 ﬂi:lﬁrn_unw_ﬂmui_iql IIIHEI
A
Morch 31, 2022
Advances i erployest B:HI_
Secueity depasii 1.:91
Ditkee purrenanl financial yasets T.37
Toral .31
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14 Odher eurrént asseds
Ak o
Mureh 31, 2027
Addunced o wmleiy 51429
Halenees wath govermment aurhannes 1771546
Toinl HnIE
15 Equity share capital
(a)Authorised share capital
Number of
shares it
Ag ol the inenrperation date Le, 17
Apgust 2021 40,50.00.00.000 H0.500.00
Changes during the pariod ) ]
As al 31 Mareh 2022 40,50.00.00.000 | 40.500.00

Partioidnrs Nmﬂf Amount
As i the incorporation date Le. 17

August 2021 - 2
Tesued diring the pero 1,23.25.10,600 2325

As it 3 March 2022 1,33,23,10,000 1,232.31

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to
share in the proceeds of winding up the company i proportion 10 the number ol and amounts paid on
the shares held. Every holder of equily shores present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled 1o
one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

¢) Details of equity shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in
the Company

Asat3l March 2022

Number of %y of holding
shares
Govesnment of India
1.22.23,10,000 el

The Government of India, being the Promoter, holds 100% of Shares as on 31 March 2022,

16 Other eguity
As ai 31 March 2022
Capitsl raserve (a) 2742516
Tetgined sgrpanga (b) 18 10
Total -27407.06
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(2) Capital Reserve

Asat 31 March 2022
As at the incorporation date i.e. 17
August 2021
Reorganisation of Ordnance Factory Board _
(Refer note 39) -27.423.16
Closing balance -27,425.16

{b) Retained earnings:

As at 31 March 2022

As at the Incorporation date Le. 17 August

2021
Profit for the period 18.10
Closing balance 18.10

Capital reserve represents the difference between the net assets transferred to the Company on
business reorganisation of Ordnance Faclory Board and the consideration issued. Refer nole
39 for detals.

17 Other non-current financial liabilities

As at
March 31, 2022
Security deposit payable 3.60
Total 3.60
18 Non-current provisions
As al
March 31, 2022
Provision for warranty 2,983.31
Total 298531
Movements in provisions
Product wirranties
As a1 17 August 2021 -
Acquired through business reorganisation 3.000.00
(Refer note 39) s
Amounts utilised during the vear {14:69)
As at 31 March 2022 298531




u LN
o L
¥ A
< i %
| a
BTy

i!.arurate. Lethal. Reliable

19 Deferred tax liabilities
The balances comprises temporary differences attributable to ;

Asat
Mareh 31, 2022
Deferred tax labilitics
Property, plant and equipment and
intangible sanels 50:84
Deferred tax assets
linvenlories N.38
Tox losses #3.16
MAT Credit Entitlement 467
Total 2.63

Tax losses include unabsorbed depreciation which is allowed to be camed forward

indefinitely.
20 Trade payables
At
March 31, 2022
Trade payablea
(&) Micro and small enterprises 807
(b) Other than micro and small
“enkerprises 59546
Total 603.53 ]
Aging of trade payables
Less
. . 2-3 Mupre thian .
Unbilled Not due t!:.run 1 1-2 Yenrs Yeirs 3 yeary Total
Lur
Trade payables Il [ I .
Undispused-MSME 0.03
525 0.3l .06 = e
; ) 217
Undizputed-Crbers 458.38 496 0.10 465,61
191
Drisputed dues: MSME - . 044 ) 2.34
_ 125.10
Digpuied dues: Othess . 475 : 12985
Tuinl Afs.64 10.02 (.59 120,27 03,53

The defails of durs to mizro entemprises snd small snterprines (MSME| a5 defined undes Micro, Small and Mediom
Enterprizes Development-Act. 2008 { MEMED Act') and disslosures prirmantto the MSMELY Act pre a5 fallows:

3 March 2022
Prinelpal emount due to duppliers registered under the MEMED Act and remaining 207
unpaid a5ed year end
Interest due 1o supplics regisisrsd undsr the MSMED Actand remammg snpaid 25 s -
yearend

Principal ameunis paid (o suppliere registered under the MSMED Ast, bevond the .
‘appumted dey duing the year
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Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act. to suppliers registered under the
MEMED Act, beyond the sppoinied day during the year

Interest paid, other than ymder Section 16 of MEMED Act, (o suppliers mgistered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appomicd day during the year

Amount of interest dus and payeble Far the period of delay in making payment fwhich
haye been paid bul bevond the appointed day during the venr) but wirhout adding the
miterest specifisd uoder the MSKMED Act ) )
Literest acerued snd cemaining unpaid & the end of the secounting year
Amownt of further interest remaining duoe and payable aven in the succeeding years

21 Other financial linbilities — carrent

As at March 31, 2022
Puyable L employees 186.15
Total 186,15
22 Currend tax labilitics
As at March 31, 2022
Cusrent tax payable for the yeas 2.60
Total 2.60
23 Other current liabilities
As al March 31, 2022
Advanees [rom customers 1.B91.26
Capital creditors 11.25
Stanutory tax payables 221398
Total 2,123.90
24 Revenue from operations
For the period from 17
August 2021 o 31 March
2022
Revenue (rom contracis with
coustinmers
Sale of product=s - at 2 point in ime 2.571.55
Other operating révenus
Sale of scrap -
Taotal 2,571.55
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Disaggregation of revenue recognised against contracts with customers (17 August 21 to 31

March 2022)
Domestic |
Purticulars SOVETINCRE nfﬂ?; cnu_ﬂ Exports | Total
I Defence Defence
Sale of Products 1.897.54 651.46 2255 | 257155
Tetal 1.897.54 651.46 | 2255 | 257158
WNotes:

() The performance obligation is satistied “at a point in time” which is primarily determined
on customer obtaining control of the asset. One of the prime indicator considered for this
is transter of significant risk and rewards to the customer based on Inco terms.

(b) The company’s turnover mainly includes snpply of defence arms and ammunition.
(e) There are no reconciling items between contract revenue and revenue recognised.

25 Other income

For the period from 17
August 2021 (o 31 March
B 2022
Rental Income 4.96
Utility charges 545
Other meome 10.14
TInterest income on fixed deposits,
being financial asseis carried at
amortised cost 22 64
Forzign exchange gain (nel) .64
Tatal 46.483
26 Cost of materials consumed
For the period
from 17 August
2021 to 31 March
2022

As at the Incorporation date f.e. 17
Augugt 202] :
Add; Transferred during (he period on
business reorganisarion (refer note 39) | 1.970.72

Add : Purchases 1,038.81
Less ; Raw materials at the end of the ' -
period 1.957.63

Tatul cost of materials :ﬁntuma_:d

L,051.90




27 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, sIOck-1i-{i uoe mud lunsiies govus

For the period from
17 August 2021 ta 31
Murch 2022
UOpening halance
Work-in-progress o
Finighed goods -
T'ransferred during the period on
buosiness rearganisation {refer note
39) _
Work-in-progress 114540
Finighed goods 147.71
Total 1,313.21
hluﬂnz Lalance .
- Work-in-prograss 937.61
Fimished goods 2.22
Tatal closing balance 1,029.83
%’qm changes in inventories of
“work-in-progress, stock-in-trade
and finlshed poods 283,38
28 Employee benefit expenses
For the period from 17
Angust 2021 to 31 March
2022

Salaries; wages and borug 1939
Toial 019.39

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the period from 17
August 2021 to 31 March

2p22
Drepreciation on property, plant and 76,09
ecuiprmenl AR
Amortizotion of intanyible assels 202
Total §5.02

30 Other expenses
For the period from 17
Angust 2021 (o 31 March

2022
Power & hiel 51.65
Securily expenzes 2824
Transportetion charges 5.90
Technical know how 013
Telephone expenges: LoT
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Printing & Stationary 0.04
Rent, Rates & Taxes 0.79
Inzurance 032
Contract Labour 31.67
Departmenial Canieen expenses 1.64
Medical and hygein oxpenses 141
Waiter Charges 22.77
Repairs & Maintenance 23 37
Travelling experises 5.84
Fxibhition expenyes 1.10
IT expenses 211
 Legal and professional fees (.92
Loss on sale of scrap 837
Paymeni 1o auditor [refer 30 {a}] 021
Miscellaneous expenses 2.53
 Total 253,29
30 (a) Details of payments to auditors
For the period from 17
August 2021 to 31 March
2022

As auditor:

Statutory audit fee 0.21
Tax audit fec

Taotal 0.21

31 Income tax expense _
The major components of income tax expense for the pertod 17 August 2021 to 31 March

2022 are:
For the period from 17
Profit and Loss scction August 2021 to 31 March
222
Income tax expense
Current income iax 4.67
Deferred income tax 2.63
Total 7.30
Reconciligtion of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by fax rate for 31 March
2022
For the period from 17
Particulars Aungust 2021 to 31 March
2022
Accounfing profit before fax 2540
Tax at substantively enacted - 40
income-tax rate of 29.12% A
Individually immaterial reconciling 0,10
items -
Income tax expense 7.30
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For the purpose of computation of income tax (current tax) provision for the penod ended March
31,2022, the Company has not considered various disallowances specified under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 including Section 40, Section 43B etc. as necessary details were not available.
However due to considermg amount of deduction available towards depreciation as per the
provisions Income Tax Act. the management is of the opinion that effect of aforesaid
disallowances if uny would not be matenal to the financial statements. The current tax provision
mude by the Company 1s as per provisions of Section 115JB of the Incomse Tax Act. 1961 related
to Mmimum Alternate Tax (MAT). Consequently the management has recognised Deferred Tax
Asset on account of MAT Credit Entitlernent availuble to the Company. The Company has also
recognised deferred tax assets towards unabsorbed depreciation as per the provisions of the
Income Tax AcL.

32 Fair value measurements
Financial assets and habilities at amortised cost

Agat
March 31,2022

Financinl asseis = s

Trade receivables T66:55

Cash-and cosh syoivalents 2.976.53

Reveivable from government 43771

Ciher financial assets B 1]

Total financinl nsseis 4.190.08

I :

Trads payabies 60353

Security deposits 3.60
 Payable to employees L&6.15

Total financial liabilitics T93.28

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The Fuir values of all finsncial instruments carried ot amortised cost are not materally
different from Lheir carrying amounts since they are either short-term o nofure or the
miterestrate applicable are not materially different from the current market mte of interest.
There are no financial mstruments measured under the category of Fair value through
Profitand Loss and Fair valug through other comprehensive meome.
33 Financial risk management
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primanly to market risk, hiquidity risk
and credit risk, which may impact the fair valueof its financial imstruments. The Company
has a nisk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange risks but also
otherrisks associated with the financial assets and habilities such as credit nisks. The risk
munagement policy 1s approved by the board ofdhrectors.
A Creditrisk
Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss ansing from counlerparty failure (o repay or service
debt according 10 the contractual terms orobligations. Credit ask encompasses both the
direct nsk of default and the nisk of detenoration of creditworthiness.
The credit nsk of the Company manly anses from trade receivables, cash and bank balances
and otherreceivables,
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Sigmificant amount of trade receivables are due from Government / Governmeni Departmenis,
Public Sector Compames (PSUs)

consequent to which the Company does nothave a credit risk associated with such receivables. In
case of non governmentirade receivable | sales are generally camed out based on Letter of Credit
established by the customer thereby reducmy the credit risk.

The Company typically receives 60% advance payments against bank guarantee which further
safeguards the credit nsk associated with trade receivables.

Forbanks und imancial institutions, only high mted banks/instititions are accepled.
Exposure to credit risk

The carrymg amounts of financial assels represent the maxmmum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure Lo credit risk, being the tolal ofihe carrying amount of balunces with bink. short term
deposits with banks, trade receivables and other financial assets is disclosed at theend of the each
reporting period. Refer relevant notes for detals.

B Liquidity Risk

Prudent ligumdity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and deposiis and the
avatlability of fimding (hrough anadequate amount of committed credit [alies o mest
obligations when due and (o pay out obligations. Due to the dynamic nature of theunderlying
businesses, Company ensures avatlability of funds by managing the working capital by accepling
the order for production of goods after getting 60% of order value as advance from customers.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liguidity position und cash and cash
cquivalents on the basis of expected cashflows. The Company's liquidity management policy
mvulves projecting cash Aows and considerme the level of liquud assets necessary tomeel this.
The Company mnvests its surplus funds i bank fixed deposits.

Maturities of financial liabilities

L The tables below analyses the Company's financial habiliies into relevant maturity
sroupings bused on therr contractual maturities:

The amoumts disclosed in the tuble are the contractual undiscounted cash lows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting 15 not significant.

Liess than 3 - lin 5 -
31 March 2022 Total ontha 3o 12 months : = 5 years
Trade payshles 603,53 17118 43235
Seeurity depuding + 40 - “ | s
Payable (o etnpluyess 18615 23.49 112.65 - -
Fowl T3 | 34468 545,00 3.60 =
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C Market Risk
Market risk 15 the risk of any loss in [uture earmings, in realizable Fur values or in [uture cash
flows that may resull from a chunge m thepnice of a fmancial mstnment. The value of a
financial mstrument may change as a resull of changes in the foreign currency exchangerates,
hgquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally
predicted with reasonable accuracy.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Company transacts internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from
foreign currency transactions, primarily withrespect to the USD, SEK. Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilitiesdenominated in 3 currency thalis not the company's functional currency (INR).

The Company has both import and export transactions in foreign currencies. The imports are
higher than the exports ind hence theCompany has foreign currency exposure (o the extent
of purchases bemg higherthan exports.

The currencies 1o which the Company 1s exposed to are not subject to sigmificant volatihity.
However, the management closely monitors movements in these currencies and takes
necessury actions, as may be required to protect the Company from losses on account of

volatility.

31 March 2022
Finuncinl assers.
Trade Reevivables
AEK
U= 12573
Met exposure to forelgn currency risk (assets) 125.73
Capital creditors
SEE 040
UsD 4,65
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) -5.4005

The sensitivity of profit or loss to chunges in foreign exchange rates with respect Lo year end
payable / receivable balances 1 as follows

Impuact on profit
31 March 2022

Increase by 5%*
SEFK (0.02)
ushH 6.05

Decrease by 5% #
SEK 0.02
UsD (6.05)
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*Holding all other vanables constunt

34 Capital management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
-safeguard therr ability to continue as a going concern. so that they can contimue to provide
returns forshareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, und
-Mamtain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost ol capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to
shareholders, 1ssue new shares. The Company determines the amount of capital required on
the basis of annual opensting plins and long-term projects and other strtegic mvestment
pluns. The funding requirements are met through equity.

35 Segment reporting
Muimistry of Corporute Aflairs vide Notification no. 463 (E) dated 5 June, 2015 us amended

has exempled the Companies engaged m Defence Productions from the requirement of
Segment Reporting,

36 Related party transactions
The Company is controlled by the Government of India.

Name of the related partics and nature of relationship

(2) Key Management Personnel

Shri Ravi Kant Chariman and Managing Direclor
Shri.Debashish Banerjee Direclor/HR
Shri.S K. Roul Dyirector/Operations
Shn.V.C Verma Diector/Finance
Key management personnel As at March 31, 2022
compensation
Short term employee benefits 0.83
Total 0.83

(b) As Mumitions India Limited 1s a governmeni entity under the control of Ministry of

Delence (MoD), the company has availed exemption from detailed disclosures required
under Ind AS 24 with respect to related parly transactions with government and
government related entities.
However as required under Ind AS 24, followmg are the imdividually sigmficant
transactions: Approximately 95% ol the Company's turnover and trade receivables and
99% of customer advances are with respect to government and government related
entities.
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37 Contingent Liabilities

31 March 2022
Legal clsvm involves eourt cases for pay sod allowsnees, GaAT
penalty in disciplinney cases, adbilrstion in purchases and
pay fixgtion ate.
Legal cloim imvolves court cases for poy and allowances, 11.83
arbitration in purcheses, pay fixstion and GST deparment
ele.
Total T840

38 Earnings per share
31 Wiarch 2022

(=) Basic eamings per share
Profit aticibatohle 1o the equity holders of the company used 1510
in calenlating basic eamings per share

Weighted average number of cquity shares used as the 26.27.52,71.521
denominaior in t:alculltmg hasic enmings per share

Basic earnings per share ror

(b) Diituted carnings por sharo

Erofit attributable 1o the equity holders of the company ussd LR L0
in calculating diluted sernings per shure

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the 26.27,52.71.521
denominator in caleulating diluted earnings per share

'Dﬂutcd'mnﬂngx per share .01

39 Business reorganization

The Government of India snmounced (o convert Ordnance Factory Board, an altached
office of Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Production, mto seven different wholly
owned corporate entities by the Government of India. registered under the Compantes Act, 2013.
Accordimgly, 12 production units and 4 non production units of erstwhile OFB, pertainmg Lo
production of ammunition and explosives (refermed (o s "business” for the purpose of this nole)
were tmansferred to Munitions Indin Limited on October 1, 2021 vide Order No.
L5V 202 VOF/DP{ Plg-V 01 issued by Depariment of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence.
Government of India,

Munittons India Limited was newly formed entity (o tuke over the busmess of ammumtion and
explosives from the erstwhile OFB. The Compuny therefore did not meet the delimition of
'Business' at the time of re-organisation as per Ind AS 103, Accordingly, this transaction is not
construed as a business combination under common control, rather as a business reorzanisation.
There is no guidance under Ind-AS on accounting for business reorgunisation. However, since
the business his remained under common control (i.e., by the Government of India), hefore and
afler the reorganisation, the munugement has determined that itis appropriate to apply provisions
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ol Appendix C 1o Ind AS 103 that deals with business combmations under common conlrol, as per
the policy choice provided by Ind AS 8. Accordimgly, the Company has accounted for the assels
and habilities of the business transferred at their existing carrying values adjusted for the effect of
harmomsing the accounting policies with those followed by the Company, by followimng the
provisions under Appendix C toInd AS 103.

"The erstwhile OFB accounted for the business as per the Generstl Financial Rules applicable to
the government departments. The Company has voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting
Stndards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Compantes Act, 2013, The Management
has determined that the General Fmancial Rules 1s the previous GAAP followed by the busmess
before its transfer 1o the Company. The financial statements forthe period ending March 31,2022
are the first financial statements of the Company, since the Company was newly incorporated. it
did not have any assets or liabilities as at iisearhest date i_e., date of incorporation. However, since
the busmesses of the certuin units of OFB were transferred (o MIL, the Management determined
that the Company can be a first time adopter inrespect of the businesses trunsferred.

Accordingly. the management concluded that the exemptions and exceptions available under the
provisions of Ind AS 10] should be applied to the carryving value assels and habilities and then
transferred to MIL."

As a resull, nd-AS adjustments as well as certain corrections were made to the assets und
liahilities of the business transferred to the Company as at 1 Oclober 2021 amounting to INR
4,233 87 with corresponding debit impact 1o equity. The significant adjustments included
following:

(i) The Company applied deemed cost W the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
and intanmible assets asat the date of tmnsler,

{11) The Company provided for warranty amounting to INR 3,000 for the contraets as of the
dale of transfer of business, since the same was not included in the carrying value of net assets
transferred.

(i)  The Company adjusted the value of inventories to bring the valuation to the lower of net
reabisable value or cost, wherever necessary.

(iv)  The Company recorded certain amounts receivable from the Government as the
comespondimg habilities (mamly included security deposits and advanee from customers) were
trunsferred to the Company, without corresponding money received thereagainst
Miscellaneous expenditure und preliminury expenses recognised as im asset under the previous
GAAP were charged off as these are not recognised under Ind-AS.

The details of net assets transferred. consideration agreed on busmess reorgunization and the
capital reserve recognised on reorzanisation are as below:
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INR Crores

Assets:
Pmpﬂrty plant and equipment 2.982.28

('apital work-in-progress 1.367.22
Intangible assets 87.71
mveniories 3.219.91
Investments 0.80
Receivable from wovernments 701.91
Other non-cuwrrent assets 1.12
Trade receivables 249.76
Cash and cash equivalents 15.39
Other financial assets 30.42
Other current assels 377.91
Total assets 9,134.42
Liabilities:
Other financial liabilites 132.75
Provisions 3.000.00
Trade pavables 283.35
Other current liabilities 418.98
Total liabilities 3,835.09
Net assets (A) 5.299.34
Consideration payvable (B) 32,724.50
[32.724.498 380 equity shares (nos.) of Rs.
10 each|
Capital Reserve [(A) - (B)] (27,425.16)

The consideration payable has been agreed in the form ol equity shares to be issued by MIL 1o the
Government of India, based on the fair value of the net assets of the business accounted by MIL.
Since the fair value exercise was not completed by the reporting date i.e. March 31, 2022, the
shares were not issued as of that date and therefore the consideration payable has been presented
us "Equity shares pending issue on busmess rearganisation” under Equity in the balunce-sheel.
Out of the toal consideration. the Company issued 32.505.350,000 equity shares (nos.)
subseyuent to the balunce-sheet date on August 29, 2022,

40 Provision for employee benefits obligations

On corporatizatton of the production and non-production facilities of erstwhile Ordnance
Faetory Board (OFB), the employees ol erstwhile OFB have been transferred to the Company on
deemed deputation for an mtial period of two years vide the Mmistry of Defence's Office
Memorandum (OM) No. 1(5)2021/OF/DP(Plg-V)/02 dated September 24, 2021 As per the smd
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OM. all such employees continue 1o be the Central Government employees and therefore their
respective certuin pay allowances, leave, medical facilities and pension liability continue to be
the obligation of the Central Government. Since the Company is not required to fulfill these
obligations, provision for certuin employee benefits as per IND-AS 19 namely, provision for
graturly, leave encashment and other retirement benelits and allowanees, are not recognized m
the financial stalements.

41.  As per provisions of Section 149 and Section 177 of the Compames Act 2013, the
Company 15 required to appoint [Independent Directors and at least one-wonmum director, and
constitule Audit Commitee respectively. However, being a government company and
Defence Public Sector Unit, the Company is required complete certain administrative
procedures refated appointment of directors including Independent Directors and Woman
Director. Due to pendency of such procedures, the Company was not able to appoinl
Independent Direclors including woman director and thereby was not able o constutite Audit
Committee till the date of signing of these Financial Statements. The Management has made
necessary upplications with the government in this regard. The Management believes that
aforesaid noncompliznee will not require matertal adjustment o the Financial Statements.
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